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RE: Notice ofTermination
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Dea Ms. Jackson: |
The intentofthis letter is to inform you that your employment with theCityofRiviora Beach is terminsted iltt immedi dv a mull ploy vio, 1 hve onion yu copes set |reviewing that statement, 1 find that you have violated the public's trust in law enforcement, which has 1impugned the teputaton ofthe agency and your peor, {
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Palm Beach County Police Benevolent Association
Tobe filled outby PBAstaffonly.

GrievanceNo:GRY:21:04-10 LeadPBA Attorney: LawrenceK, Fagan
totheAGN Ttgnc tg itd: PssoocietyPs

|
Written Grievance Form |

Grievant: Sgt. Brian Jackson Date: April27,2021

Employer: RIVIERA BEACH PD. Employment Date: 2005

JobTitle: Sergeant Division: Patrol

Article(s)AllegedlyViolated

Articles: 7.22. and all others as may be related, including past practice.

Nature of Grievance: Discipline without just cause.

Remedy requested: Restoration ofall lost wages, benefits and emoluments inconsequenceofdiscipline

withoutjust cause. Ll

— [27]ited by oe: 27232
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Palm Beach County Police Benevolent Association
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GrievanceNo:GhV:2104:101 ead PBA Atorey: Lawrence. Fagan
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Written Grievance Form |

Grievant: Sgt. Brian Jackson Date: April 27, 2021 |

Employer: RIVIERA BEACH PD. Employment Date: 2005 |

JobTitle: Sergeant Division: _Patrol

Article(s)Allegedly Violated

Articles: 7.22. and all others as may be related, including past practice.

NatureofGrievance: Discipline without just cause.

Remedy requested: Restoration ofalllost wages, benefits and emoluments in consequence ofdiscipline

withoutjust cause. a,
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— oa 2722

Stop: Lawrence Fagan23 POALol Couns and onbehalfSt. Brian aconas attorney infact, presented this
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Shelia Robinson

From: Larry Fagan <larry@pbcpba.org>
sent: Friday, April 23, 2021 1106 AM
To! Shelia Robinson
ce Courtney Lawrenson; Nathan Osgood; policebo; Tanzy Vassel Katie Mendoza; Brennan

Keeler
Subject: Re: Sgt. Jackson

Shelia: Thad previously mentioned to Chief Osgood that from my experience with these at Riviera Beach, Pre-
Disciplinary meetings/hearings have been unprotected meetings whereby the City has a chance to fire questions
atus and essentially re-investigate the case with no Garity/Miranda protection whatsoever. Another bite at the
apple,ifyou will,

‘The last such meeting I had there, theChief was present, along with Asst, Chief Madden, IA Captain Vassell,
Atomeys Lynn Whitfield AND Denise Mutumba, myself and my client (another Sgt.). We all had masks and
some had gloves due to the Coronavirus pandemic. It is an added difficulty to ask questions and/or field
questions effectively with protective masks on. That hasn't changed yet as we all still navigate COVID. Plus,
the meeting is recorded only to become a public record later.

While Sgt, Jackson is absolutely entitled to a meeting, we are not required to re-defend the allegations. It is our
opportunity to present MITIGATION to the Chief in an effort to reduce the discipline and discuss his prior good
conduct, eic, not be cross-examined about the case.

As such, I'm ot going 10 expose my clients to that unless the dynamics of such a meeting will be
different. Therefore, we will present any mitigation for Sgt. Jackson to the Chief in writing.

Twas hopeful to resolve the matter. But, with the charges as they stand currently, regardlessof any discipline, I
am not optimistic to that end.

Tam still discussing a possibilityof that on our end here.

Lawrence K. Fagan, Esq.
Legal Counsel

Palm Beach County PBA
2100 N. Florida Mango Road
‘West Palm Beach, FL 33409
Phone; (61) 689-3745.
Fax: (561) 687-0154

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: Thscommnctindlsmc)coinconden fri cde nysndpint). ThsComm iy Coitnttnooty orHopgne welesdfareinwit hota 1h£5, FeSto 8 otAtderd, in, oe Coc15, Fo Suc,he FoRef Err he FOIA, Prva ch HesCommsA nd 3 USC 553 AusdsoopinotoyeonPdEfWSan sedote Ho ed hi Co1Fl tlmeine
IRS CIRCULAR 230 NOTICE: Toth xn hi compunictonsyst)conc x mics, i ct ds tbe s,scoc sdbyayier for pr of lingesbend Bo.

On Thu, Apr 22,2021 at 2:11 PM Shelia Robinson <srobinson@rbpublicsafety.org> wrote:



RECEIPT FOR HAND-DELIVERED CITY
CORRESPONDENCE

DELIVERED TO: Brian Jackson, Sergeant of Police

DATE: March 18, 2021

SIGNATURE:

», ——Bran Sacksecyoo RINT NAMES
RSON RECEIVING CORRESPONDENCE

DELIVERD BY: TANZY VASSELL/ CAPTAIN OF POLICE/ INTERNAL
AFFAIRS

SIGNATUHE:

1 Taw
(SI ARE) (PRINT NAME)

PERSON DELIVERING CORRESPONDENCE

NcadedNoveofment LARS
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"The Best Waterfront City in Which to Live, Work and Play."
_——

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH ~ MEMORANDUM
_—
TO: BRIAN JSCKSON/SERGEANT OF POLICE

FROM: NATHHGEGHAD, CHIEF OF POLICE

DATE: MARef(17,2021

RE: AMENDED - NOTICE OF INTENT TO ADMINISTER DISCIPLINARY
ACTION- LA. 19-06

On June 21, 2019, you attempted to conduct traffic stop on asuspect, who in his attempt to flee
struck your marked patrol vehicle. The suspect was later apprehended behind a residence at 1516
West 36™ Street, Riviera Beach, Florida.

During your sworn recorded interview, you acknowledged you struck the suspect by providing
discretionary blows to distract him because you thought he was reaching for aweapon. You
ater discovered, what you thought was a weapon, was a cellular phone.

Based on the Body Worm Camera footage, when you arrived on scene, you had an aggressive
stance, and your fistswereclinched. You approached the suspect while he was siting on the
‘ground with his hands in the air. At that time, Captain Foster directed everyone to “Go dark”,
‘You also acknowledged you were unsure ifyou were the only supervisor that struck the suspect,however, you knew you punched him more than twice.

‘You stated you were not wearing your department issued Body Worn Camera, nor vest, during
the apprehension of the suspect, and as such, your useofcountermeasures was not documented.
On October 18, 201, you signed the Department's General Order, acknowledging receipt ofthe
policy governing the wear and usageof the Body Worn Camera.

“The Body Worm Camerais utilized to capture interactionsbetween Law Enforcement and the {public by providing recorded evidenceofactions, conditions and statements.

‘You did not adhere to the Department's standard operating procedures, policies and directives,
which precluded you from faithfully executing the dutiesofyour assigned LY

($
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Brian Jackson, Sergeant of Police.
LA. #1906

Therefore, I conclude that SERGEANT BRIAN JACKSON has violated the following
Policy and Procedures and or Rules and Regulations:

GENERAL ORDER 2018-3 - BODY WORN CAMERA
1.4- POLICY
tis the policyof the Riviera Beach Police Department to utilize a Body Worn Camerato
document Law Enforcement interactions with the public by providing recorded evidence of
actions, conditions, and statements. The Department has a legal right to capture and record
footage during all official interactions.

17__ ASSIGNMENT, ISSUANCE, AND OPERATION:
B. Operation and useof the BWC by officers is mandatory while working any

uniformed assignments to include but not limited to:
1. Regularand overtime on-Duty Patrol

RIVIERA BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT
POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL;
RULES AND REGULATIONS
SECTION IV, PARTIV ~ NEGLECT OF DUTY OFFENSES:

4.14 NEGLECT OF DUTY: LOAFING, INATTENTION TO DUTIES/PROCEDURES:
Riviera Beach Police Department personnel shall be attentive (0 job duties and shall avoid any
appearanceof loafing or neglecting work while on duty. Riviera Beach Police Department
personnel shall adhere to standard operating procedures, policies and directives, and shall
faithfully excoute all the duties and responsibilitiesof theirassigned position. (A violation is
subject to reprimand, suspension, and/or demotion, or dismissal.)

SUSTAINED

E.S.S.784.03 BATTERY.

SUSTAINED

E.S.S. 838.022 OFFICIAL MISCONDUCT

SUSTAINED

Based on the foregoing, I am recommending to the City Manager the following:

© Twenty (20) working days suspension for these violations.

Page20f3



Brian Jackson, Sergeant of Police
1A.#19.06

“This information is provided in conformance with the labor contract between the City ofRivera
Beach in the Palm Beach County Police Benevolent Association (PBA). Furthermore, you have
the right to appeal concerning this action via the PBA union contract process, Articles 21 and 22.

ce: Michael Madden, AssistantChiefofPolice.
O’Ne Dupre, DirectorofHuman Resources

Page3of3



OFFICE OF THE STATE ATTORNEY oy
wx FE

SHR FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT frm)
FERS IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY Vas
re Go)ooLlpy DAVID ARONBERG Ry
a STATE ATTORNEY 3

January 29, 2021

City of Riviera Beach Police Department
PCU Case: 19-PI000042A99
Sergeant Jerry Lamm
On or about August 5, 2019, The Public Corruption Unit were requested by Captain Vassell of the
Rivera Beach Police Department to conduct an investigative review of Riviera Beach arrest case 19-
50518. On August 9, 2019: case fle was received and reviewed by the Public Corruption Unit and
there was no probable cause for criminal charges.
On Tuesday, March 24, 2020 Chief Osgood made contact with Attorney Fernandes requesting the
Public Corruption Unit to conduct a secondary internal review of the incident, Additionally, the
Riviera Beach Police Department deliveredto the Public Corruption Unit a secondary case file to
include several body camera videos, nternal affairs recorded statements, probable cause affidavit,
and other elated documents.
A careful analysis of all documentation, body camera videos, and recorded statements provided of
the incident were reviewed. | did not uncover any evidence showing the arrestee was struck while
in handeuifs or any excessive useo force displayed at the timeof thearrest.
On Friday, April 10, 2020 it was determined the arrestee, Anthony Goldwire (B/M, 02-26-1997), is
scheduledfor jury ral on April 27, 2020, Therefore, based on havin legal representation and the
case not being closed out we are unable to arrange for recorded statement with Anthony Goldvire
until the case is closed.

On, Tuesday, April 14, 2020 Attorney Fernandes sent an emall request offering Anthony Golduire’s
legal counsel an opportunity to provide astatement regarding thearrest when taken into custody
byThe Riviera Beach Police Department,
On, Thursday, April 23, 2020 Attorney Fernandes sent an email request offering Anthony Goldwire’s
legal counsel an opportunity to provide a statement regardin the arrest when taken into custody
by The Riviera Beach Police Department.
On, Tuesday, May 6, 2020, Attorney Fernandes sent an email request offering Anthony Goldwire’s
legalcounselan opportunity to providea statement regarding thearrest when taken ino custody
by The Riviera Beach Police Department.

Page 1 0f2



On Monday, December 7, 2020 contact was made with the Public Defender's Offic to schedule aformal interview with Anthony Goldire.
On Monday, January 4, 2021.1 received an email copy of criminal depositions or Officer BenjaminSmith, Office Javares Harvey, and Sergeant Jackson for futher investigative review. Upon readingthe transcription of Sergeant Jackson's deposition he does state he struck the subject several timesin the face and head area asthe subject was not complying with the commandsgiven and trying toretreve something from his pocket. At the timeo the use of force the subject was no vt InHandcuffs; however, was placed nto handcuffsafterthe nal strikes o the head an face area.
On Tuesday, January 5, 2021 an email was sent tothe Public Defender requestinga formalinterview with Anthony Golduire; which was schedule for Wednesday, anuary 20, 2021 withinthe Palm Bach County State Attorney's Offce. However, on the da of the Interview | was informedbythe Public Defender’ Ofie that Anthony Goldwires criminal case was dosed and he would notbe attending the scheduled interview.
On Tuesday, January 19, 2021 1 as contacted by Kevin Anderson from the Law Officesof Anderson& Welch, LLC as he was retained by Anthony Goldwire a a private attorney. As of Friday, January29,2021 formal interview has yet to be conducted with Mr. Golduire at this time.
A careful analysis of all documentation provided along with the digital surveillance videos of the
incident were reviewed. Based on these accounts of the investigation | did not uncover any
‘evidence of criminal activity that meet the elements of a crime as per Florida State Statutes.
Therefore, based on the findings | am recommending termination of this investigation by the
Palm Beach County Public Corruption Unit with no further investigative action at this time.

SpeGer Lamm

Sergeant Jerry Lamm
Palm Beach County State Attorney's Office
15" Judicial Circuit
Public Corruption Task Force
401 N. Dixie Hwy.
West Palm Beach, FL, 33401

Page 2 of 2



RECEIPT FOR HAND-DELIVERED CITY

CORRESPONDENCE

DELIVERED TO: BRIAN JACKSON, SERGEANT OF POLICE

DATE: NOVEMBER 2, 2020

SIGNATURE:

fie
NAME) (PRINT NAME)

PERSON RECEIVING CORRESPONDENCE

DELIVERD BY: TANZY VASSELL, CAPTAIN OF POLICE/INTERNAL
AFFAIRS

SIGNATURE; a

pi
TEN NAME) (PRINT NAME)

PERSON DELIVERING CORRESPONDENCE
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"The Best Waterfront City in Which to Live, Work and Play."

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH - MEMORANDUM

TO: BRIAN JACKSON, SERGEANT OF POLICE

FROM: NATHAN OSGUPDTTHIEF OF POLICE

SUBJECT: RESTRICTED DUTY

DATE: NOVEMBER 2, 2020

RE: INTERNAL AFFAIRS # 19-06

Effective Tuesday, November 3, 2020, you will be placed on Restricted Duty. You will report to
Major Steven Thomas. You will work Tuesday through Saturdayduringthe hours of 4:00 P.M.
10 12:00 AM, in the Telephone Crime Reporting Unit.

‘While classified as on Restricted Duty, you are not permitted to wear your firearm in your
restricted capacity. You are restricted from the following:

1. Wearing your Riviera Beach Police Department uniform - restricted duty officers are
required to wear BUSINESS attire. (See Riviera Beach Police Department Uniform
‘Standards on Power DMS).

2. Working on Off-Duty Details outsideofthe Agency.

3. Restricted from working any extended tours of duty without the expressed written
permissionof your District Commander.

4. While on Restricted Duty assignment, Police Personnel are not authorized to have assigned
take home vehicles, nor are they allowed to drive a marked vehicle.

5. While on Restricted Duty assignment, you are not authorized to ride as a passenger in a
ride-along capacity with another officer. Prior approval is required by the Commanding
Officer.

g@ fu

( a



Restricted Duty
Sergeant rian Jackson
LA. #1906

Should you have any questions or concerns, feel free to contact me.

ce. Michael B. Madden, Assistant ChiefofPolice
Steven Thomas, Major of Police
Eureka Young, Interim Director of Human Resources
Eugenia Francis-Cowart, Payroll

|

| Page20f2
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foe] CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH
{SET 500 WEST BLUE MERON BD. + RIERA SEAGH, FLORIDA SuA0t
thay see aon

March 25, 2020

Via Certified Mail Return Receipt Requested

Ralph E. King, IIT
707 N. Flagler Drive

‘West Palm Beach, FL 33401

RE: Request Pursuant to's. 112.532(4) (b), Florida Statutes
Sergeant Brian Jackson— LA. # 19-06

] Dear Attorney King:

| Pursuant to your request dated March 20,2020, attached please find the entire investigative file

| as it pertains to the above referenced.

Upon receipt, please contact Ms. Robinson @ 561-845-4174, to schedule the Pre-Disciplinary
Determination Meeting.

Respectfully,

HH
Chiefof Police

VIERA REACTS FLORIDA. Tie Be Wits oye Wi Toi, WkTr



CITYOFRIVIERABEACH P.O,BOX10682 RIVIERABEACH,FLORIDA33419

FOLICE DEPARTMENT INTER-DEPARTMENT COMMUNICATION

TO: BRIAN JACKSON, SERGEANT OF POLICE

FROM: NATHAN OS 2 [EF OF POLICE

DATE: MARCH 19, 2020

RE: RELIEVED OF DUTY: INTERNAL AFFAIRS CASE # 19-06

eeepeeSeereS——— ee

Effective immediately, you are hereby relieved of duty with pay.

NO/sar

(



CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH . Po. BOX 10682 . RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA 33419

POLICE DEPARTMENT INTER DEPARTMENTAL COMMUNICATION

TO: BRIAN JACKSON, SERGEANT OF POLICE

FROM: NATHAN OS, F POLICE

DATE: MARCH 19,
RE: AMENDED - NOTICE OF INTENT TO ADMINISTER DISCIPLINARY ACTION —
LA. #1906

On June 21, 2019, you attempted to conduct a traffic stop on a suspect, who in his attempt to flee
struck your marked patrol vehicle. The suspect was later apprehended behind a residence at 1516
‘West 36™ Street, Riviera Beach, Florida.

During your sworn recorded interview, you acknowledged you struck the suspect by providing
discretionary blows to distract him because you thought he was reaching for a weapon. Based on
the Body Worn Camera footage, when you arrived on scene, you had an aggressive stance, and
‘your fists were clinched. You approached the suspect while he was sitting on the ground with his
hands up. At that time, Captain Foster directed everyone to “Go dark”. You later discovered,
what you thought was a weapon, was a cellular phone.

Youalso acknowledged you were unsureif you were the only supervisor that struck the suspect,
Towevel, you knew you punched him more than twice.

‘You sated you were not wearing your department issued Body Worn Camera, nor ves, during
the apprehensionofthe suspect, therefore your useof countermeasures was not documented.

On October 18, 2018, you signed the Department's General Order, acknowledging receipt of the
| policy governing the wear and usage of the Body Worn Camera.

“The Body Worn Camera is utilized to capture interactions between Law Enforcement and the
public by providing recorded evidenceofactions, conditions and statements.

‘You did not adhere to the Department's standard operating procedures, policies and directives,
which precluded you from faithfully executing the duties of your assigned position.

Therefore, I conclude that SERGEANT BRIAN JACKSON has violated the following
Policy and Procedures and or Rules and Regulations:

GENERAL ORDER 2018-3 — BODY WORN CAMERA

14- POLICY
tis the policy of the Riviera Beach Police Department to utilize a Body Worn Camera to
document Law Enforcement interactions with the public by providing recorded evidence of
actions, conditions, and statements. The Department has a legal right to capture and record
footage during all official interactions.

Page 10f2



Amended - Notice of Intent to Administer Disciplinary Action
Brian Jackson
LA #1906

17__ ASSIGNMENT, ISSUANCE, AND OPERATION:

B. Operation and use of the BWC by officers is mandatory while working any
uniformed assignments to include but not limited to:

1. Regular and overtime On-Duty Patrol.

RIVIERA BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT
POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL;
RULES AND REGULATIONS
SECTION IV, PART IV ~ NEGLECT OF DUTY OFFENSES:

4.14 NEGLECT OF DUTY: LOAFING, INATTENTION TO DUTIES/PROCEDURES:

Riviera Beach Police Department personnel shall be attentive to job duties and shall avoid any
appearance of loafing or neglecting work while on duly. Riviera Beach Police Department
personnel shall adhere to standard operating procedures, policies and directives, and shall
faithfully execute all the duties and responsibilitiesoftheir assigned position. (A violation is
subject to reprimand, suspension, and/or demotion,ordismissal.)

SUSTAINED

ESS. 784.03 BATTERY

SUSTAINED

| Official Misconduct

FE... 838.022 OFFICIAL MISCONDUCT

SUSTAINED

Based on the foregoing,1 am recommending to the City Manager the following:

«Termination for these violations.

cei Michael Madden, Assistant ChiefofPolice
Rosalyn Dickerson, Directorof Human Resources.

Page20f2



CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH . P.O. BOX 10682 . RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA 33419
REa Es,
POLICE DEPARTMENT INTER DEPARTMENTAL COMMUNICATION
a

TO: BRIAN JACKSON, SERGEANT OF POLICE

FROM: NATHAN OS F POLICE

DATE: MARCH 19,

RE: AMENDED - NOTICE OF INTENT TO ADMINISTER DISCIPLINARY ACTION
LA. #19-06

OnJune21, 2019, you attempted to conducta traffic stop on a suspect, who in his attempt to flee
struck your marked patrol vehicle. The suspect was later apprehended behind a residence at 1516
‘West 36™ Street, Riviera Beach, Florida.

During your sworn recorded interview, you acknowledged you struck the suspect by providing
discretionary blowsto distract him because you thought he was reaching for a weapon. Based on
the Body Worn Camera footage, when you arrived on scene, you had an aggressive stance, and
your fists were clinched. You approached the suspect while he was sitting on the ground with his
hands up. At that time, Captain Foster directed everyone to “Go dark”. You later discovered,
what you thought was a weapon, was a cellular phone.

You also acknowledged you were unsure if you were the only supervisor that struck the suspect,
However, you knew you punched him more than twice.

| ‘You stated you were not wearing your department issued Body Worn Camera, nor ves, during
the apprehensionofthe suspect, therefore your use of countermeasures was not documented.

| On October 18, 2018, you signed the Department's General Order, acknowledging receiptofthe,
policy governingthe wear and usageofthe Body Worn Camera

“The Body Worn Camera is utilized to capture interactions between Law Enforcement and the
public by providing recorded evidence of actions, conditions and statements.

You did not adhere to the Department's standard operating procedures, policies and directives,
which precluded you from faithfully executing the duties of your assigned position.

“Therefore,I conclude that SERGEANT BRIAN JACKSON has violated the following
Policy and Procedures and or Rules and Regulations:

GENERAL ORDER 2018-3 ~ BODY WORN CAMERA

14-POLICY

tis the policyofthe Riviera Beach Police Department to utilize a Body Worn Camera to
document Law Enforcement interactions with the public by providing recorded evidence of
actions, conditions, and statements. The Department has a legal right to capture and record
footage during all official interactions.

Page 10f2
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Amended - Notice of Intent to Administer Disciplinary Action
Brian Jackson
LA #1906

17__ ASSIGNMENT, ISSUANCE, AND OPERATION:

B. Operation and useofthe BWC by officers is mandatory while working any
uniformed assignments to include but not limited to:

1. Regular and overtime On-Duty Patrol.

RIVIERA BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT
POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL;
RULES AND REGULATIONS
SECTION IV, PART IV ~ NEGLECT OF DUTY OFFENSES:

4.14 NEGLECT OF DUTY: LOAFING, INATTENTION TO DUTIES/PROCEDURES:

Riviera Beach Police Department personnel shall be attentive to job duties and shall avoid any
appearanceof loafing or neglecting work while on duly. Riviera Beach Police Department
personnel shall adhere to standard operating procedures, policies and directives, and shall
faithfully execute all the duties and responsibilitiesoftheir assigned position. (A violation is
subject to reprimand, suspension, and/or demotion, or dismissal.)

SUSTAINED

F.SS.784.03 BATTERY

SUSTAINED

| Official Misconduct

FE.S.5. 838.022 OFFICIAL MISCONDUCT

( SUSTAINED

Based on the foregoing, I am recommending to the City Manager the following:

«Termination for theseviolations.

cei Michael Madden, Assistant Chiefof Police
Rosalyn Dickerson, Director ofHuman Resources

Page20f2



TT PALM BEACH COUNTY
POLICE BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION, INC.

10 lo Mags RodslchFL 060+561) 37SG11Fos
others

March 20, 2020

in Sent By E- Mai: NOsgood@rbpublicsafety.org

er Nate Osgood, ChiefofPolice Riviera Beach
. Police Department

padi 600 W. Blue Heron Bivd
Lan Riviera Beach, FL 33404

Eigse Re: Request Pursuant o's. 112 532(4)b), Florida Statutes
Ju... Oe. Brian JacksonfA 19.06
LaoPegs
or Dear Chief Osgood:
Keven As you know, this organization is the State cerified exclusive collective
a bargaining representative for the officer subject of Internal Affairs Case; for whom

} — the undersigned is the Employee's attorney.
Gegaten
Bd By this correspondence on the officer's behal, request is made fo a Pre-

Statdrmie Disciplinary Determination Meeting with regard to which an appointment with you

necessarily is requested, also. In advance of the Pre-Discipinary meeting,
However, and pursuant o the statue referenced above, request hereby is made
for a copy of the completed investigative report and all evidence” relating to the
investigation, including but not limited {0 the ent investigative fle, videos, and
the recorded statements andlor transcripts of recorded statements in the
investigation. Al of said evidence is essential in advance of the officer's meeting
with you pio to any discipinary action being taken.

My Assistant, Courtney Lawrenson wil contact you 50 that an appointment
might be made ith you reasonably afer our receipt of the information requesied.
‘Should you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate o cal me.

Thank you for your anticipated cooperation

Respectuly,
Ralph E. King, Il sgnodin absonceto expacte dolvery)

Ralph E. King, I
Legal Counsel
wl
Ge: John Kazaniian, President

TeofimBeachCounty san Enforcement

|



TO: BRIAN JACKSON, SERGEANT OF POLICE

FROM: NATHAN OS -€HIEF OF POLICE

DATE: MARCH 19, 2020

RE: RELIEVED OF DUTY: INTERNAL AFFAIRS CASE # 19-06

-

Effective immediately, you are hereby relieved of duty with pay.

NO/sar



TO: BRIAN JACKSON, SERGEANT OF POLICE

FROM: NATHAN OS a [EF OF POLICE

DATE: MARCH 19, 2020

RE: RELIEVED OF DUTY: INTERNAL AFFAIRS CASE # 19-06

eree————————eete——————————

Effective immediately, you are hereby relieved of duty with pay.

NO/sar

[

[



RECEIPT FOR HAND-DELIVERED CITY

CORRESPONDENCE

DELIVERED TO: BRIAN JACKSON, SERGEANT OF POLICE

DATE: MARCH 19,2020

SIGNATURE:

I Blau Jackseel
(SERNAME) RINT NAME)

RSON RECEIVING CORRESPONDENCE

—————————————————————————

[ pELIVERD BY: __7 V5

SIGNATURE:

, 7 Ji sed
(SIGN NAME) (PRINT NAME)

PERSON DELIVERING CORRESPONDENCE

Amended Notice of Intent & Paid Leave Memo.



TN bce TT PALM BEACH COUNTY

POLICE BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION, INC.

\ titan

February 20,2020fo
a Sent By E-Mail: JEvans@rivierabeach org

oti Jonathan Evans, City Manager
i Riviera Beach Police Depariment

oa onrh 600W. Blue Heron Bivd
og Rivera Beach, FL 33404
RedMts Re: Request Pursuant os. 112532040), Florida Statues
Pott Sgt. Brian Jackson/lA 19-06

Loatene
yeurh Dear Hr. Evans:
Keni As you know, ths organization is the State carted exclusive colectve

| Jo bargaining fepreseniaie fo th officer subject of Intemal Afars Case; for whom
| ecory the undersigned is the Employee's attorney.

Gsm
) PoimBechGandensbD By this correspondence on the officer's behalf, request is made for a Pre-

iSyanips Disciplinary Determination Meeting with regard to which an appointment with you

necessarly s requested, aso.
My Assistant, Courtney Laurenson wil contact you so tha an appointment

| might be ade wih you reasonably aftr ou receipt of he information requested
| Should you have any questions or concerns, lease do not hesiiate to call me.

| “Thank you or your anicated cooperation.

Respectfully,

Ralph €. King, 11 (simedinabsoncotoorpodtodaivey)

Ralph E. King, I
Legal Counsel

io
Cos John Kazanjian, President

ekeBeach CounsLaw Enforcement



CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH . Po. BOX 10862 . RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA 33419

POLICE DEPARTMENT INTERDEPARTMENTAL COMMUNICATION
TO: JONATHAN EVANS, CITY MANAGER ~ RECEIVED

FEB
FROM: SPENCER L. ROZIER, INTERIM CHIEF OFvous) Teen

EXECUNVE DEPARTMENT]
DATE: FEBRUARY 13,2020

RE; RECOMMENDATION TO ADMINISTER DISCIPLINARY ACTION - r

BRIAN JACKSON, SERGEANT OF POLICE LA. #19-06

On June 21, 2019, Sergeant Brian Jackson attempted to conduct a traffic stop on a suspect, who
in his attempt to flee, struck his marked patrol vehicle

Sergeant Jackson pursued the suspect who was later apprehended behind a residence at 1516
‘West 36™ Street, Riviera Beach, Florida.

Based on the video footage from Captain Foster's Body Worn Camera, the suspect is seen laying
faced down with his hands behind his back, and not in handcuffs. When Sergeant Jackson
arrived on scene, Captain Foster can be heard saying, “go dead.” Officers who were in the
immediate vicinity with the suspect, complied with his command and turned their Body Worn
Cameras off.

During Sergeant Jackson's sworn recorded interview, he acknowledged he struck the suspect by
providing discretionary blows to distract him because he thought he was reaching for a weapon.
‘Sergeant Jackson later discovered the suspected weapon was the suspect's cellular phone.

Sergeant Jackson acknowledged he was unsureifhe was the only supervisor that struck the
suspect, however, ie knew he punched him more than twice to gain compliance. However, due
to Captain Foster's command and Sergeant Jackson not wearing his Body Worn Camera, this
was not captured.
‘Sergeant Jackson was treated at St. Mary’s Medical Center for injuries sustained on the knuckle
of his right hand.
Sergeant Jackson acknowledged he was not wearing his department issued Body Wom Camera,
which is utilized to capture interactions between Law Enforcement and the public by providing
recorded evidenceof actions, conditions and statements.
Sergeant Jackson did not adhere to the Department's standard operating procedures, policies and
directives, which precluded him from faithfully executing the dutiesofhis assigned position.

On October 18, 2018, Sergeant Jackson signed the Department's General Order, acknowledging
receiptofthe policy governing the wear and usageof the Body Worn Camera.

Therefore, I conclude that based on the facts and circumstances developed during the
administrative investigativeprocess, SBRGEANT BRIAN JACKSON has violated the
following Policy and Procedures and or Rules and Regulations:
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Jackson, Brian
Recommendation to Administer Disciplinary Action
LA#1906

RIVIERA BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT
POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL;
RULES AND REGULATIONS
SECTION IV, PART IV ~ NEGLECT OF DUTY OFFENSES:

GENERAL ORDER 2018-3 ~ BODY WORN CAMERA

1.4- POLICY
Its thepolicyofthe Riviera Beach Police Department to utilize a Body Worn Camera to
document Law Enforcement interactions with the public by providing recorded evidence of
actions, conditions, and statements. The Department has a legal right to capture and record
footage during all official interactions.

17__ ASSIGNMENT, ISSUANCE, AND OPERATION:

B. Operation and use of the BWC by officers is mandatory while working any
uniformed assignments to include but not limited to:

I. Regular and overtime On-Duty Patrol.

RIVIERA BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT
POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL;
RULES AND REGULATIONS

/ SECTION IV, PART IV ~ NEGLECT OF DUTY OFFENSES:

| 4.14 NEGLECT OF DUTY: LOAFING, INATTENTION TO DUTIES/PROCEDURES:

Riviera Beach Police Department personnel shall be attentive to job duties and shall avoid any
appearance of loafing or neglecting work while on duty. Riviera Beach Police Department
‘personnel shall adhere to standard operating procedures, policies and directives, and shall
faithfully execute all the duties and responsibilitiesoftheir assigned position. (A violation is
subject to reprimand, suspension, and/or demotion,ordismissal.)

Based on the foregoing,I am recommending the following:

« Twenty-Four Working Hours (3 working days) suspension without pay for these
violations.

On January 27, 2020, Sergeant Jackson was served an Amended Noticeof Intent to Administer
Disciplinary Action. Sergeant Jackson invoked his rights to a Pre-Disciplinary Determination
Meeting within the contractual timeframe governed by the PBA contract. A Pre-Disciplinary
Determination Meeting was held on February 4, 2020.
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Jackson, Bran
Recommendation to Administer Disciplinary Action
1A. #1906

CITY MANAGER:

AGRE DISAGREE

comments:

SIGNATURE: PRINT NAME:

oATE: -

ci Michael Madden, Assistant Chief of Police/Operations
Rosalyn Dickerson, Director of Human Resources
Ashley Rhodes, Payroll

SLR/toy
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CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH - MEMORANDUM

Icialis

TO: CHIEF OSGOOD

ofr”
FROM: JONATHAN E. EVANS, CITY MANAGI

SUBJECT: SGT. JACKSON —- RBPD TERMINATION

} DATE: MARCH 16, 2020

|
oC: HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

—_—— rr

i Pursuant to the information furnished to city administration by Chief of Police Osgood, Iconcur

with the provided recommendation. I am profoundly disappointed that Sgt. Jackson acted in such
| te ilyconradxpacitons for fw anor

atevo ar apacted be adr th Gparment. Not propery wing (he
vad Some comeroducie tthe direst | ih a moveh orpmiation, and

ete abi hihi cament of lw coresmenswork AS WE ook
toward becoming an accredited public safety organization, we cannot have individuals who refuse
ape and procedures. Fathers, any behwor tht Jeopardies the tgry of
katoba worn by el ow snforsmt is sncsepabi and cable

understand he ssp ston wre npproprt nd very dangerous bt consent wih
reeang to sport caelof$0 th ind t ndstand tatinsony
toe We ty tied han Sunons He ths profoundly rently.

gen, 1 concur ith th commendation snd move hat wo termine Sgt. Brian Jackson's
eticasl, dnt n plc chie 1 immediately cole nd rte ll
emitteRiis seh Peice Deport, snd momHRofthe termination.

-



CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH . Po. BOX 10662 . RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA 33419

POLICE DEPARTMENT INTER DEPARTMENTAL COMMUNICATION
ONATHAN EVANS, CHV JIANAGER

yy RECEIVED 1
FROM: NATHAN OSG. CHIEF OF POLICE i |

V ! MAR 19 200 { arom) |
. i R12DATE: MARCH 12, 7020

RE: RECOMMENDATION TO ADMINISTER DISCIPLINARY ACTION - LA.
#1906

SUBJ. BRIAN JACKSON, SERGEANT OF POLICE

On June 21, 2019, Sergeant Brian Jackson attempted to conducta traffic stop on a suspect, who
in his attempt to flee, struck his marked patrol vehicle.

Sergeant Jackson pursued the suspect who was later apprehended behind the residence at 1516
West 36" Street, Riviera Beach, Florida.

Based on the video footage from Captain Foster's Body Worn Camera, the suspecti seen laying
faced down with his hands behind his back, and not in handcuffs. When Sergeant Jackson
arrived on scene, Captain Foster can be heard saying, “go dead.” Officers who were in the
immediate vicinity with the suspect, complied with his command and turned their Body Worn
Cameras off. |

| During Sergeant Jackson's sworn recorded interview, he acknowledged he struck the suspect by
| providing discretionary blows to distract him because he thought he was reaching fora weapon.

Sergeant Jackson later discovered the suspected weapon was the suspect's cellular phone.

| Sergeant Jackson acknowledged he was unsure if he was the only supervisor that struck the
suspect, however, he knew he punched him more than twice to gain compliance.

Sergeant Jackson acknowledged he was notwearinghis department issued Body Worn Camera,
whichi utilized to capture interactions between Law Enforcement and the public by providing
recorded evidenceofactions, conditions and statements.

Sergeant Jackson was treated at St. Mary's Medical Center for injuries sustained on the knuckle
ofhis right hand.
Sergeant Jackson did not adhere to the Department’ standard operating procedures, policies and
directives, which precluded him from faithfully executing the duties ofhis assigned position.

On October 18, 2018, Sergeant Jackson signed the Department's General Order, acknowledging
receiptofthe policy governing the wear and usage of the Body Wor Camera.

Therefore,I conclude that based on the facts and circumstances developed during the
administrative investigative process, SERGEANT BRIAN JACKSON has violated the
following Policy and Procedures and or Rules and Regulations:
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Amended - Recommendation to Administer Disciplinary Action
LA#15.06
Brian Jackson

RIVIERA BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT
POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL;
RULES AND REGULATIONS
SECTION IV, PART IV ~ NEGLECT OF DUTY OFFENSES:

GENERAL ORDER 2018-3 - BODY WORN CAMERA

14- POLICY
tis the policyof the Riviera Beach Police Department to utilize a Body Worn Camera to
document Law Enforcement interactions with the public by providing recorded evidence of
‘actions, conditions, and statements. The Department has a legal right to capture and record
footage during al official interactions.

17__ ASSIGNMENT, ISSUANCE, AND OPERATION:

B. Operation and use of the BWC by officers is mandatory while working any
uniformed assignments to include but not limited to:

1. Regular and overtime On-Duty Patrol

RIVIERA BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT
POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL;
RULES AND REGULATIONS
SECTION IV, PART IV ~ NEGLECT OF DUTY OFFENSES:

4.14 -NEGLECT OF DUTY: LOAFING, INATTENTION TO DUTIES/PROCEDURES:

Riviera Beach Police Department personnel shall be attentive ojob duties and shall avoid any
appearance of loafing or neglecting work while on duty. Riviera Beach Police Department
personnel shall adhere to standard operating procedures, policies and directives, and shall
Taithfully execute all the duties and responsibilities of their assigned position. (A violation is
Subject to reprimand, suspension, and/or demotion,or dismissal.)

Based on the foregoing, 1 am recommending the following:

«Termination for these violations.

On January 21, 2020, Sergeant Brian Jackson was served a Notice of Intent to Administer
Disciplinary Action. Sergeant Jackson invoked his rights toa Pre-Disciplinary Determination
Meeting within the contractual timeframe governed by the PBA contract. A Pre-Disciplinary
Determination Mecting was held on Tuesday, February 4, 2020.
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Recommendation to Administer Disciplinary Acton
1A #1906
Jackson, Brian

CITY MANAGER:

VV acreE DISAGREE

COMMENTS: ldo!
flonse de :

pee—— meee ——eeeeees

SIGNATURE: C2 PRINTNAME: _Souabban Eats

| DATE: 3-lg-202°

|
/

ce: Michael Madden, Assistant Chief of Police
Rosalyn Dickerson, Director of Human Resources
Ashley Rhodes, Payroll
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© CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH . Fo. BOX 10602 . RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA 33419
CIT AERTRABRAT ia rrreonssae
POLICE DEPARTMENT INTERDEPARTMENTAL COMMUNICATION
FoucEDEeaRTMENTI

: ATHAN EVA ANA
[RECEIVED |

FROM: NATHAN O; €HIEF OF POLICE } 2° |
I uamaswe

DATE: MARCH 12,7020 { {

RE: RECOMMENDATION TO ADMINISTER DISCIPLINARY ACTION-TA. ~~

#1906

SUBL: BRIAN JACKSON, SERGEANT OF POLICE
.
On June 21, 2019, Sergeant Brian Jackson attempted to conduct a traffic stop on a suspect, who
in his attempt to flee, struck his marked patrol vehicle.

Sergeant Jackson pursued the suspect who was later apprehended behind the residence at 1516
‘West 36" Street, Riviera Beach, Florida.

Based on the video footage from Captain Foster's Body Wor Camera, the suspeet is seen laying
faced down with his hands behind his back, and not in handcuffs. When Sergeant Jackson

[ rived on saene, Captain Foster can be heard saying, “go dead.” Officers who were in the
immediate vicinity with the suspect, complied with his command and turned their Body Worn
Cameras off.
During Sergeant Jackson's sworn recorded interview, he acknowledged he struck the suspect by
providing discretionary blows to distract him because he thoughthe was reaching fora weapon.
Sergeant Jackson later discovered the suspected weapon was the suspect's celular phone.

Sergeant Jackson acknowledged he was unsureif he was the only supervisor that struck the
Suspect, however, he knew he punched him more than twice to gain compliance.

Sergeant Jackson acknowledged he was not wearing his department issued Body Worn Camera,
which is utilized to capture interactions between Law Enforcement and the public by providing
recorded evidence of actions, conditions and statements.

Sergeant Jackson was treated at St. Mary's Medical Center for injuries sustained on the knuckle:
ofhis right hand.
Sergeant Jackson did not adhere to the Department's standard operating procedures, policies and
directives, which precluded him from faithfully executing the duties of his assigned position.

On October 18, 2018, Sergeant Jackson signed the Department's General Order, acknowledging
receiptofthe policy governing the wear and usageofthe Body Worn Camera.

Therefore, I conclude that based on the facts and circumstances developed during the
administrative investigative process, SERGEANT BRIAN JACKSON has violated the
following Policy and Procedures and or Rules and Regulations:
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Amended - Recommendation to Administer Disciplinary Action
LA #1906
Brian Jackson

RIVIERA BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT
POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL;
RULES AND REGULATIONS
SECTION IV, PART IV ~ NEGLECT OF DUTY OFFENSES:

GENERAL ORDER 2018-3 ~ BODY WORN CAMERA

1.4- POLICY

Itis the policy of the Riviera Beach Police Departmentto utilizea Body Worn Camera to
document Law Enforcement interactions with the public by providing recorded evidence of
actions, conditions, and statements. The Department has a legal right to capture and record
footage during all official interactions.

17__ ASSIGNMENT, ISSUANCE, AND OPERATION:

B. Operation and useof the BWC by officers is mandatory while working any
j uniformed assignments to include but not limited to:

| 1. Regular and overtime On-Duty Patrol.

RIVIERA BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT
| POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL; .

RULES AND REGULATIONS
( SECTION IV, PART IV ~ NEGLECT OF DUTY OFFENSES:

4.14 -NEGLECT OF DUTY: LOAFING, INATTENTION TO DUTIES/PROCEDURES:

Riviera Beach Police Department personnel shall be attentive to job duties and shall avoid any
appearanceof loafing or neglecting work while on duty. Riviera Beach Police Department
personnel shall adhere to standard operating procedures, policies and directives, and shall
faithfully execute all the duties and responsibilitiesof their assigned position. (A violation is
subject to reprimand, suspension, and/or demotion,ordismissal.)

Based on the foregoing, I am recommending the following:

© Termination for these violations.

On January 21, 2020, Sergeant Brian Jackson was served a Noticeof Intent to Administer
Disciplinary Action. Sergeant Jackson invoked his rights to a Pre-Disciplinary Determination
Meeting within the contractual timeframe governed by the PBA contract. A Pre-Disciplinary
Determination Meating was held on Tuesday, February 4, 2020.

Page20f3



CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH . Po. BOX 10662 . RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA 33419
CITYOFRIVERABEACH ee ee
POLICE DEPARTMENT INTERDEPARTMENTAL COMMUNICATION
POLCEDEPARTMENT
=T0: JONATHANEVANS,CITY MANAGER __

FROM SPENCER L. ROZIER, INTERIM CHIEF OFoe)

DATE: FEBRUARY 13,2020

RE: RECOMMENDATION TO ADMINISTER DISCIPLINARY ACTION -

BRIAN JACKSON, SERGEANT OF POLICE LA. #19-06
-
On June 21, 2019, Sergeant Brian Jackson attempted to conductatraffic stop on a suspect, who
in his attempt to flee, struck his marked patrol vehicle.

Sergeant Jackson pursued the suspect who was later apprehended behind a residence at 1516
‘West 36™ Street, Riviera Beach, Florida.

Based on the video footage from Captain Foster's Body Worn Camera, the suspect is seen laying
faced down with his hands behind his back, and not in handcuffs. When Sergeant Jackson

| arrived on scene, Captain Foster can be heard saying, “go dead.” Officers who were in the
immediate vicinity with the suspect, complied with his command and turned their Body Worn
Cameras off.

During Sergeant Jackson's sworn recorded interview, he acknowledged he struck the suspect by
providing discretionary blows to distract him because he thought he was reaching for a weapon.
Sergeant Jackson later discovered the suspected weapon was the suspect's cellular phone.

‘Sergeant Jackson acknowledged he was unsure if he was the only supervisor that struck the
Suspect, however, he knew he punched him more than twice to gain compliance. However, due
to CaptainFoster's command and Sergeant Jackson not wearing his Body Worn Camera, this
was not captured.

‘Sergeant Jackson was treated at St. Mary's Medical Center for injuries sustained on the knuckle
of his ight hand.

Sergeant Jackson acknowledged he was not wearing his department issued Body Worn Camera,
‘which is utilized to capture interactions between Law Enforcement and the public by providing
recorded evidenceofactions, conditions and statements.

Sergeant Jackson did not adhere to the Department's standard operating procedures, policies and
directives, which precluded him from faithfully executing the duties of his assigned position.

On October 18, 2018, Sergeant Jackson signed the Department's General Order, acknowledging
receipt of the policy governing the wear and usage of the Body Worn Camera.

Therefore, I conclude that based on the facts and circumstances developed during the
administrative investigative process, SERGEANT BRIAN JACKSON has violated the
following Policy and Procedures and or Rules and Regulations:
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Jackson, Brian
Recommendation to Administer Disciplinary Action
LA. #1906

RIVIERA BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT
POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL;
RULES AND REGULATIONS
SECTION IV, PART IV ~ NEGLECT OF DUTY OFFENSES:

GENERAL ORDER 2018-3 ~ BODY WORN CAMERA

1.4-POLICY :

Is the policyofthe Riviera Beach Police Department to utilize a Body Worn Camera to
document Law Enforcement interactions with the public by providing recorded evidence of
actions, conditions, and statements. The Department has a legal right to capture and record
footage during all official interactions.

17__ ASSIGNMENT, ISSUANCE, AND OPERATION:

[ B. Operation and use of the BWC by officers is mandatory while working any
uniformed assignments to include but not limited to:

1. Regular and overtime On-Duty Patrol.

RIVIERA BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT
POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL;
RULES AND REGULATIONS
SECTION IV, PART IV - NEGLECT OF DUTY OFFENSES:

4.14 NEGLECT OF DUTY: LOAFING, INATTENTION TO DUTIES/PROCEDURES:

Riviera Beach Police Department personnel shall be attentive to job duties and shall avoid any
appearance of loafing or neglecting work while on duty. Riviera Beach Police Department
‘personnel shall adhere to standard operating procedures, policies and directives, and shall
ithfully execute all the duties and responsibilitiesof their assigned position. (A violation is
subject to reprimand, suspension, and/or demotion,ordismissal.)

Based on the foregoing,| am recommending the following:

+ “Twenty-Four Working Hours (3 working days) suspension without pay for these
violations.

On January 27, 2020, Sergeant Jackson was served an Amended Notice of Intent to Administer
Disciplinary Action. Sergeant Jackson invoked his rights to a Pre-Disciplinary Determination
Meeting within the contractual timeframe governed by the PBA contract. A Pre-Disciplinary
Determination Meeting was held on February 4, 2020.
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Jackson, Brian
Recommendation to Administer Disciplinary Action
1A. #1906

CITY MANAGER:

AGREE DISAGREE

covwenrs:

-

SIGNATURE: PRINT NAME:

DATE: —

ci Michael Madden, Assistant Chief of Policc/Operations
| Rosalyn Dickerson, Director of Human Resources

Ashley Rhodes, Payroll

SLR/tov

]
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CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH . Po. BOX 10662 . RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA 33419
TYOFRRABAGH +
POLICE DEPARTMENT INTER DEPARTMENTAL COMMUNICATION
FouceDemaRTMENTI
=T0r—JONATHANEVANS,CITYMANAGER __

FROM: SPENCER L.ROZIER, INTERIM CHIEF OFvouce

DATE: FEBRUARY 13,2020

RE; RECOMMENDATION TO ADMINISTER DISCIPLINARY ACTION -

BRIAN JACKSON, SERGEANT OF POLICE LA. #19-06
a
OnJune 21,2019, Sergeant Brian Jackson attempted to conducta traffic stop on a suspect, who
in his attempt to flee, struck his marked patrol vehicle.

Sergeant Jackson pursued the suspect who was later apprehended behind a residence at 1516
‘West 36" Street, Riviera Beach, Florida.

Based on the video footage from Captain Foster's Body Worn Camera, the suspect is seen laying.
faced down with his hands behind his back, and not in handcuffs. When Sergeant Jackson
arrived on scene, Captain Foster can be heard saying, “go dead.” Officers who were in the
immediate vicinity with the suspect, complied with his command and turned their Body Worn
Cameras off.
During Sergeant Jackson's sworn recorded interview, he acknowledged he struck the suspect by
providing discretionary blows to distract him because he thought he was reaching for a weapon

| Sergeant Jackson later discovered the suspected weapon was the suspect's cellular phone.

Sergeant Jackson acknowledged he was unsure if he was the only supervisor that struck the
Suspect, however, he knew he punched him more than twice to gain compliance. However, duc
to Captain Foster's command and Sergeant Jackson not wearing his Body Worn Camera, this
was not captured.

‘Sergeant Jackson was treated at St, Mary’s Medical Center for injuries sustained on the knuckle
of his right hand,

Sergeant Jackson acknowledged he was not wearing his department issued Body Worn Camera,
which is utilized to capture interactions between Law Enforcement and thepublicby providing
recorded evidenceofactions, conditions and statements.

Sergeant Jackson did not adhere to the Department's standard operating procedures, policies and
directives, which precluded him from faithfully executing the duticsofhis assigned position.

On October 18, 2018, Sergeant Jackson signed the Department's General Order, acknowledging
receiptofthe policy governing the wear and usageof the Body Worn Camera.

Therefore, I conclude that based on the facts and circumstances developed during the
administrative investigative process, SERGEANT BRIAN JACKSON has violated the
following Policy and Procedures and or Rules and Regulations:
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Jackson, Brian
Recommendation to Administer Disciplinary Action
1A.1#19:06

RIVIERA BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT
POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL;
RULES AND REGULATIONS
SECTION IV, PART IV ~ NEGLECT OF DUTY OFFENSES:

GENERAL ORDER 2018-3 - BODY WORN CAMERA

1.4- POLICY,
tis thepolicyofthe Riviera Beach Police Department to utilize a Body Worn Camera to
document Law Enforcement interactions with the public by providing recorded evidence of
actions, conditions, and statements. The Department has a legal right to capture and record
footage during all official interactions.

17__ ASSIGNMENT, ISSUANCE, AND OPERATION:

B. Operation and uscof the BWC by officers is mandatory while working any
uniformed assignments to include but not limited to:

1. Regular and overtime On-Duty Patrol.

RIVIERA BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT
POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL;
RULES AND REGULATIONS

| SECTION IV, PART IV ~ NEGLECT OF DUTY OFFENSES:

4.14 NEGLECT OF DUTY: LOAFING, INATTENTION TO DUTIES/PROCEDURES:

Riviera Beach Police Department personnel shall be attentive to job duties and shall avoid any
appearanceof loafing or neglecting work while on duty. Riviera Beach Police Department
personnel shall adhere to standard operating procedures, policies and directives, and shall
faithfully execute all the duties and responsibilities oftheirassigned position. (A violation is
subject to reprimand, suspension, and/or demotion, or dismissal.)

Based on the foregoing, 1 am recommending the following:

«Twenty-Four Working Hours (3 working days) suspension without pay for these
violations.

On January 27, 2020, Sergeant Jackson was served an Amended Notice of Intent to Administer
Disciplinary Action. Sergeant Jackson invoked his rights to a Pre-Disciplinary Determination
Meeting within the contractual timeframe governed by the PBA contract. A Pre-Disciplinary
Determination Meeting was held on February 4, 2020.
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Jackson, Brian
Recommendation to Administer Disciplinary Acton
LA#19.06
anv manacer:

Acree DISAGREE

IEoo——

SIGNATURE: PRINT NAME:

onte:

ce: Michael Madden, AssistantChief of Policc/Operations
Rosalyn Dickerson, DirectorofHuman Resources
Ashley Rhodes, Payroll

SLR/tov
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-

(astin CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH
AGS 600 WEST BLUE HERON BLVD. + RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA 33404
Qa Eas Fax so B454022

February 13,2020

Via Certified Mail Return Receipt Requested

Ralph E. King, Il
Palm Beach County
Police Benevolent Association, Inc.
2100 N. Florida Mango Road
West Palm Beach, FL 33409-6400

Re: Sergeant Brian Jackson— IA # 19-06

Dear Attomey King:

"1 On January 21,2020, Sergeant Brian Jackson was issued a Notice of Intent to Administer
| Disciplinary Action LA. # 19-06

| On January 28, 2020,a request for review/appeal and Pre-Disciplinary Determination Meeting
| was requested consistent with Florida Statute 112.532 (4) (b) and Article 22 3(A) of the Labor
S| Agreement, (City/PBA) October 1, 2016 - September 30, 2019. The Pre-Disciplinary
t| Determination Meeting was held on Tuesday, February 4, 2020.

ol Assesment

S| On June 21, 2019, Sergeant Jackson attempted to conducta traffic stop on a suspect, who in his
«| attempt to flee struck his marked patrol vehicle. Sergeant Jackson gave chase, and the suspect
Z| was apprehended behind a residence at 1516 West 36" Street, Riviera Beach, Florida.

During Sergeant Jackson's sworn recorded interview, he acknowledged he struck the suspect by
providing discretionary blows to distract him because he thought the suspect was reaching for a
weapon, which turned out to be his cellular phone. Sergeant Jackson also acknowledged he
punched the suspect more than twice.
During the apprehension, Sergeant Jackson was not wearing his department issued Body Worn
Camera, nor vest, therefore his useofcountermeasures was not documented.

Conclusion:
“Ihe Body Wor Camera is utilized to capture interactions between Law Enforcement and the
public by providing recorded evidence ofactions, conditions and statements. Sergeant Jackson

RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA... “T1@de of ons Citybn Which Ts Live, Work& Ploy”
evmerabcheom



pre-Discplinary Determination Meeting
Sgt. Brian Jackson
1A.#19-06

signed the Department's General Order governing the wear and usage of the Body Worn
Camera. As such, Sergeant Jackson did not adhere to the Department's standard operating
procedures, policies and directives, which precluded him from faithfully executing the duties of
his assigned position.

Based on the aforementioned; Tam recommending to the City Manager the following:

«Twenty-Four Working Hours (3 days) suspension WITHOUT pay.

Sincerely,

5L Rozier 2
faerimChiefof Police.

| SLR/TOV/st

cc: Jonathan Evans, City Manager
Michael Madden, Assistant Chief ofPolice/Operations
Rosalyn Dickerson, Director of Human Resources

Page20f2
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RECEIPT FOR HAND-DELIVERED CITY

CORRESPONDENCE

DELIVERED TO: RALPH E. KING, 111, ESQ.

DATE: JANU, Y 28,2020

SIGNATURE:

PERSON RECEIVING CORRESPONDENCE

|
DELIVERD BY: TANZY VASSELL, CAPTAIN OF POLICE/INTERNAL

AFFAIRS

SIGNATURE:

Te Lows
SIGN NAVE) (PRINYNAME)

PERSON DELIVERING CORRESPONDENCE

TTERNATAFFAIRSFILE; C'S OF,RECORDEDSTATEMENTS,BWC'S, RADIOTRANSMISSION,EMPLOYEEINUTY



Tir PALM BEACH COUNTY
POLICE BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION, INC.

100 Floris Mong RedPl Be FL EA-000561 89-5745 S41671 Fo
\ Jontiecesy

January 28, 2020Eso
amin Sont By E- Mail: Srozier@rbpublicsafety.ore

Pt Spencer Rozier, nerm Chie of Police
_— Riviera Beach Police Department
Jao 600W. Blue Heron Blvd
FoaveDiete Riviera Beach, FL 33404
Wekmierr Re: Request Pursuant 0:.112.532(4)), Florida Statutes
I. . Sgt. Brian Jackson/lA 19-06

Loupe Dear Chief Rozierrar
ol As you know, this organization is the State certified exclusive collective

Kevinlgn bargaining representative for the officer subject of Internal Affairs Case; for whom
Jo the undersignedis the Employee's attorney.

Gig en By this correspondence on the officer's behalf, request is made for a Pre-
RRO Disciplinary Determination Meeting with regard to which an appointment with you

Soden necessarly is. requested, ako. In advance of the Pre-Discilinary meeting,
However, and pursuant o the statute referenced above, request hereby is made
for a copy of the completed investigative report and all evidence’ relating to the
investigation, including but not limited to the entire investigative file, videos, and
the recorded. statements andlor transcripts of recorded statements in the
investigation. All of said evidence is essential in advance of the officer's meeting
with you prior to any disciplinary action being taken.

My Assistant, Courtney Lawrenson will contact you so that an appointment
might be made with you reasonably afer our receipt of the information requested.
‘Should you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to call me.

Thank you for your anticipated cooperation.

Respectluly,

Ralph €. King, iit (sgnedinatsancotooxpedtadoivory)

Ralph E. King, I
Legal Counsel

Rel
Ce: John Kazanjan, President

Te VatecfPalm Beach County's Law Enforcement



RECEIPT FOR HAND-DELIVERED CITY

CORRESPONDENCE

DELIVERED TO: BRIAN JACKSON, SERGEANT OF POLICE.

DATE: January 27% 2020

SIGNATURE:

heme
NAME PRINT NAVE)

ERSON RECEIVING CORRESPONDENCE

DELIVERD BY: TANZY VASSELL, CAPTAIN OF POLICE/INTERNAL
AFFAIRS

SIGNATURE:

( I V4 be
(SIGN|NAME)' z (PRINT NAME)

PERSON DELIVERING CORRESPONDENCE

AMENDED-NOTICE OF INTENT TO ADMINISTER DISCIPLINARY ACTION- LAJI06



CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH . Fo. BOX 10682 . RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA 33419
TYOTRRABEACH

POLICE DEPARTMENT INTER DEPARTMENTAL COMMUNICATION
ee —

TO: BRIAN JACKSON, SERGEANT OF POLICE

FROM: SPENCER L. ROZIER, INTERIM CHIEF OF POLICE @

DATE: JANUARY 21,2020

RE: AMENDED - NOTICE OF INTENT TO ADMINISTER DISCIPLINARY ACTION —
LA. #19-06

On June 21, 2019, you attempted to conducta traffic stop on a suspect, who in his attempt o flee
struck your marked patrol vehicle, The suspect was later apprehended behind a residence at 1516
‘West 36" Street, Riviera Beach, Florida.

During your sworn recorded interview, you acknowledged you struck the suspect by providing
discretionary blows to distract him because you thought he was reaching for a weapon. You
later discovered the suspected weapon was the suspect's cellular phone.

‘You also acknowledged you were unsure ifyou were the only supervisor that struck the suspect,
however, you knew you punched him more than twice.

You stated you were not wearing your department issued Body Worn Camera, nor vest, during
the apprehension of the suspect, thereforeyour use of countermeasures was not documented.

On October 18, 2018, you signed the Department's General Order, acknowledging receipt of the
policy governing the wear and usage ofthe Body Worn Camera.

“The Body Worn Camera is utilized to capture interactions between Law Enforcement and the
public by providing recorded evidence of actions, conditions and statements.

You did not adhere to the Department's standard operating procedures, policies and directives,
which precluded you from faithfully executing the duties of yourassigned position.

Therefore, I conclude that SERGEANT BRIAN JACKSON has violated the following
Policy and Procedures and or Rules and Regulations: .

GENERAL ORDER 2018-3 BODY WORN CAMERA

14- POLICY

Is the policyofthe Riviera Beach Police Department to utilize a Body Worn Camera to
document Law Enforcement interactions with the public by providing recorded evidence of
actions, conditions, and statements. The Department hasa legal right to capture and record
footage during all official interactions.

17__ ASSIGNMENT, ISSUANCE, AND OPERATION:

B. Operation and use of the BWC by officers is mandatory while working any
uniformed assignments to include but not limited to:

I. Regular and overtime On-Duty Patrol.
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Notice of Intent
Brian Jackson
1A.#19-06

RIVIERA BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT
POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL;
RULES AND REGULATIONS
SECTION IV, PART IV ~ NEGLECT OF DUTY OFFENSES:

4.14 NEGLECT OF DUTY: LOAFING, INATTENTION TO DUTIES/PROCEDURES:

Riviera Beach Police Department personnel shall be attentiveto job duties and shall avoid any
appearanceof loafing or neglecting work while on duty. Riviera Beach Police Department
personnel shall adhere to standard operating procedures, policies and directives, and shall
fithully exceute all the duties and responsibilities of their assigned position. (A violation is
subject to reprimand, suspension, and/or demotion,ordismissal.)

SUSTAINED

Based on the foregoing,I am recommending to the City Manager the following:

| © Twenty-Four Working Hours (3 days) suspension without pay for these violations.

“This information is provided in conformance with the laborcontract between the City of Rivera
| Beach in the Palm Beach County Police Benevolent Association (PBA). Furthermore, you have
| the right to appeal concerning this action via the PBA union contract process, Articles 21 and 22.

: cei Michael Madden, Assistant ChiefofPolice/Operations
Josh Lewis, Major of Police:
Rosalyn Dickerson, Director of Human Resources
Ashley Rhodes, Payroll



CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH . Fo. BOX 10682 - RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA 33419
CITYORRIVIERABEACH PORON ee
POLICE DEPARTMENT INTERDEPARTMENTAL COMMUNICATION

oe,TO: BRIAN JACKSON, SERGEANT OF POLICE

FROM: SPENCER L. ROZIER, INTERIM CHIEF OF POLICE @

DATE: JANUARY 21,2020

RE: AMENDED - NOTICE OF INTENT TO ADMINISTER DISCIPLINARY ACTION —
LA. #19-06

On June 21, 2019, you attempted to conducta traffic stop on a suspect, who in his attempt to flee
struck your marked patrol vehicle. The suspect was later apprehended behind a residence at 1516
West 36" Street, Riviera Beach, Florida.

During your sworn recorded interview, you acknowledged you struck the suspect by providing
discretionary blows to distract him because you thought he was reaching fora weapon. You

| Interdiscovered the suspected weapon was the suspects cellular phone.

‘You also acknowledged you were unsure if you were the only supervisor that struck the suspect,
however, you knew you punched him more than twice.

You stated you were not wearing your department issued Body Worn Camera, nor vest, during
the apprehension of the suspect, therefore your useofcountermeasures was not documented.

On October 18, 2018, you signed the Department's General Order, acknowledging receiptof the
policy governing the wear and usage of the Body Wom Camera.

“The Body Worn Camera is utilized to capture interactions between Law Enforcement and the
public by providing recorded evidenceof actions, conditions and statements,

You did not adhere to the Department's standard operating procedures, policies and directives,
which precluded you from faithfully executing the duties of your assigned position.

Therefore, I conclude that SERGEANT BRIAN JACKSON has violated the following,
Policy and Procedures and or Rules and Regulations:

GENERAL ORDER 2018-3 — BODY WORN CAMERA

1.4- POLICY

is the policyofthe Riviera Beach Police Department to uilize a Body Worn Camera to
document Law Enforcement interactions with the public by providing recorded evidence of
actions, conditions, and statements. The Department has a legal right to capture and record
footage during all official interactions.

17__ ASSIGNMENT, ISSUANCE, AND OPERATION:

B. Operation and use of the BWC by officers is mandatory while working any
uniformed assignments to include but not limited to:

I. Regular and overtime On-Duty Patrol.
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Notice of Intent,
Brian Jackson
1A. 119-06

RIVIERA BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT
POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL;
RULES AND REGULATIONS
SECTION IV, PART IV ~ NEGLECT OF DUTY OFFENSES:

4.14 NEGLECT OF DUTY: LOAFING, INATTENTION TO DUTIES/PROCEDURES:

Riviera Beach Police Department personnel shall be attentive to job duties and shall avoid any
appearance of loafing or neglecting work while on duty. Riviera Beach Police Department
personnel shall adhere to standard operating procedures, policics and directives, and shall
fithfully execute all the duties and responsibilities of their assigned position. (A violation is
subject to reprimand, suspension, and/or demotion, ordismissal.)

SUSTAINED

Based on the foregoing, 1 am recommending to the City Manager the following:

© Twenty-Four Working Hours (3 days) suspension without pay for these violations.

“This information is provided in conformance with the labor contract between the City of Rivera
Beach in the Palm Beach County Police Benevolent Association (PBA). Furthermore, you have

| the right to appeal concerning this action via the PBA union contract process, Articles 21 and 22.

cc: Michael Madden, AssistantChiefofPolice/Operations
Josh Lewis, Major of Police
Rosalyn Dickerson, Director of Human Resources
Ashley Rhodes, Payroll



: CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH 600 W. BLUE HERON BLVD. __ RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA 33404

POLICE DEPARTMENT INTER-DEPARTMENT COMMUNICATION
ee,

TO: BRIAN JACKSON, SERGEANT OF POLICE

FROM: SPENCER L. ROZIER, INTERIM CHIEF OF POLICEa

DATE: JANUARY 21,2020

RE: NOTICE OF INTENT TO ADMINISTER DISCIPLINARY ACTION LA. #19-08

On June 21, 2019, you attempted to conduct a traffic stop on a suspect, who in his attempt to flee
struck your marked patrol vehicle. The suspect was later apprehended behind a residence at 1516
‘West 36" Street, Riviera Beach, Florida.

During your sworn recorded interview, you acknowledged you struck the suspect by providing
discretionary blows to distract him because you thought he was reaching for a weapon. You
later discovered the suspected weapon was the suspect's cellular phone.

‘Youalso acknowledged you were unsureifyou were the only supervisor that struck the suspect,
| however, you knew you punched him more than twice.

You stated you were not wearing your department issued Body Worn Camera, nor vest, during
the apprehension of the suspect, therefore your useof countermeasures was not documented.

On October 18, 2018, you signed the Department's General Order, acknowledging receiptof the
policy governing the wear and usage of the Body Worn Camera.

“The Body Worn Camera is utilized to capture interactions between Law Enforcement and the
public by providing recorded evidence of actions, conditions and statements.

You did not adhere to the Department's standard operating procedures, policies and directives,
which precluded you from faithfully executing the dutiesofyour assigned position.

Therefore,I conclude that SERGEANT BRIAN JACKSON has violated the following
Policy and Procedures and or Rules and Regulations:

GENERAL ORDER 2018-3 — BODY WORN CAMERA

1.4-POLICY

tis the policyofthe Riviera Beach Police Department to utilize a Body Worn Camerato
document Law Enforcement interactions with the public by providing recorded evidence of
actions, conditions, and statements. “The Department has a legal right to capture and record
footage during all official interactions.

1.7__ ASSIGNMENT, ISSUANCE, AND OPERATION:

B. Operation and use of the BWC by officers is mandatory while working any
uniformed assignments to include but not limited to:

1. Regular and overtime On-Duty Patrol.

RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA. THEBREhf City in WhichToLive, Work,and Play”



RIVIERA BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT
POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL;
RULES AND REGULATIONS
SECTION IV, PART IV ~ NEGLECT OF DUTY OFFENSES:

4.14 NEGLECT OF DUTY: LOAFING, INATTENTION TO DUTIES/PROCEDURES:

Riviera Beach Police Department personnel shall be attentive to job duties and shall avoid any
appearanceofloafing or neglecting work while on duty. Riviera Beach Police Department
personnel shall adhere to standard operating procedures, policies and directives, and shall
faithfully execute all the duties and responsibilities of their assigned position. (A violation is
subject to reprimand, suspension, and/or demotion, ordismissal

SUSTAINED

Based on the foregoing, I am recommending to the City Manager the following:

«Twenty-Four Working Hours (3 days) suspension without pay for these violations.

This information is provided in conformance with the labor contract between the City of Rivera
Beach in the Palm Beach County Police Benevolent Association (PBA). Furthermore, you have
the right to appeal concerning this action via the PBA union contract process, Articles 21 and 22.

ce: Michael Madden, Assistant Chiefof Police/Operations
Josh Lewis, Major of Police
Rosalyn Dickerson, Director of Human Resources
Ashley Rhodes, Payroll
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RECEIPT FOR HAND-DELIVERED CITY
CORRESPONDENCE

DELIVERED TO: BRIAN JACKSON, SERGEANT OF POLICE

DATE: JANUARY 2 52020

SIGNATURE:

fr Eehoi ERIN NAME)

/ PERSON RECEIVING CORRESPONDENCE

| iBRHE-—EDEERIE

DELIVERD BY: TANZY VASSELL, CAPTAIN OF POLICE/INTERNAL

AFFAIRS

SIGNATURE:

! pa
4.

(SIGNN. £) (PRINT NAME)

PERSON DELIVERING CORRESPONDENCE

ee —
NOTICE OF INTENTTO ADMINISTER DISCIPLINARY ACTION - LA#19-06



ITY OF RIVIERABEACH 600 W. BLUE HERON BLVD.__ RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA 33404
TORRBAe
POLICE DEPARTMENT INTER-DEPARTMENT COMMUNICATION
-_

TO: BRIAN JACKSON, SERGEANT OF POLICE

FROM: SPENCER L. ROZIER, INTERIM CHIEF OF POLICEa

DATE: JANUARY 21,2020
RE: NOTICE OF INTENT TO ADMINISTER DISCIPLINARY ACTION ~ LA. #19-08

OnJune21, 2019, you attempted to conduct a traffic stop on a suspect, who in his attempt to flee
struck your marked patrol vehicle. The suspect was later apprehended behind a residence at 1516
West 36" Street, Riviera Beach, Florida.

During your sworn recorded interview, you acknowledged you struck the suspect by providing
discretionary blows to distract him because you thought he was reaching for a weapon. You
later discovered the suspected weapon was the suspect's cellular phone.

Youalso acknowledged you were unsure ifyou were the only supervisor that struck the suspect,
however, you knew you punched him more than twice.

‘You stated you were not wearing your department issued Body Worn Camera, nor vest, during
the apprehensionof the suspect, therefore your useof countermeasures was not documented.

| On October 18, 2018, you signed the Department's General Order, acknowledging receiptof the
policy governing the wear and usageof the Body Worn Camera.

| ‘The Body Wom Camera is utilized to capture interactions between Law Enforcement and the
public by providing recorded evidenceof ations, conditions and statements.

You did not adhere to the Department's standard operating procedures, policies and directives,
which precluded you from faithfully executing the duties of your assigned position.

Therefore,I conclude that SERGEANT BRIAN JACKSON has violated the following
Policy and Procedures and or Rules and Regulations:

GENERAL ORDER 2018-3 ~ BODY WORN CAMERA

1.4-POLICY
tis the policy of the Riviera Beach Police Department to utilize a Body Worn Camera to
document Lav Enforcement interactions with the public by providing recorded evidence of
actions, conditions, and statements. The Department has a legal right to capture and record
footage during all oficial interactions.
17 ASSIGNMENT, ISSUANCE, AND OPERATION:

B. Operation and useof the BWC by officers is mandatory while working any
uniformed assignments to include but not limited to:
1. Regular and overtime On-Duty Patrol.

RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA. TIERSHRontCity inWichTo Live Workad Plo”

|



RIVIERA BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT
POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL;
RULES AND REGULATIONS
SECTION IV, PART IV ~ NEGLECT OF DUTY OFFENSES:

4.14 -NEGLECT OF DUTY: LOAFING, INATTENTION TO DUTIES/PROCEDURES:

Riviera Beach Police Department personnel shall be attentive to job duties and shall avoid any
appearance of loafing or neglecting work while on duty. Riviera Beach Police Department
‘personnel shall adhere to standard operating procedures, policies and directives, and shall
faithfully execute all the duties and responsibilitiesof theirassigned position. (A violation is
subject to reprimand, suspension, and/or demotion, or dismissal)

SUSTAINED
Based on the foregoing, I am recommending to the City Manager the following:

© Twenty-Four Working Hours (3 days) suspension without pay for these violations.
This information is provided in conformance with the labor contract between the CityofRivera
Beach in the Palm Beach County Police Benevolent Association (PBA). Furthermore, you have
the right to appeal concerning this action via the PBA union contract process, Articles 21 and 22.

ce: Michael Madden, AssistantChiefofPolice/Operations
Josh Lewis, MajorofPolice.
Rosalyn Dickerson, Director of Human Resources
Ashley Rhodes, Payroll
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INTERNAL AFFAIRS: ~~ CASE # 19-08

SUBECTS: Sergeant Brian Jackson

SYNOPIS OF COMPLAINT:

On June 21, 2019, Sergeant Brian Jackson attempted to conducta trafic stop on a suspect later
identified 0% Anthony Goldwire. Mr. Goldwire attempted to flee the scene, and struck Sergeant
Jackson's marked police vehicle. Mr. Goldwire was eventually apprehended at 1516 West 36°
Street, Riviera Beach. During the courseof the apprehension, Captain Edgar Foster could be
heard saying, “Go Dead,” at which time several officers tured offtheir body worn cameras.

On July 17, 2019, Major Josh Lewis submited his findings and recommendations to Assistant
ChicfMichael Madden. In Assistant Chief Madden’s memorandum dated July 31, 2019, to
Interim Chief Spencer Rozier, he concurred with Major Lewis’ recommendation for further
investigation. On July 31, 2019, the matter was assigned to Internal Affairs for further
investigation by InterimChief Spencer Rozier.

PERSONS INTERVIEWED AND LOCATION OF THE INTERVIEW:

Officer Everton Morgan
Riviera Beach Police Department
600 West Blue Heron Blvd.
Riviera Beach, Florida 33404

Officer Javares Harvey
Riviera Beach Police Department
600 West Blue Heron Blvd.
Riviera Beach, Florida 33404

Officer William Louden
Riviera Beach Police Department
600 West Blue Heron Blvd.
Riviera Beach, Florida 33404

Officer Rohan Wescarth
Riviera Beach Police Department
600 West Blue Heron Blvd.
Riviera Beach, Florida 33404

Officer Jennifer Jones
Riviera Beach Police Department
600 West Blue Heron Blvd.
Riviera Beach, Florida 33404
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Officer Brian DeSantis
Riviera Beach Police Department
600 West Blue Heron Blvd.
Riviera Beach, Florida 33404

Officer Israel Roberson
Riviera Beach Police Department
600 West Blue Heron Blvd.
Riviera Beach, Florida 33404

Officer Alexander Hardrick
Riviera Beach Police Department
600 West Blue Heron Blvd.
Riviera Beach, Florida 33404

Officer Brian DeSantis
Riviera Beach Police Department
600 West Blue Heron Blvd.
Riviera Beach, Florida 33404

Officer Orlanzo Douglas
Riviera Beach Police Department
600 West Blue Heron Bivd.
Riviera Beach, Florida 33404

Officer Benjamin Smith
Riviera Beach Police Department
600 West Blue Heron Blvd.
Riviera Beach, Florida 33404

Captain Edgar Foster
Riviera Beach Police Department
600 West Blue Heron Blvd.
Riviera Beach, Florida 33404

Sergeant Brian Jackson
Riviera Beach Police Department
600 West Blue Heron Blvd.
Riviera Beach, Florida 33404

Officer Bradley Spearow
Riviera Beach Police Department
600 West Blue Heron Blvd.
Riviera Beach, Florida 33404
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Officer Jonathan Nance
Riviera Beach Police Department
600 West Blue Heron BIvd.
Riviera Beach, Florida 33404

Officer Elian Rodroguez
Riviera Beach Police Department
600 West Blue Heron Blvd.
Riviera Beach, Florida 33404

DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE:

1. Photographs of Sergeant Jackson's marked patrol vehicle.
2. Photographsof Sergeant Jackson's hand.
3. Photographsof Anthony Goldwire’
4. Memorandum with Attachments from Major Josh Lewis to Assistant ChiefMichal

Madden.
5. Power DMS signatures for Body Wom Camera Policy.

| 6. General Order for Body Worn Cameras.
7. Memorandum from Assistant Chief Michael Madden to Interim Chief Spencer L. Rozier.
§. Memorandum from Captain Tanzy Vassell to Interim Chief Spencer L. Rozier Regarding

File Being Forwarded to State Atiomey’s Office.
9. Letter from State Attomey’s Office Regarding File.
10. Email Regarding Scheduling Interviewfor Officer Ben Smith.
11. Email Regarding Scheduling Interview for Captain Edgar Foster.
12. Professional Standards Unit/Employee Rights Garrity Rights Form — Officer O. Douglas.
13. Witness NotificationofIntent to Interview — Officer O. Douglas
14. Receipt for Hand-Delivered City Correspondence — Officer O. Douglas.
15. Professional Standards Unit/Employee Rights Garrity Rights Form — A. Hardrick.
16. Witness Notificationof Intent to Interview — Officer A. Hardrick
17. Receipt for Hand-Delivered City Correspondence — Officer A. Hardrick.
18. Professional Standards Unit/Employee Rights Garrity Rights Form — Officer

Roberson.
19. Witness Notification of Intent to Interview— Officer 1. Roberson.
20. Receipt for Hand-Delivered City Correspondence — Officer I. Roberson.
21. Professional Standards Uni/Employee Rights Garrity Rights Form — Officer J. Jones.
22. Witness Notification of Intent to Interview— Officer J. Jones.
23. Receipt for Hand-Delivered City Correspondence — Officer J. Jones.
24, Professional Standards Uni/Employee Rights Garrity Rights Form — Officer R.

Westearth.
25. Witness Notification of Intent to Interview — Officer R. Westearth.
26. Receipt for Hand-Delivered City Correspondence — Officer R. Westcarth .
27. Professional Standards UniEmployee Rights Garrity Rights Form — Officer W. Louden.
28. Witness Notificationof Intent to Interview— Officer W. Louden.

Page30f49



29. Receipt for Hand-Delivered City Correspondence — Officer W. Louden.
30. Professional Standards Unit/Employee Rights Garrity Rights Form —Officer B. DeSantis.
31. Witness Notification of Intent to Interview — Officer B. DeSantis.
32. Receipt for Hand-Delivered City Correspondence — Officer B. DeSantis.
33. Professional Standards Unit/Employee Rights Garrity Rights Form— OfficerJ. Harvey.
34. Witness Notification of Intent to Interview— Officer J. Harvey.
35. Receipt for Hand-Delivered City Correspondence — OfficerJ.Harvey.
36. Professional Standards Unit/Employee Rights Garrity Rights Form — Officer E. Morgan.
37. Witness Notification of Intent to Interview — Officer E. Morgan.
38. Receipt for Hand-Delivered City Correspondence — Officer E. Morgan.
39, Professional Standards Unit/Employee Rights Garrity Rights Form — OfficerJ. Nance.
40. Witness Notification of Intent to Interview — Officer J. Nance.
41. Receipt for Hand-Delivered City Correspondence — Officer J. Nance.
42, Professional Standards Unit/Employee Rights Garrity Rights Form — Officer B. Spearow.
43. Witness Notificationof Intent to Interview —OfficerB. Spearow.
44. Receipt for Hand-Delivered City Correspondence — OfficerB. Spearow.
45. Professional Standards Unit/Employee Rights Garrity Rights Form — Officer E.

Rodrigguez.
46. Witness Notification of Intent to Interview — Officer E. Rodriguez.
47. Receiptfor Hand-Delivered City Correspondence — Officer E. Rodriguez.
48. Professional Standards Unit/Employee Rights Garrity Rights Form — Officer B. Smith.
49. Witness Notification of Intent to Interview — Officer B. Smith.
50. Receipt for Hand-Delivered City Correspondence — Officer B. Smith.
51. Professional Standards Unit/Employee Rights Garrity Rights Form — Captain E. Foster
52. Employee Notification of Intent to Interview — Captain E. Foster.
53. Receipt for Hand-Delivered City Correspondence —Captain E. Foster.
54. Professional Standards Unit Employee Rights Garrity Rights Form — Sergeant B.

Jackson
55. Employee Notification of Intent to Interview— Sergeant B. Jackson.
56. Receipt for Hand-Delivered City Correspondence — Sergeant B. Jackson.
57.CD Copy Riviera Beach Police Department Tape Request/ Radio
58.CD Copyof Body Worn Camera's.
59. CD Copyof Photographs of the following:

a) Sergeant Jackson's Hand
b) Sergeant Jackson's Marked Police Vehicle
©) Suspect’s Face

60..CD (5) Copyof Recorded Statements by the following:
a) Officer O. Douglas
b) Officer A. Hardrick
©) Officer I. Roberson
d) Officer J. Jones
©) Officer R. Westcarth
f) Officer W. Louden
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g) Officer B. DeSantis
1) Officer J. Harvey
i) Officer E. Morgan
J) Officer J. Nance
¥) Officer B. Spearow
1) Officer E. Rodriguez
m) Officer B. Smith
n) Captain E. Foster
0) Sergeant B. Jackson
p) Anthony Goldwire, suspect
@) William Parham, Homeowner

INVESTIGATIVE SUMMARY:

On January 21, 2019, Sergeant Brian Jackson attempted to conduct a traffic stop on a suspect
Jater identified as Anthony Goldwire. The suspect attempted to flee in his vehicle and struck
Sergeant Jackson's marked police vehicle. Sergeant Jackson notified communications of the
incident and pursued the suspect. The suspect abandoned his vehicle and attempted to hide
behind a residence to avoid apprehension. Additional officers responded to aid in locating the
suspect and a perimeter was immediately established.

OfficersJ. Harvey, B. Smith, W. Louden, E. Rodriguez and Sergeant B. Jackson were involved
in the physical apprehension when the suspect was located at 1516 West 36" Street. During their
sworn recorded interview, they stated the following:

Officer Harvey was working an off-duty detail on June 21, 2019, and left his detail to assist in
locating the suspect.

‘Once the suspect was located, Officer Harvey attempted to arrest the suspect when he started
resisting and other officers moved in to help with the apprehension. Officer Harvey stated he did
not noticeifthe suspect had injuries.

Officer Harvey stated he heard when Captain Foster stated, “go dead’, which meant to turn off
the body worn camera. Officer Harvey stated he thought it was a lawful command and did not
tun his body camera back on.

Officer Harvey acknowledged he signed the general order for the body worn camera and “go
dead” is not a language that is used in the body worn camera policy. Officer Harvey stated, “go
dead” means, no camera's, no video's.

Officer Louden worked on June 21,2019, and stated he did not remember the officers who
assisted with the apprehension. Officer Louden stated he gave the suspect verbal commands to
stop resisting, however, he did not comply.
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Officer Louden stated his body worn camera was onduringthe actual physical apprehension,
however, it was turnedoffprior to the apprehensionof the suspect when Captain Foster advised,
“go dark.”

Officer Louden stated, “go dark” means shutoffthe cameras. Officer Louden stated he did not
know why the command was given, however, he complied because it was a directive that was
given by a Captain.

Officer Rodriguez. stated he worked on June 21, 2019, and he was familiar with the arrest of
Anthony Goldwire. Officer Rodriguez stated he set up a perimeter at 37" and Avenue S.

Officer Rodriguez stated whenhearrived on scene, the suspect was already on the ground.
Officer Rodriguez stated he noticed his body worn camera was off, so he tured it on. Officer
Rodriguez stated while he was assisting Sergeant Jackson in lifting the suspect, something hit
him and his body camera fell off. Officer Rodriguez stated he went to St. Mary's hospital with
the suspect until he was cleared to return to the road.

Officer Smith stated he worked on June 21, 2019, and is familiar with the arrest of Anthony
Goldwire. Officer Smith stated he was not directly involved in the apprehensionof the suspect.
Officer Smith stated he gave the suspect orders to get on the ground, to which the suspect
‘sumendered to him and his K-9.

| Officer Smith stated his body worn camera was on. Officer Smith stated he heard Captain Foster
| ‘gave an order to “go dead” and he took it as to turnoffhis camera. Officer Smith stated he left

after the order was given by Captain Foster. Officer Smith stated he is familiar with the body
worn camera policy, which states the camera is to be tumedoffafter the completionof an
incident.

Sergeant Brian Jackson stated he worked on June 21, 2019, and was familiar with the
apprehension and arrest of Anthony Goldwire. Sergeant Jackson stated he was the supervisor
over the Tactical Team.

Sergeant Jackson stated he was in the parking lot completing his supervisory paperwork prior to
the end of his shift when he noticed a car on Avenue O going well over 40mph in a 25mph zone.
Sergeant Jackson stated he got behind the car, activated his lights and sirens, and the car pulled
over.
Sergeant Jackson stated the suspect exited his car and was approaching his marked police
Vehicle. Sergeant Jackson stated, he gave the suspect commands to get back into his car, to
which he complied. Sergeant Jackson stated the driver then made a sortofthree point tum in the
middleofthe road and headed back towards his marked police vehicle.

Sergeant Jackson stated on seeing the suspect's car approaching him, he placed his back up
against the driver side back door of his marked patrol vehicle, with his hands in the air. Sergeant
Jackson stated the suspect hit the driver side door which was open, causing the door to swing and
hithis hand. Sergeant Jackson stated the suspect then tookoffin his vehicle.
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Sergeant Jackson stated when the suspect was apprehended, he kept trying to get into his

pockets. Sergeant Jackson stated he punched the suspect in his head several times in order to

distract him. Sergeant Jackson stated he is unsureif he was the only supervisor that punched the

suspect, however, he knows that he punched him more than twice.

Sergeant Jackson statedhewas not wearing his ballistic vest o his body worn camera. Sergeant
Jackson stated he did not hear Captain Foster say, “go dead.”

Officers J. Jones, B. Spearow, O. Douglas, B. DeSantis,J. Hardrick, J. Nance and E. Morgan did

Tot assist in the physical arrest. During their sworn recorded interview, they stated the

following:

Officer Hardrick stated he was familiar with the arrest of Anthony Goldwire which occurred on

June 21,2019. Officer Hardrick stated he worked the perimeter position at 30™ and S, and was

not involved in the apprehension of Mr. Goldwire, Officer Hardrick did not have any body
camera videoofthe incident.

Officer Spearow stated he was familiar with the arrest of Mr. Goldwire which occurred on June

21,2019. Officer Spearow stated he heard the call when Sergeant Jackson stated he was struck.

| Officer Spearow stated he worked the perimeter at Silver Beach and President Barrack Obama
Highway.

Officer Spearow stated after hearing the suspect was apprehended, he responded to the scene of
/ the arrest. Officer Spearow stated his marked police vehicle was the closest and the suspect was

placed inside and transported to the hospital.

Officer DeSantis stated he was working an off-duty detail on June 21, 2019, and thought the call

i ‘was serious so he broke from the detail and responded to the area.

OfficerDeSantis stated he did not assist with the physical apprehension, but assisted with setting

up the perimeter. Officer DeSantis stated the suspect was. apprehended in the rear ofa house

located in the 1500 blockofwest 36™ street, Officer DeSantis stated when he arrived on scene,
the suspect was dirty and it seemed they were still trying to place. handcuffs on him.

Officer DeSantis stated his body worn camera was on the whole time, however, he turned it off.

Officer DeSantis stated no one told him to turn his camera off. Officer DeSantis stated he left the

scene after he turned his camera off.

Officer Morgan stated he was working an off-duty detail on June 21, 2019, and was familiar with

the arrestofAnthony Goldwire. Officer Morgan stated he heard Sergeant Jackson relayed that an

individual struck him with a vehicle.

Officer Morgan stated he posted himselfat the intersection of President Barrack Obama and

‘West Blue Heron Boulevard. Officer Morgan stated once he arrived on location in the backyard,

he spoke to an individual trying to exit the house into the backyard.

Officer Morgan stated he observed multiple individuals trying to secure the suspect into
‘handeuffs, while telling him to stop resisting. Officer Morgan stated that he assisted with getting
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he suspect in the police car, Officer Morgan stated he was wearing his body wom camer;

however, he was not sureif it was activated. Officer Morgan stated he did not hear anyone say,
“go dead.”

Officer Jennifer Jones stated she worked the Charlie Shift on June 21, 2019, and was familiar

with the arrest of Anthony Goldwire. Officer Jones statedshewas on the perimeter between the

3400 and 3600 block of President Barrack Obama Highway.

Officer Jones stated she was wearing her body camera, however, she was not in close proximity

{othe scene where the suspect was apprehended. Officer Jones stated when she heard the suspect

was apprehended, she went back into service.

Officer Jones stated she was later given a directive 10 report to St. Mary's hospital because she

would be handling the arrest portionofthe paperwork and getting sworn statements. Officer

Jones stated her body camera was on while she was in the hospital.

Officer Nance stated he worked on June 21, 2019, and was familiar with the arrest of Anthony

Goldwire, Officer Nance stated he worked the perimeter from the 3400 to the 3600 block on

Avenue R and Avenue S.

Officer Nance stated when he arrived at the residence where the suspect was apprehended, his

main focus was to makesurethe homeowner, who was in the backyard did nothingto harm the

officers. Officer Nance stated his back was turned towards the officers. Officer Nance stated he

did not assist in the physical apprehension of the suspect.

Officer Douglas sated he worked on June 21,2019, and is familiar with the arrestof Anthony

Goldwire. Officer Douglas stated he was a rover unit for the entire incident and was not near

where the suspect was apprehended.

Officer Roberson stated he worked on June 21, 2019, and is familiar with the arrestofAnthony

Goldwire.

Officer Roberson stated he was conducting a business check when he heard over the radio that an

officer was struck while conducting a trafic stop. Officer Roberson stated he vas located at the

perimeter between the 1400 and 1500 block of Avenue R.

‘Officer Roberson stated he was not in the immediate area where the suspect was located. Officer

Roberson stated he was approximately 10-20 feet away from the suspect. Officer Roberson

stated he saw the suspect in handcuffs on the floor and other officers had to pick up and cary the
suspect.

Captain Edgar Foster stated he worked on June 21, 2019, and was familiar with the arrest of

‘Anthony Goldwire. Captain Foster tated he responded to the area and established a perimeter.

Captain Foster stated he was not involved inthe physical arrestof Mr. Goldwire.

Captain Foster stated when he arrived on scene, the suspect was compliant to Officer Smith's

commands and getting on the ground. Captain Foster stated he informed Officer Harvey and

‘Officer Ben Smith to “go dead” because he felt the incident was over because the suspect was
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compliant, Captain Foster stated the suspect did not resist while he was on scene so he and
Officer Smith proceeded to walk towards the roadway. Captain Foster stated “go dead” means
turnoff your cameras, and it s his terminology for turning the cameras off. Captain Foster stated
that was his first time using it

Captain Foster stated when he said, “go dead,” it was meant for K-9 Officer’s Ben Smith and
Javares Harvey. Captain Foster stated even though Officer Harvey was standing next to Officer
‘Smith, the command was meant for Officer Smith, because he had his K-9 and Officer Harvey
did not, Captain Foster stated he did not call K-9 Officer Ben Smith by name and told him to “go
dead,” neither did he point at him and said, “go dead.”

Captain Foster stated he later read the supplements and found out that the suspeet resisted.
Captain Foster stated while he was on scene, he did not hear officers telling the suspect to stop
resisting, Captain Foster stated he did not complete a supplemental report.

Captain Foster stated he did not see Sergeant Jackson wearing his body worn camera. Captain
Foster stated “go dead” is nota partofthe Body worn camera policy.

Officer Westcart stated he was not familiar with the arrest of Anthony Goldwire on June 21,
2019, because he was not scheduled to work that day. Officer Westeaeth is assigned to the
Baker Shift which is scheduled to work from 0600 hours to 1800 hours.

Officer Westcarth's assigned car that day was PD1519, however, he shared it with Officer
Jennifer Jones who worked the night shift, Officer Jones responded to the sceneof the arrest of
Mr. Goldwire.

Mr. Parham stated he was sitting in his driveway when he saw police cars approaching from both
directions. Mr. Parham stated he heard noise in his backyard so he exited his truck and went into
his house. Mr. Parham stated when he went out the back door, officers had the suspect by the
back door with his hands behind his back.

Mr. Parham stated he told the officers, “Ya'll need to get this out ofmy yard. I don’t ike what
I'm seeing.” Mr. Parham stated the officers told him to get back inside of the house. Mr. Parham
stated the apprehensionof the suspect did not last long.

During his sworn recorded interview, Mr. Goldwire stated he was travelling on Avenue O and
saw police officer sitting in the church parking lot. Mr. Goldwire confirmed he was pulled over
fora traffic stop and got outofhis car with his driver's license in hand.

Mr. Goldwire also acknowledged that Sergeant Jackson order him to return to his car.

Mr. Goldwire returned to his car and left the scene. Mr. Goldwire admitted he abandoned his
car, hopped a fence and hid in someone's backyard.

Mr. Goldwire acknowledged he was talking on his cellular phone while he was behind the
residence. Mr. Golwire also acknowledge he was orderednotto answer his cellular phone.
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Mr. Goldwire stated he no recollectionof what transpired while he was being arrested. Mr.
Goldwire stated he remembered waking up at St. Mary's hospital with his face swollen, knees.

scraped and bruises everywhere.

SUMMARY OF INTERVIEWS:

OFFICER JAVARES HARVEY

On October 11, 2019, T conducted a sworn recorded interview with K-9 Officer Javares Harvey.

The interview was conducted at the Riviera Beach Police Department, Internal Affairs Office;

Room - P-208, (600 West Blu Heron Boulevard, Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida.)

The following sets forth a summaryof the interview. Although the summary is not a verbatiny

iranseript, tis substantially identical to the contentof the interview. Compact discsof the

digitally recorded interview are included within the investigative fil.

Prior to the interview, I informed Officer Javares Harvey that he is being interviewed as a
potential witness in reference to the arrest of Mr. Anthony Goldwire on June 21, 2019. Officer
Harverywas afforded that opportunityto review his body worn camera video. He was also
given Garrity Rights and Officers Bill of Rights/1 12. Officer Harvey stated that he signed, read
‘and understood them. Officer Harvey elected not to have a PBA representative.

1 asked Officer Harveyifhe was familiar with the arrest of Mr. Anthony Golwire on June 21,
2019, at 1516 W. 36% Street, Officer Harvey stated, “Yes.”. I asked Officer Harveyif he worked
on that day. Officer Harvey stated, “Yes, I was working an off-duty detail that day.” I asked
Officer Harvey what time was the detail. Officer Harvey stated, “Don't remember. I think it
started, I want to say at 6, ended at midnight or 11:00.”

1 asked Officer Harvey ifhe assisted with the apprehension of Anthony Goldwire. Officer
Harvey stated, “Yes.” | asked Officer Harvey how did he assist with the apprehension. Officer
Harvey stated, “I responded. 1assisted the K-9 Unit on the track for the suspect. 1,at one pointI
did see the suspect run between the houses, and I let other, the units know, ‘cause it was near
Silver Beach. 1 did deploy the Taser twice but no contact was made with the suspect. And T
deployeda second time 10 protect K-9 Vox. On the dog.”

1 asked Officer Harvey why did he deploy for the dogifthere was another dog. Officer Harvey
stated, “Yeah, There was another dog in the back yard and was going after K-9 Vox when he
was in the back yard about to apprehend the suspect.”

1 asked Officer Harvey when he arrived on scene was Mr. Goldwire already handcuffed. Officer
Harvey stated, “You mean when I got on the, on the incident in the yard? I was trying to
handcut, | was the one that hopped over the fence. While I was attemptingtohandcuffhim he
Started to resist. And other officers had to help me.”
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asked Officer Harveyifhe issued any commands to Mr. Goldwire. Officer Harvey stated, “We
were telling him to, "Stop resisting, stop resisting. | asked Officer Harvey when he said "we,"
Who was he referring (0. Officer Harvey tated, “| don't remember. 1 know I gave him
commands and everybody else who assisted me of handcuffing me.”

YL asked Officer Harveyif he was injured when hewas trying tohandcuff him. Officer Harvey
stated, “| mean, I don't -- I don't know. 1 was just so focused of trying to arest him. So I dont
Knowifhe had any injuries.”

1 asked Officer Harvey to tll me wh he tunedoff his camera during the apprehension. Officer
Harvey stated, “I was old to tum it oft asked Officer Harvey who told him to tunofthe
camera off, Officer Harvey stated, “Captain Foster told us all to tur, turoff the camera.”

asked Officer Harvey is that wh he did it Officer Harvey stated, “Yes, mam.” [asked
Officer Harvey if he thought at th time thai was a lawful command. Officer Harvey stated,
“Yes. Yes, matam.”

asked Officer Harvey afer that, was he in handeuffs or was he stil resisting. Officer Harvey
stated, “He was resisting. It took us, it took a few officers to get him under control.” | asked
Officer Harvey at tha point did he tarn his cameraback on. Officer Harvey stated, “No.” [asked
Officer Harvey why not, Officer Harvey stated, “Because I was, I mean, I had onc handeuf,
was finally able to get one handcuffon and then he kept just resisting. I ook it took a while to
get the handeuffs on him.”

asked Officer Harvey if he signed the policy or general order for the body worn camera. Officer
Harvey stated, “Yes, matam.” I stated to Officer Harvey I wanted him 10 look at something in the
investigative file. 1 asked Officer Harvey what date does i reflect tha he signed for that general
order. Officer Harvey stated, “10/10/2018.”

| asked Officer Harvey if he is familiar with that policy. Officer Harvey sated, “Yes, ma'am. Tm
familiar with it.” 1 asked Officer Harvey how familiar. Officer Harvey stated, “Every time we go
10: call, we make contact with a citizen, we activate the camera, and we tun it off when we're
done with the call or we're done with contact ofthe citizen.”

asked Officer Harvey to tell me again why he tumedoff the camera, Officer Harvey stated, “I
was told to tum it oft.” Iasked Officer Harvey by who. Officer Harvey stated, “Captain Foster.”
Y asked Officer Harvey what did he say to indicat that he can turnoffthe camera. Officer
Harvey sated, “believe the command was, go dark.” | asked Officer Harvey if that is a
Janguage that is listed inthe body-worm camera policy. Officer Harvey sated, “No, matam.” I
asked Officer Harvey if that is that a universal language o is that something that the officers
Katow to do. Officer Harvey stated, “Universal like, | mean, the terminology, "Go dark" means no
cameras, no video.”

asked Officer Harvey if he remembered what Mr. Goldwire was charged with. Officer Harvey
stated, “It was a Batery on a Law Enforcement Office and I believe Fleeing to Elude with
juries. Resisting Arrest.” | asked Officer Harveyifthat i what led him there, was an officer or
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supervisor calling for assistance. Officer Harvey stated, “Yes.” I asked Officer Harveyifthat is
‘why he responded, “Yes, ma'am.”

1 stated to Officer Harvey at this time I have no additional questions. 1 asked Officer Harvey if
he had anything else he wanted to add or say. Officer Harvey stated, “No, ma‘am.”

“The interview concluded at 10:36 a.m.

OFFICER WILLIAM LOUDEN

On October 14, 2019, I conducted a sworn recorded interview with Officer William Louden. The
interview was conducted at the Riviera Beach Police Department, Internal Affairs Office; Room
-P-208, (600 West Blue Heron Boulevard, Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida.)

The following sets forth a summaryof the interview. Although the summary is not a verbatint
Iranseript, it is substantially identical to the content of the interview. Compact discsofthe
digitally recorded interview are included within the investigative file.

»
Priorto the interview, I informed Officer William Louden he is being interviewed as a potential
witness in reference to the arrest of Mr. Anthony Goldwire on June 21, 2019. Officer Louden
was afforded that opportunityto review his body worn camera video. He was also given Garrity
Rights and Officers Bil of Rights/1 12. Officer Louden stated that he signed, read and
understood them. Officer Louden elected not to have a PBA representative on his behalf.

asked Officer Loudenif he remembered working that day. Officer Louden stated, “Yes.” I
asked Officer Loudenifhe remembered the incident, Officer Louden stated, “I do.”

asked Officer Loudenif he assisted with the apprehension of Mr. Goldwire. Officer Louden
stated, “Yes.” asked Officer Louden how did he assist with the apprehension. Officer Louden
stated, “I assisted with affecting the arrest and placing the individual into the custody.”

Iasked Officer Louden who handeuffed Mr. Goldwire. Officer Louden stated, “I think it was like:
a combinationof me and I really don't remember who else was on the ground with me. I don't
recall. I remember seeing, I remember seeing arms and hands but I just don't remember.”

Taskedif it was at east two additional officers or three. Officer Louden stated, “I think there was
like, I think there was three to four of us, I want to say, range.” I asked Officer Louden ifhe had
to issue any commands. Officer Louden stated, “Oh, yeah. 1 was giving verbal commands
repeatedly.” I asked Officer Louden what were the commands. Officer Louden stated, “Stop
resisting." That's primarily I think what I was saying, if I'm not mistaken.”

Tasked Officer Louden if he complied. Officer Louden stated, “No.” I asked Officer Louden if
his body camera was on during the apprehension. Officer Louden stated, “It was.” I asked officer
Loudenif it was on the whole time. Officer Louden stated, “During the actual physical
apprehension it was.” I asked Officer Louden at any point did he tun it off. Officer Louden
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stated, “I did." | asked Officer Loudenif it was during the apprehension. Officer Louden stated,
“I shut it off prior.”I stated to Officer Louden prior to the apprehension. Officer Louden stated,
“Correct” I asked Officer Louden why. Officer Louden stated, “An individual advised us to go
dark.” 1 asked Officer Louden which individual advised him to go dark. Officer Louden stated,
“Captain Foster.”

Tasked Officer Louden what does that mean, go dark. Officer Louden stated, “Offhand, I just
could assume at the time what it meant which was just shut our cameras off.” I asked Officer
Louden why would he want you to shut your cameras off. Officer Louden stated, “I have no
idea.” I stated to Officer Loudenifhe did it because it was a directive given by the captain
Officer Louden stated, “Yes.”

1 stated to Officer Louden in his probable cause he stated that he struck Mr. Goldwire in the
midsection to gain compliance. Officer Louden stated, “Correct.” 1 asked Officer Loudenifhe
was still resisting. Officer Louden stated, “Yes.”

1 asked Officer Louden to describe some of the things the suspect was doing that determined he
was resisting arrest. Officer Louden stated, “Fe was not complying, keeping his hands behind his
back. He continued to ~ froin whatI remember, flailing his legs, i.c., kicking his legs. He kept
on pulling his arms apart. If [m not mistakenhisarm at one point, handcuffed hand actually
came up cause he was pulling his arms apart, And so he continued actively resisting.”

| I asked Officer Loudenifhe was the only officer that used countermeasures to gain compliance
with this suspect. Officer Louden stated, “I honestly don't know. I know,I don't know. I really

| don't know ‘cause | was, at the time, like I said, I was just, 1 know where I was. know there was
‘somebody right next to me, and I don't knowif they were doing anything like that or just trying
get him in custody. 1 just, | really can't recall. T mean, like I said, I know there's three to four of
us. know there's other guys standing around us, too, but it happened so quickly and it was so
kindofchaotic but I, I can't really attest to that.” | asked Officer Louden if he went to the
hospital with Mr. Goldwire. Officer Louden stated, “I ended up there, yes. Basically, yeah. I
mean, obviously I didn't transport bu, yeah.”

I asked Officer Louden what was Mr. Goldwire charged with. Officer Louden stated, “1 think it
was Agg. Batt on a LEO, Fleeing to Elude and Resisting Without, if I'm not mistaken. Ifmy
memory serves me correct.” | asked Officer Louden ifhe would like to add or say anything.
Officer Louden stated, “No.”

“The interview concluded at 12:08 p.m.

OFFICER ROHAN WESTCARTH

On October 14, 2019, I conducted a sworn recorded interview with Officer Rohan Westcarth
The interview was conducted at the Riviera Beach Police Department, Internal Affairs Office;
Room - P-208, (600 West Blue Heron Boulevard, Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida.)
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The following sets forth a summaryof the interview. Although the summary is not a verbatim
Iranseript, it is substantially identical to the contentof the interview._Compact disesofthe
digitally recorded interview are included within the investigative file

Prior to the interview, | informed Officer Rohan Westcarth he is being interviewed as a potential
witness in reference to the arrestof Mr. Anthony Goldwire on June 21, 2019. Officer Westcarth
was afforded the opportunity to review the incar video for PDIS19, his assigned car. He was
also given Garrity Rights Officers BillofRights/1 12. Officer Westcarth stated that he signed,
read and understood them. Officer Wescarth elected not to have a PBA representative present on
his behalf.

I asked Officer Westcarth ifhe worked June 21, 2019. Officer Westearth stated, “You said June
the 21 when that - no, ma'am. | was not scheduled to work that day.” I asked Officer
Westearth what shift was he assigned to. Officer Westearth stated, “I was assigned to the Baker
shift.” I asked Officer Westearth what time that shift starts. Officer Westearth stated, “Baker
Shift starts at 0600 to 1800.”

1 asked Officer Westearth was he not familiar with this incident at all. Officer Westcarth stated,
“Ido not recall at all. Do not know at all. did not work so I'm not familiar with that case at all.”

asked Officer Westcarth which vehicle is he normally assigned to drive. Officer Westearth
stated, “I'm normally assigned, at that time I was assigned to 1519. PD 1519.” asked Officer
Westearthifhe shares that vehicle with another officer. Officer Westcarth stated, “At that time,
yes.” I asked Officer Westcarthifhe knows which officer shares that vehicle with him. Officer
Westearth stated, “Officer Jones. A female, Officer Jones.” I informed Officer Westearth I have
no additional questions for him.

‘The interview concluded at 12:47 p.m.

OFFICER ALEXANDER HARDRICK

On October 23, 2019, I conducted a sworn recorded interview with Officer Alexander Hardrick.
“The interview was conducted at the Riviera Beach Police Department, Internal Affairs Office;
Room - P-208, (600 West Blue Heron Boulevard, Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida.)

The following sets forth a sunmaryof the interview. Although the summary is not a verbatim
transeript, itis substantially identical to the contentofthe interview. Compact discsof the
digitally recorded interview are included within the investigative file.

Prior to the interview, | informed Officer Hardrick he was being interviewed as a potential
witness in reference to the arrestof Mr. Anthony Goldwire on June 21, 2019. He was also given
his Garrity Rights Officers BillofRights/I 12. Officer Hardrick stated he signed, read and
understood them. Officer Hardrick elected not to have a PBA representative present on his
behalf.
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informed Officer Hardrickhedid not have any body-worn camera footage for that night.
Officer Hardrick stated, “No, mafam.” I askedOfficer Hardrickifhe was familiar with the
incidentI mentioned that occurred on June 21. Officer Hardrick stated, “Yes, ma'am.”

Tasked Officer Hardrick to tell me what he remembered about the incident. Officer Hardrick
Stated, “1 just remember someone calling over the radio stating that they'd been struck by a
vehicle and from there, I believe I just went to aperimeter position once they said they had him
within a box and that was where I stood until further.” I asked Officer Hrdrickifhe remembered
the area, Officer Hardrick stated, “30% and 8.”

I asked Officer Hardrickifhe was involved in the apprehensionof Mr. Goldwire. Officer
Hardrick stated, “No, ma'am.”I asked Officer Hardrick if there was anything he would like to
add or say. Officer Hardrick stated, “No, mafam.”

The interview concluded at 10:19 a.m.

OFFICER BRADLEY SPEAROW

On October 22, 2019, | conducted a sworn recorded interview with Officer Bradley Spearow.
The interview was conducted at the Riviera Beach Police Department, Internal Affairs Office;
Room - P-208, (600 West Blue Heron Boulevard, Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida.)

The following sets forth a summaryofthe interview. Although the summary is not a verbatint
transcript, it is substantially identical to the contentofthe interview. Compact discsof the
digitally recorded interview are included within the investigative file.

Prior to the interview, I informed Officer Spearow he was being interviewed as a potential
witness in reference to the arrestofMe. Anthony Goldwire on June21, 2019. Officer Spearow
was given Garrity Rights Officers Bill of Rights/1 12. Officer Spearow stated he signed, read and
understood them. Officer Spearow elected notto have a PBA representative present on his
behalf.

1 stated to Officer Spearow the incident took place at 1516 West 36™ Street. I asked Officer

‘Spearow ifhe was familiar with the incident. Officer Spearow stated, “Yes.”

Tasked Officer Spearow to tell me what he remembered about the incident. Officer Spearow
Stated, “I remember that there had been some, an incident happen where, I believe it was
Sergeant Jackson called out that he was just struck by a vehicle in reference toatraffic stop, or
Some sortofsuspicious incident. OF course, when we heard this over the ai, I responded,
obviously, you know, um, to, you know, set-- for setup a perimeter and figure out what itis we.
were looking for. 1 wound up at Silver Beach, and President Barrack Obama Highway in
reference to holding perimeter while they -- while other officers were scarching the area for the
vehicle. Upon hearing that there was an apprehension, I then heard that we could break down the
‘perimeter, at which time I responded to the sceneof the arrest location just to sce ifI was needed
for anything. 1 guess upon my arrival, it turned out 1 was the closest vehicle so they placed the
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arrestee into my vehicle. And I transported him to the Saint Mary's Hospital, and then I tumed
him over to the officers that were on scene there.”

1 confirmed with Officer Spearow that he was not one ofthe officers who was trying to place
him in handcuffs. Officer Spearow stated, “No, I was not.” I confirmed with Officer Spearow
that he just arrived and transported the suspect. Officer Spearow stated, “Yes. |, remained in the
roadway essentially where it happened, I didn't even really go anywhere. I asked Officer
Spearow if that concluded his involvement. Officer Spearow stated, “Yes, that's all my entire
involvement” I asked Officer Spearowif there is anything he would like to add or say. Officer
Spearow stated, “Nope.”

The interview concluded at 6:02pm.

OFFICER BRIAN DESANTIS

On October 10, 2019, 1 conducted a sworn recorded interview with Officer Brian DeSantis. The
interview was conducted at the Riviera Beach Police Department, Internal Affairs Office; Room
~P-208, (600 West Blue Heron Boulevard, Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida.)

The following sets forth a summaryofthe interview. Although the summary is not a verbatin
iranseript, it is substantially identical fo the contentofthe interview. Compact discsof the
digitally recorded interview are included within the investigative file.

Prior to the interview, | informed Officer DeSantis he was being interviewed as a potential
witness in reference to the arrest of Mr. Anthony Goldwire on June21, 2019. Officer DeSantis
was given Garrity Rights Officers Billof Rights/1 12. Officer DeSantis stated he signed, read and
understood them, Officer DeSantis was afforded the opportunity to view his bodycam. Officer
DeSantis elected not to have a PBA representative present on his behalf.

I asked Officer DeSantis if he worked on June 21, 2019. Officer DeSantis stated, “1 was
working that evening. Yes.” I asked Officer DeSantis ifhe was familiar with the incident that
ocurred at 1516 W 36" Street, Officer DeSantis stated, “I am.” asked Officer DeSantis which
shift did he work. Officer DeSantis stated, “I believe that day, I worked my normal shift, which
would've been approximately 10 a.m. to 6 p.m. and then I was working an off-duty detail at the
time of the incident.”

1 asked Officer DeSantis if he assisted with the apprehension of Mr. Goldwire. Officer DeSantis
stated, “I did not assist with the physical apprehension, but I assisted in establishing a perimeter.”
asked Officer DeSantisifhe remembered where he was apprehended. Officer DeSantis sated,
“I believe it wasoffto the,a rear cornerofthe house in the 1500 block of West 36" Streat. That's
where I first saw officers with him. It was a rear cornerofthe house.”

I asked Officer DeSantisif his body camera was on during the apprehension. Officer DeSantis
stated, “Yes, it was.” | asked Officer DeSantisto tell me what he remembered about the
circumstances surrounding that arrest. Officer DeSantis stated, “IfI recall correctly, I was, I was
located in the upper garage. level at 228 East Blue Heron Boulevard, which is the Publix located
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in our city, working an off-duty detail. heard Sergeant Jackson, Sergeant Brian Jackson go over
the air. T believe he was attempting to conducta traffic stop and I believe he said something in
the form of, "He hit me," or "I'm hit," something of that nature, and I believe that was in relation
to the trafic stop that he attempted to conduct.

Additional units started to respond. I thought it serious in nature enough for me to break from my
detail, and I started responding to the area. Upon initial arrival to the area, I started o circulate
ue to the fact that I'm an unmarked vehicle. T thought maybe I could possibly get eyes ona
Subject or somebody matching the description being in an unmarked vehicle as opposed to a
marked vehicle untilI ook a static position on perimeter point at the intersectionof West 36"
Street and Avenue S. I believe at that time; my vehicle was facing in a northern direction because
they believed that they had the subject cut, boxed in into that area from, anywhere from 36%

Street up to Silver Beach from Avene § to the ast.

At some point during that time, while I was outofmy vehicle, I believe I saw a subject matching.
that description run through a yarded area, and I advised over the radio to that. I efi my patrol
vehicle, and Iattempted to search the area, butI didn't make contact with anybody. And while I
started in that, it was like a dirt canal-type style, unfinished area behind the house that's on the
northeast comer of 36 and S. Um, while I was still in that area, then heard, uh, over the radio
that they were in contact with the subject.

‘Once they had made contact with the subject, I started walking back towards my police vehicle,
and then Istarted, once I was back in my police vehicle, I started heading over towards the area
where they said that they were in contact with the subject. And then it was advised over the radio
that the perimeter units could break down. -

1 get out of my vehicle. I walk towards, think it was the west sideof the house,I believe. There
were a couple cars in a driveway, and I walked to the back, and I believe there was two or three
officers dealing with the subject down on the ground. There were two additional officers towards
the backofthe house because I think that there were people in a doorway to therearof the
residence. And I was just back there kinda looking around, making sure everything was okay, if,
making sure that there was no evidence or, equipment that may have been dropped or anything
of that nature.”

asked Officer DeSantis when he arrived, was the subject in handeufs. Officer DeSantis stated,
“To best of my recollection, it scemed like they were still working, trying to put handcuffs on
him, or they were trying to pick him up by that time. So I don't knowif he was physically in
‘handcuffs at that moment. Like I, there were, like I said, therewerethree officers” kindof over
the topofthe subject, and it, if I remember correctly, I heard the soundofhandcuffs being placed
on the subject.” k

1 asked Officer DeSantisifhe looked at the suspect's face. Officer DeSantis stated, “At one point
when they were moving him and bring him up to, towards the frontofthe house I did sec him.
He looked to be very dirty. The area along the side of the house and in the area as well as where |
sawhim was very, it was a lotof irt. It was not, it didn't have grass or anything like that. So 1
remember him being very dirty from all the dirt that was all over the area.”
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asked Officer DeSantisiff saw the subject prior to them picking him up. Officer DeSantis stated,
“No.” asked Officer DeSantis if his body camera was on the whole time. Officer DeSantis
stated, “Yes.”

I stated to Officer DeSantis in the video, it shows him turningoffhis camera. 1 asked Officer
DeSantis if he remembered seeing that. Officer DeSantis stated, “Yes.”I asked Officer DeSantis
why he tumedoffhis camera. Officer DeSantis stated, “Cause at that point with the subject
being in custody, I was actually exceeded the time that I was supposed to be on my detail, it was
after that time and no other further, | had no further, | wasn't need anymore with that. So from
that point, I ef, and I went home for the night.”

I asked Officer DeSantis what time his detail ended that night. Officer DeSantis stated, “It was
supposed to end, 1 don't recallif that was before the change or after the change in the detail
hours. But if it was before the change, it would've been 11:00.If it was after the change, it was it
would've been midnight. I don't, I don't remember when the detail times changed.”

I asked Officer DeSantis what he meant when he said he exceeded his time. Officer DeSantis
stated, “Well, 1 would have gone over the time thatI was, would've been on my detail.” I asked
Officer DeSantis to tell me again why he tumed his camera off, Officer DeSantis stated,
“Because from that point, | 1c, and I went home cause I was, I wasn't technically working the
road that night.

1 asked Officer DeSantis if he was instructed to turn his camera off. Officer DeSantis stated,
“No, ma'am.” asked Officer DeSantis if he turned itoffbecause he was no longer needed at the
scene. Officer DeSantis stated, “Yes.”

asked Office DeSantis if he had anything else he would like to add or say. Officer DeSantis
stated, “No, mata, think that's everything.” I asked Officer DeSantisifhe read and signed the
body-worn camera policy. Officer DeSantis stated, “Yes, ma'am.”

The interview concluded at 2:25 p.m.

OFFICER EVERTON MORGAN

On October 11,2019, | conducted a sworn recorded interview with Officer Everton Morgan. The
interview was conducted at the Riviera Beach Police Department, Internal Affairs Office; Room
~P-208, (600 West Blue Heron Boulevard, Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida.)

The following sets forth a summary of the interview. Although the summary is not a verbatin
Iranseript, itis substantially identical to the content of the interview. Compact discs of the
digitally recorded interview are included within the investigative file.

Prior to the interview, I informed Officer Morgan he is being interviewed as a potential witness
in reference to the arrestofMr. Anthony Goldwire on June 21, 2019. Officer Morgan was given
his Garrity Rights Officers BillofRights/1 12. Officer Morgan stated he signed, read and
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understood them. Officer Morgan was afforded the opportunity to view bodyeam video ofthe
incident, Officer Morgan elected not to have a PBA representalive present on his behalf.

1 asked Officer Morganifhe was familiar with the arrest of Mr. Goldwire which took place at
1516 West 36" Street in Riviera Beach. Officer Morgan stated, “Yes.” asked Officer Morgan if
he remembered working on June 21%, 2019. Officer Morgan stated, “Yes, I was working a detail
at 401 President Barack Obama, J W Food and Liquor.”

1 asked Officer Morganifhe assisted in the apprehension of Mr. Goldswire. Officer Morgan
stated, “In some manner, yes.” | asked Officer Morgan how he assisted with the call. Officer
Morgan stated, “I heard Sergeant Jackson go in a traffic stop and said vehicle (unintelligible)
radio, that the individual struck him with a vehicle. 1 responded to the intersectionofPresident
Barack Obama and West Blue Heron, to, just ‘cause I, from previous experience, I know
individuals try to get out of that area, they try t0 flee, southbound on President Barack Obama, or
they go west on Blue Heron. So I positioned myself there. And as they made the perimeter
smaller, that's when I went (0 Avenue S. Shortly afer that, that's when they said they had the
individual in the backyard, right in the backyard.” I asked Officer Morgan ifhe went to the
backyard. Officer Morgan stated, “Yes, I did.”

1 asked Officer Morgan to tell me what happened and what he saw. Officer Morgan stated,
“Once I went 10 the backyard, from what I remember, an individual was trying to come out the
back door, which I addressed the individual ‘cause I don't knowif he was a threat or not. So 1
told him 10 get back in the house. Um, and at that time, that's when multiple officers were trying

| to secure the individual into handcuffs.”

I asked Officer Morganifthe person they were trying to put into handcuffs was the suspect.
Officer Morgan stated, “That was the suspect. just heard al the officers giving out their verbal
commands, "Stop resisting” and that's pretty much it And I think I helped pick him up and put
him in the police carif that's the same arrest. I don't rememberif that's, that is that guy, that's that
same arrest.”

1 showed Officer Morgan a pictureof Mr. Goldwire and asked him to confirm ifthat was the
suspect, Officer Morgan stated, “I remember the hairstyle. I didn't get a chance to look at his
face. I remember the hairstyle, and I remember from my understanding, he had, he had pants
with some type of leopard, leopard print or something, but I didn't geta chance to look at his face
atthe time.”

asked Officer Morgan if he heard any commands during the time when the officers were
handeuffing the suspect. Officer Morgan stated, “Yeah, I heard multiple officers saying, "Stop.
resisting. Give me your hands." they kept yelling that; “Give me your hands. Stop resisting."

asked Officer Morgan if he was wearing his body camera. Officer Morgan stated, “Yes.” |
asked Officer Morgan ifit was on. Officer Morgan stated, “I don't knowifit was, I don't know if
itwas on. I tapped it, but I don't think it was in standby mode, and typically, its supposed to be
in standby mode. Then thats when 1 tap it, itll come on.” I stated to Officer Morgan we have no
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video from your body cam, so your body cam was not on. Officer Morgan stated, “Itwas not in
standby mode so that's why it didn't come on.”

1 asked Officer Morgan ifhe thought it was. Officer Morgan stated, “1 did. I know I always tap
my body cam, but it, it wasn't in standby mode.” asked Officer Morgan ifhe saw where he was
positioned at the call from the other body cams videos. Officer Morgan stated, “At the back,
yeah”

1 asked Officer Morgan ifhe was close in proximityofthe suspect. Officer Morgan stated,
“Yes.” I asked Officer Morgan ifat any point, did he hear anyone say, "Go dark," or, "Go dead".
Officer Morgan stated, “No, I was.” I confirmed with Officer Morgan he did not hear that.
Officer Morgan stated, “I didn't hear that. ‘CauseI heard some rattling in the fence. That's when I
kinda tuned around trying to see what was going on.”

1 attempted to confirm with Officer Morgan that he said there was someone else present and he
couldn't determineifthey were a threat. Officer Morgan stated, “When the guy came out the
back door, that's when I was telling him, like, go back inside. Me,Iwant to say,I forgot the

other officer that was beside me. We was telling him to go back inside.” I asked Officer Morgan
ifhe found outif the individual was a threat or not. Officer Morgan stated, “Uh, once he went
back inside, the, the young man was transport,I responded back to my detail. Ichecked on
Sergeant Jackson and responded back to my detail.”

1 asked Officer Morgan why did he check on Sergeant Jackson. Officer Morgan stated, “Cause
when the call came out, he said the individual struck him with a car.” I asked Officer Morgan if
he saw the suspect get injured or did anyone have to use counter measures to get him to comply.
Officer Morgan stated, “I'm sure the individuals had to, based off these pictures I'm looking at. I
mean, 1 don't know, like, I wasn't one of the ones trying to get him to comply. Typically, I mean,
{he department teaches us techniques to use against individuals to gain compliance, so I'm sure
those techniques was uilized to get them to gain compliance basedoff all those verbal
commands they was giving him.”

1 asked Officer Morgan to tell me why his body cam wasn't on. Officer Morgan stated, “1 didrit
have it in standby mode, so when I did tap it, it didn't turn on.” asked Officer Morgan if there is
anything else he wanted to add or say. Officer Morgan stated, “No.”

The interview concluded at 11:51 am.

OFFICER ELIAN RODRIGUEZ

On October 28, 2019, I conducted a sworn recorded interview with Officer Elian Ridriguez. The
interview was conducted at the Riviera Beach Police Department, Internal Affairs Office; Room
~P-208, (600 West Blue Heron Boulevard, Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida.)

Page 200149



The following sets forth a summary of the interview. Although the summary is not a verbatim
Iranseript, it is substantially identical to the content ofthe interview. Compact discsofthe
digitally recorded interview are included within the investigative file

Prior to the interview, I informed Officer Rodriguez he was being interviewed as a potential
witness in reference to the arrest ofMr. Anthony Goldwire on June 21, 2019. Officer Rodriguez.
was given Garrity Rights Officers Bill of Rights/1 12. Officer Rodriguez stated he signed, read
and understood them. Officer Rodriguez was afforded the opportunity to view bodycam video of
the incident. Officer Rodriguez elected not to have a PBA representative present on his behalf.

1 asked Officer Rodriguez ifhe is familiar with the arrest of Mr. Anthony Goldwire which took
place on June 21%, 2019, at 1516 W. 36" Street. Officer Rodriguez stated, “Yeah, I remember it.
Mostofit.”

asked Officer Rodriguez to tell me what he remembered. Officer Rodriguez stated “Okay. So
was on patrol that night. And I, it came across the radio that Sergeant Jackson, you know, said
thata suspect had took off from him, then hit him. So was in the PSA 21. I don't remember the
street exactly, but we started looking for the vehicle description. And I believe it was Officer K.
Jones, he found the vehicle on Avenue, on 36° Street, I believe, or 37" Street, oneof those.

So we went over there to set up a perimeter and Iwent to 37 and Avenue S. andI was set up in
( that corner, the perimeter. Then they were searching for the suspect and they came in contact

with him. And they started running soT heard them becauseI was close by. AndI started
running towards them because I think Officer Desanti [phonetic] was, like, on 36" and S. So he
said, "Go, go." And he stayed there covering that perimeter area. So I went over there and I
was, like, on 37% Street and there was, on the houses, and there was a fence cover so I couldn't
sce ‘em. They were on 36" Street.

So jump a fence to another house that was on the left, and then I jumped the fence that was
towards them. And when I got there, they had, they already had the suspect on the ground. I
believe it was Officer,I forget his name. The one with the beard. Louden, yes. Louden. He
was sitting behind, like, on, by his legs, holding his back. So Harvey, Officer Harvey was in
front of him holding him down in the front. And Officer Jackson was on the left side. Sol,I
had my Taser out and I arrived there and I got to the ground. I started holding him down. I had
my Taser activated in case I needed to use it. But they already have it secure so at that point I
notice my camera wasoffso 1 turned it on, and we were going to sceure the suspect so | dropped
the Taser and I start helping secure the suspect with the handcuff. That's when I assisted and
essentially, like, watch, like, from the handcuff, and Iput the hand, I believe Harvey put the
handcuffon the right hand. And then I assist to put it on the left hand. And at that point we
ceased and we got up and then we, like on the video, like, me andOfficer Jackson lift the suspect
‘and at that point something hit me. I seen, | don't knowifit was the suspect or, like, a
movement, but my camera fell off. And I noticed it and I went to the ground. I grabbed it and I
apparently, | turned itoffand 1 don't remember why.”

1 asked Officer Rodriguezifhis camera fell. Officer Rodriguez stated, “Yeah. My, my camera,
my camera fell” I stated to Officer Rodriguez your body cam fell. Officer Rodriguez stated,
“Yeah.” asked Officer Rodriguez if he picked it up. Officer Rodriguez stated, “Yeah. And at
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that point we put the suspect, the suspect on the, I don't remember which officer's car he went,
but we put on the car and he start heading to St. Mary's, and | went to my car back on 37 and
Avenue § and got in my car and went to St. Mary, as well. And that's, then we stay in St. Mary's
unil, like, we got cleared to go back to the road.”

Tasked Officer Rodriguezif that was the end of his involvement with that arrest. Officer
Rodriguez stated, “Yeah. By the timeI got to the suspect, they were already, like, on the ground,
cease all the activity. But they were just going to, like, put on handcuff.”

1 stated to Officer Rodriguez that's all the questions I have for him. I asked Officer Rodriguez if
there is anything else he would like to add or say. Officer Rodriguez stated, “No. That's all |
remember.”

The interview concluded at 11:34 am.

OFFICER JENNIFER JONES

On October 16, 2019, I conducted a sworn recorded interview with Officer Jennifer Jones. The
interview was conducted at the Riviera Beach Police Department, Internal Affairs Office; Room
~P-208, (600 West Blue Heron Boulevard, Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida.)

The following sets forth a summaryofthe interview. Although the summary is nota verbatint
iranseript tis substantially identical to the contentof the interview. Compact discsofthe
digitally recorded interview are included within the investigative file.

Prior to the interview, I informed Officer Jones she was being interviewedas a potential witness
| iin reference to the arrest of Mr. Anthony Goldwire on June 21, 2019. Officer Joneswas given

Garrity Rights Officers BillofRights/112. Officer Jones stated she signed, read and understood
them. Officer Jones was afforded the opportunity to view bodyeam videoofthe incident. Officer
Jones elected not to have a PBA representative present on her
behalf.

I asked Officer Jones if she remembered working on June 21, 2019. Officer Jones stated, “Yes,
‘matam.” I asked Officer Jones what shift she worked. Officer Jones stated, “I worked the Charlie
shift from 6 p.m. to 6 a.m.” | asked Officer Jonesif she remembered the incident. Officer Ones
stated, “I do.”

Tasked Officer Jones to tell me what she remembered about that incident. Officer Jones stated, “1
remember, Sergeant Jackson came over the air, at first trying to conducta traffic stop. He then
came back over the air and stated that he had been struck by a black vehicle, he gave the
descriptionofthe vehicle, but | don't recall it. Identified the gentleman, gave a description of the
gentleman and stated that the gentleman did, like, almost like a pit maneuver move to get away,
striking I believehis door which then struck his arm, and we all, everybody immediately
responded. We set up a perimeter. I was either in between the,I was in between the 34 and 3600
block of PBO. That was where I was on perimeter. Um, and they eventually came back over the
air and said that he had been apprehended. then, we broke down perimeter. I then drove just to
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seeifeverybody was okay. When got there, everybody was okay, and I immediately went 10-8.
Inever even got out of my vehicleI don't believe. T went back,Iwent 10-8, andI went back to
the east side. Approximately 30 minutes later, | was given the directive to report to St. Mary's,
that 1 would be handling the paperwork portion of it, the arrest portionof it and getting the sworn
statements.”

asked Officer Jonesif she was wearing her body-worn camera. Officer Jones stated, “Yes.” I
asked Officer Jones if she was close to where the suspectwas apprehended. Officer Jones stated,
“No. There was, there were 50 many people on scene that I was just, I ust left because somebody
needed to cover the cast side.”

1 confirmed with Officer Jones if she was on a perimeter, in the outskirts. Officer Jones stated,
“Yes.” I asked Officer Jones if she remembered the vehicle she was driving that day. Officer
Jones stated, “I was driving 1519. That my assigned vehicle.”

asked Officer Jonesif there is anything she would like to add or say. Officer Jones stated, “No.
Tust, I went to the hospital, I was only at the hospital for, my, I left my body cam on while I was
in the hospital. I think I was only in the hospital for 30 minutes, and then I came back to the
station and started working on the paperwork. And at that ime, I got, because Sergeant Jackson
was admitted. So when we, I spoke to him briefly, but then when we got back to the station and
he was released, I got his sworn statement.”

asked Officer Jonesif Mr. Goldwire said anythingto her at the hospital. Officer Jones stated,
“Yes. It was strange. When I got there, he had, from what I was told, he had already been
administered a sedative, which I knew then I could not legally question him because he could say

( he understood his Miranda rights, but anybody could say anything under, so he did
| spontaneously utter, he repeatedly kept asking me fora Gatorade and he did spontaneously utter

‘something along the lines of, “I know I'm here because Ihit that officer or supposedly hit that
officer. Idon't givea shit about that. 1 just want to call my mom. Can you give me my phone so I
can call my mom?” At which time, I old him I was not ableto hand him his phone but that he
would be able to make a phone call eventually.”

1 asked Officer Jonesif that is all. Officer Jones stated, “That's all. That's all I remember.”

The interview concluded at 5:36 pan.

OFFICER JONTHAN NANCE

On October 21, 2019, | conducted a sworn recorded interview with Officer Jonathan Nance. The
interviewwas conducted at the Riviera Beach Police Department, Internal Affairs Office; Room
~P-208, (600 West Blue Heron Boulevard, Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida.)

The following sets forth a summary of the interview. Although the summary is not a verbatin
iranseript, it is substantially identical to the content of the interview. Compact discs of the
ligitally recorded interview are included within the investigative file.
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Prior to the interview, [informed Officer Nance he was being interviewed as a potential witness
in reference to the arrest of Mr. Anthony Goldwire on June 21, 2019. Officer Nance was given
Garrity Rights Officers Bill of Rights/112. Officer Nance stated he signed, read and understood
them.Officer Nance was afforded the opportunity to view bodycam video of the incident
Officer Nance elected not to have a PBA representative present on his behalf.

asked Officer Nance ifhe is familiar with the arrest of Mr. Goldwire which occurred on June
21,2019, at 1516 W. 36" Street in Riviera Beach. Officer Nance stated, “Yes. Yes." Lasked
Officer Nance if he worked that day. Officer Nance stated, “Yes, 1 did.”

asked Officer Nance to tell me what he remembered about the incident. Officer Nance stated, “1
was, we were, I was dispatched to the, I want to say t0 33, 34, 3500 block of Avenue R, setting a
perimeter from the, | want to say from the 34 to the 3600 block of, which we set a box perimeter
from the 34 to the 3600 block on Avenue R to Avenue S, boxing this possible suspect in. One of
the officers got in a foot chase and advised other officers over there that he was running
northbound insideof the 1500 area of 34 or 35. Anyway, he was captured behind oneof the
residence, unknown address at the time. When I got there they, my main focus was making sure
that the homeowner who was standing outside in the back yard, making sure that he didnt do
anything to harm the officers. My back was completely tumed to the officers, but my whole

| focus was making sure that, you know, the resident or that guy didn't do anything to harm the
officers.”

asked Officer Nance ifhe was directly involved in the arrest of Mr. Goldwire. Officer Nance
stated, “No. [never went hands on, no.” I asked Officer Nance if he remembered who
transported Mr. Goldswire. Officer Nance stated, “No, I do not. No.” asked Officer Nance if
that was his complete involvement. Officer Nance stated, “Yes. Besides assisting in the
perimeter, and once I got in back yard, you know, 1 informed the homeowner, you know, have, a
litle bitof what was going on and, you know, let him know that, you know, the property was
going to be okay. That was just about it.”

I asked Officer Nanceifhe had anything else to add or say. Officer Nance stated, “No, ma'am.”

The interview concluded at 11:22 am.

OFFICER ORLANZO DOUGLAS

On October 22, 2019, I conducted a sworn recorded interview with Officer Orlando Douglas.
“The interviewwas conducted at the Riviera Beach Police Department, Internal Affairs Office;
Room - P-208, (600 West Blue Heron Boulevard, Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida.)

The following sets forth a summary of the interview. Although the summary is not a verbatin
iranseript, itis substantially identical to the content of the interview. Compact discs of the
digitally recorded interview are included within the investigative file.
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Priorto the interview, | informed Officer Douglas he was being interviewed as a potential
witness in reference to the arrest of Mr. Anthony Goldwireon June 21, 2019. Officer Douglas
was given Garrity Rights/Officers Bill of Rights/1 12. Officer Douglas stated he signed, read and
understood them. Officer Douglas was afforded the opportunity to view bodycam videoof the
incident, Officer Douglas elected not to have a PBA representative present on his behalf.

I asked Officer Douglas if he is familiar with the arrest of Mr. Goldwire which occurred on June
21%,2019, at 1516 W. 36" Street in Riviera Beach. Officer Douglas stated, “Yes. Yes." Lasked
Officer Douglas if he worked that day. Officer Douglas stated, “Uh, 1 do.”

asked Officer Douglas to tell me what he remembered about the incident. Officer Douglas
stated, “I remember I was on the Eastside. I had just spoken to Sergeant Jackson about going to
get something to eat. But he had interest ina car; the car tookoffon him. He kinda caught up to
the car and I could hear his radio transmission say he got hit by the car. When I heard that, I went
to, 1 went to the area where he was hit. Tried to geta location on the vehicle, pertainingto which
direction it was going. I was canvassing the whole Monroe Heights area, where I thought the
vehicle would might've go, cause I'm used to workin' 21, the PSA 21. I wasn't able to find the
vehicle, but eventually I was told that the suspect was apprehended.”

Tasked Officer Douglas if he was anywhere near where the suspect was arrested. Officer
Douglas stated, “I must've been like a block and a half over when the suspect was arrested.” |
asked Officer Douglas if he stayed on the perimeter, the outskirts. Officer Douglas stated, “I was
on the outskirts, yeah. I was a rover unit for the entire incident.”

1 asked Officer Douglasif there is anything else he would like to add or say. Officer Douglas
stated, “I'm familiar with the suspect. Suspect, attempted a traffic stop on suspect, and as I
approached his vehicle, he also tookoffon me before. He didn't give any regards to where I was
when I was making contact with him. T was right at his, his front driver window, and he just took
off. He almost ran my foot over.” I asked Officer Douglas if there is anything else. Officer
Douglas stated, “Uh, not that I, not that know of”

The interview concluded at 6:26 p.m.

OFFICER ISRAEL ROBERSON

On October 23, 2019, I conducted a sworn recorded interview with Officer Israel Roberson. The
interview was conducted at the Riviera Beach Police Department, Internal Affairs Office; Room
~P-208, (600 West Blue Heron Boulevard, Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida.)

The following sets forth a summaryofthe interview. Although the summary is not a verbatiny
iranseript, it is substantially identical fo the contentofthe interview. Compact discsof the
digitally recorded interview are included within the investigative file.

Prior to the interview, I informed Officer Roberson he was being interviewedasa potential
witness in reference to the arrest ofMr. Anthony Goldwire on June 21, 2019. Officer Douglas
was given Garrity Rights/Officers BillofRights 112. Officer Roberson stated he signed, read
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and understood them. Officer Roberson was afforded the opportunity to view the bodycam video,
ofthe incident, Officer Roberson elected not to have a PBA representative present on his behalf.

asked Officer Roberson if he was familiar with the arrest of Mr. Goldie on June 21, 2019, at
1516 W. 36% Street, Officer Roberson stated, “Yes. Yes, 1am.” asked Officer Roberson if he
worked on June 21% Officer Roberson sated, “Yes, ma'am.”

asked Officer Roberson to tll me what you remembered. Officer Roberson stated, “I was on, I
was doing keep checks and it went over the radio that” asked Officer Roberson what is a keep
check, Officer Roberson stated, “A keep check is , checking ofa business, anything to make
Sure that everybody's okay, make sure its secured, stufflike that. And in the process ofthat,
all came out on the radio that an officer was just struck witha vehicle while he was initiating a.
10-50, which is a traffic stop.

From there allof the officers got involved. We went directly to where he was located a. He
said the individual was in, 1 think, a Cadillac and had backed into his arm near the driver's side
oorofthe patrol car, well, his Tahoe. And it messed up the door. From that point we went to
{he location where the individual was supposed to be at, but nobody was there. Myself, Captain
Foster, Sergeant Barr and a few others. And in the processofus, lke, securing that area to make
sure nobody was there, Captain Foster sad, you know, "Let's go ahead and set upaperimeter
and get the dogs out.”

took the, between the 1400 block and the 1500 block of R. Blockedoff that side. Put my lights
on, put my take-down lights and I had my flashlight, my hand-held flashlight on me. Stayed,
Stood right there. Whatever I was hearing on the radio, whether it bea black car, stopping it,
redirecting different civilians after figuring out who they were and make sure tha they did't
have anythingto do with it. And maybe about 10 o 12 minutes or so of being on the, lke, doing.

[ a perimeter, they said the individual was running between, I think it was like 35" to 36% or
| Something like that, 36" or 37°.

‘And next thing I know they said that they had got him. He had done jumped over somebody's
fence or something to somebody's back yard that had a dog. And Captain Foster say, "You can
‘go ahead and break down perimeter.” Broke down perimeter. Went back and checked on Sarge
{and make sure he was okay. He said his hand was messed up, hand and wrist or something was
messed up. And he was about 10 g0 o the hospital to get checked out. And that's all got.”

1 asked Officer Roberson if he was talking about Sergeant Jackson. Officer Roberson stated,
“Yeah, Sergeant Jackson.” I asked Officer Roberson where was Sergeant Jackson when he
checked on him. Officer Roberson stated, “Yeah. Literally outside. We was trying to fix his
door. And then 1 think.” asked Officer Roberson if he was by Sergeant Jackson's vehicle.
‘Officer Roberson stated, “Yeah. Captain Foster said that, you know, he gotta get to the hospital
“cause they didn't know how, if he had broken bones or anything. So when he was getting ready
to leave in his vehicle, he could close his door. So we tied t, like, push the door, sceifit
would lock. But then, and Iasked him was he okay, and he was ike his wrist orsomethingwas,
his wrist or shoulder, or forearm or something was hurting him. And then afer tha he was
gone
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asked Officer Roberson ifhe was ever in the immediate area where the suspect was. Officer
Roberson stated, “No. Like,I scen him. I was probably, maybe about 15, 10, anywhere between
10 to about 15, 10 or 20 yards away from, 10 or 20 feet away from him. Like, I seen him in
handeuffs on the floor. And then he was like, he wasn't trying to stand up. Like, he was trying to
be deadweight and then the other officers basically had to carry him, had to pick him up. And
then after that, afterI seen there was about eight or nine of them over there to help him up, it
didnt make no sense for me to go over there so then just went and tried to check on him and
check on Sergeant Jackson to sce if he could even drive his car. And he wound up taking, I think
it was, Douglas's car or something like that because his car, the door wouldn't close.”

I asked Officer Robersonif that was his complete involvement. Officer Roberson stated, “Yeah.
That's it asked Officer Robersonif there is anything else he would like to add or say. Officer
Roberson stated, “During the process of trying to catch him, I know the ownerof that house,
when I was getting the, going to retrieve my vehicle, had a pit bull or something like that that
was tying 10, 1 dort knowif the pit bull was trying to attack the man or trying to attack the other
dogs. But, that pit bull in the processoftrying to, like, secure the guy, could have been injured.
‘And, like, Captain Foster talked to him afterwards. But once again, its Riviera and the guy was
like, "Man, whatever. This is my yard." And, but, other than that, that's all I got.”

‘The interview concluded at 11:46 a.m.
|

OFFICER BENJAMIN SMITH

On November 12, 2019, I conducted a sworn recorded interview with Officer Benjamin Smith,
‘The interview was conducted at the Riviera Beach Police Department, Internal Affairs Office;
Room - P-208, (600 West Blue Heron Boulevard, Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida.)

The following sets forth a summaryof the interview. Although the summary is not a verbatint
Iranseript, it is substantially identical to the content ofthe interview. Compact discsofthe
digitally recorded interview are included within the investigative file.

Prior to the interview, I informed Officer Smith he was being interviewed as apotential witness
in reference to the arrestofMr. Anthony Goldwire on June 21, 2019. Officer Smith was given
Garrity Rights and Officers Bill ofRights 112. Officer Smith stated he signed, read and
understood them, Officer Smith was afforded the opportunity to view the bodycam video of the
incident. Officer Smith elected to have PBA Attorney Rick King present on his behalf.

asked Officer Smith ifhe is familiar with the arrest of Mr. Anthony Goldwire which occurred
on June 21%, 2019. Officer Smith stated, “Yes.” I asked Officer Smith to tell me what he
remembered about that incident. Officer Smith stated, “Yes, I responded in reference to Sergeant
Jackson advised he was struck by a vehicle. Tdeployed K-9 Vox to try and locate the suspect and
we located him.”

1 asked Officer Smith ifhe was involved directly in the apprehension. Officer Smith stated,
“No.” I asked Officer Smith if he waswearinghis bodycam at the time. Officer Smith stated,
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“Yes” asked Officer Smithif he heard and order given during the incident in termsof the
body-worn camera. Officer Smith stated, “Yes.” I asked Officer Smithwhathe heard. Officer
Smith stated, “Go dead.” I asked Officer Smith what that meant. Officer Smith stated, “Me, I
took it as tur my camera of and return back to my vehicle because I was no longer needed
with my K-9.”
Tasked Officer Smith if that is what he took it as. Officer Smith stated, “Yes, ma'am.” I asked
Officer Smith who gave the order. Officer Smith stated, “Captain Foster.” 1 asked Officer Smith

ifthe incident was over at that time. Officer Smith stated, “My, I was no longer needed with
Vox. He surrendered to me and Vox in the presenceofVox and 1 and at that point, I was no
longer needed with the dog, so therefore, I took him back to my Tahoe.”

Tasked Officer Smith if he lef aftr the order was given and he tumed off his camera. Officer
Smith stated, “Yes.” | asked Officer Smithifhe is familiar with the body-worn camera policy.
Officer Smith stated, “Yes.” I asked Officer Smith when should the body worn camera be turned
off. Officer Smith stated, “After the incident is completed.”

Attomey King asked Officer Smith when he said go dead,
the incident was over for you. Officer Smith stated, “Yes.” Attorney King asked Officer Smith
‘upon that order he retrieved his dog and went the other way. Officer Smith stated, “Yes.”
Attomney King asked Officer Smithifhe would have done that at that point anyway. Officer
Smith stated, “Aficr, yes. After I'm no longer needed with my partner K-, when we're no longer
needed in the, in the situation or the incident, I take him back to the truck as soon as possible.”

Attomey King stated to Officer Smith there didn't appear to be any need for you in the situation.
There were officers around the bad guy. AttomeyKing asked Officer Smith ifhe had
surrendered at that point. Officer Smith stated, “Yes.”

| Tasked Officer Smithifhe had surrendered at that point. Officer Smith stated, “Yeah. He, on the
video, when I have Vox over the fence holding him there, he got on the ground, he listened to my.

orders, "Get on the ground. Do it now." And at that point, Iwas no longer needed with the
dog.” 1 asked Officer Smith if he heard them telling the suspect to stop resisting. Officer Smith
stated, “No. 1 was not there for that.” confirmed with Officer Smith that he was not there when
officer said stop resisting. Officer Smith stated, “No. Once I turned my camera of, I walked
back to the Tahoe to put Vox up.” I asked Officer Smithif it was right afer. Officer Smith
stated, “Correct, yes.” | asked Officer Smith if he watched all the other videosofthe other
officers. Officer Smith stated, “Yes, I watched the videos.”

The interview concluded at 12:23 pan.

CAPTAIN EDGAR FOSTER

On November 20, 2019, I conducted a sworn recorded interview with Captain Edgar Foster. The
interview was conducted at the Riviera Beach Police Department, Internal Affairs Office; Room
-P-208, (600 West Blue Heron Boulevard, Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida.)
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The following sels forth a summaryof the interview. Although the summary is not a verbatim
Iranseript, itis substantially identical to the content of the interview. Compact discsofthe.
digitally recorded interview are included within the investigative file.

Prior to the interview, | informed Captain Fosterhe was being interviewedas a subject in
reference to the arrest of Mr. Anthony Goldwire on June 21, 2019. Captain Foster was given his
Garrity Rights and Officers Bill of Rights 112. Captain Foster sated he signed, read and
understood them. Captain Foster was afforded the opportunity toviewthe bodycam videos of the
incident. Captain Foster lected to have PBA Attomey Angela Barbosa Briggs present on his
behalf.

I asked Captain Foster ifhe is familiar with the arrest of Mr. Anthony Goldwire which occurred
on June 21%, 2019, at 1516 West 36" Street. Captain Foster stated, “Yes. I asked Captain foster if
he was working that day. Captain Foster stated, “Yes, I was.”

1asked Captain Foster to tell me what he remembered about the incident. Captain Foster stated,
“Officer, Sergeant B. Jackson came across the radio on a traffic stop. Shortly after he announced
that he was going ona traffic stop, he said, he came across the radio sounding, I could hear the
stress in his voice saying, "He just hit me. He just hit me for real, Yall," something along those
lines, and he gave out the descriptionofthe vehicle and his last directionoftravel. At that time, I
instructed all units to start heading to that area, saturate that, which is in the Monroe Heights
area. "Saturate that area. Let's locate the suspect and locate that vehicle." Units started
canvassing the area. | cameacross a resident that was walking dow the street in the 3600 block
‘of Avenue R, yeah, in Avenue R. Asked him had heseen a black vehicle come by ata high rate
of speed or something along those lines. He said, "No, but just saw a black male running
westbound down 36" Strect.” Like, he was trying to take his shirt or whatever the case may be.

| ‘Sounded like they was matching the descriptionofthe suspect that Sergeant Jackson put out.

So, Limmediately start, went to that area, um, established a perimeter, and we brought K-9 out
‘and started locating for ths, suspect. K-9, within, we started out in the 1500 block. I don't
remember the exact address or the house we started out, but its an abandoned house. Uh, K-9
started southbound through that yard into the property of the church adjacent to the back of it. He
started to give indication that he was in odor of the suspect. Um, it was one house to the west of
the church where I believe Officer Louden came around cause the dog indicated he was trying to
go through the fence into that property. Sergeant and then Officer Louden engaged the guy.
That's when the guy tookoffrunning, and there was a pursuit from yard to yard between 35
well, between, we started in the 1500 blockof35" Street. He went into the 1500 block of 36"
Street and going, basically going from yard to yard.

We eventually got into a yard where, the resident had a dog. 1 don't knowifthat dog engaging
the suspect or what have you, but simultaneously, our K-9 unit was coming on scene and started
giving out some commands to the guy. As he started giving out commands, the dog that was in
that yard where the suspect was, he engaged with our dog. That's when, I believe it was Officer
Harvey. He deployed his Taser to get the dogoffof the suspect, | meanoffof our dog. At that
time, | hopped the fence and came in between the K-0 handler and the dog, and I, and [
instructed who was in front of me Ben Smith and Harvey to go dead. Once they went dead, they
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went towards the, Ben Smith went towards the roadway. | went towards the roadway in the yard
‘where the suspect was apprehended.”

asked Captain Foster what does "go dead” mean. Captain Foster tated, “It was, like, just turn
off, just its over. Go dead. We're done.” asked Captain Foster ifit was over. Captain Foster
stated, “At that point, yes. 1 fet it was done at that point because he looked, the suspect was
compliant with Officer Ben Smith's commands becauseof the presenceof adog. When I saw
him starting to get on the ground, and then there was officers starting to approach from the yard
where he was at, that's when I came in, and I was between Ben Smith, his dog, and the suspect,
and that's when | instructed him to go dead.”

asked Captain Fosterifthe suspect resisted after that. Captain Foster stated, “Not in front of
me. When told him to go dead, he, then Smith started walking towards the roadway. I started
walking towards the roadway. So, we were basically going parallel towards the roadway. And
the reason why I said to go dead, becauseof the incident that we had with Officer Vanderlaan
and his dog. That was the,I believe the first deployment since that incident, and I know that
incident enough a black eye for the K-9 unit and the city as a whole.

So, when I saw that we had the opportunity to get an apprehension but it didn't happen because
( of the interferenceof the neighbors dog, thats why I got in between to make sure that we didn't

have anything that was gonna give the K-9 unit another black eye. We went dead, and we both +
| went simultaneously towards the roadway.”

1 stated to Captain Foster we are here in reference to this case, not the other K-9 case. But since
he was bringing it up, there were supervisors out there, and no one instructed them in thatcaseto
go dead or cut off their cameras. Captain Foster sated, “When, I don't think anyone knew what
was going, that was gonna happen at that point like that.”

Lasked Captain Foster if it is a policy where a supervisor tel an officer or anybody to cut off
their camera or go dead or go dark. Captain Foster stated, “No, its not in a policy, but if you feel
when you have a reason o articulate for turing the camera off, then you can do so. That was my
articulationof having them turn the camera oft.”

Tasked Captain Foster when he arrived on scene, did he sce the suspect. Captain Foster stated,
“Yes, he was, he was, you talking about just before I left where the suspect was being
apprehended? Yes, 1 saw himgetting on the ground, compliant to Officer Ben Smith's command
becauseofthe presence ofthe dog.”

asked Captain Foster if he ever heard anyone say, stop resisting. Captain Foster sated, “No, I
was already out of that from when I said, "Go dead," I saw officers starting to approach. I saw
him getting on the ground. | came across the fence,I said, "Go dead,” and I started walking
towards the roadway. Ben Smith was walking towards the roadway. My focus was not on the
suspect at this point because I scen him getting on the ground. My focus was mainly on the dog.
Get the dog in the vehicle, and thats a wrap on that part.”
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asked Captain Fosterif he reviewed the officers supplements. Captain Foster stated, “Yes. I
found out afterwards that he had resisted, not while I was there. I wasn't there when he had
resisted.” I confirmed with Captain Foster he was not there when anyone said, stop resisting.
‘Captain Foster stated, "No, I didn't hear anyone say stop resisting.”

asked Captain Foster what does "Go dead" mean. Captain Foster stated, “That was just my
terminology of, uh, going, turn the camera off.” I stated to Captain Foster there were a few
officers that knew the terminology because they did, in fact, cut the camera off. Captain Foster
stated, “Well, I believe that's my fist time using it. Is not, its just like if we're talking amongst
each other, somebody might say, "You hot? you hot?" We all know what that means, are you, is
your body cam on?”

1asked Captain Foster after he thought it was over and left, was the suspect up and in the car.
Captain Foster stated, “No, no. The suspect didn't come out to the roadway till afterwards. I was
already out at the roadway.” | confirmed with Captain Foster that he was saying that he was
already out at the road, and the suspeet hadnt made it here. Captain Foster stated, “Correct.”

1 asked Captain Foster why would he instruct them to, “go dark” when anything could happen
after he walked off. Captain Foster stated, “My instruction wasto the K-9 handler. Again, I cross
he fence, and1 faced the handler, Ben Smith.Tsaid, "Go dead.” Simultaneously,I went dead,
and we went walking towards the roadway. I didn't instruct everybody to go dead.” I reminded
Captain Foster that he gave a command with everyone around. Captain Foster stated, “To Ben
‘Smith, The officers that were approaching.” I asked Captain Foster if it was only for Ben Smith.
‘Captain Foster stated, “Exactly, because.” I asked Captain Foster if it was not for Officer
Harvey. Captain Foster stated, “But Harvey was standing next to Ben Smith, but my focus was
Ben Smith because he's the one that had the dog. Harvey didn't havea dog out.”

1 asked Captain Foster if he reviewed the videoofwhere the dog was andif the dog was close to
the suspect, Captain Foster stated, “It was fenced. The suspect probably was about here to that
door. Wasn't that far.”

1 asked Captain Foster how many officers were on the suspect. Captain Foster stated, “1 don't
Know. When the suspect was going, I'm on the, on the same side with Ben Smith and Harvey.
‘When, ‘cause Ben Smith had his dog, and he was about to put the dog over the fence until, and he
was giving commands until he was challenged by the resident's dog. When the dog engaged with
Ben Smith's dog, that's when, reason why Harvey tased the dogto get him offofthe, Ben Smiths
dog. Once that happened, I came across the fence ‘cause the suspect is already going to the
‘ground. So, he was no longer a concern to me. My focus was the K-9.”

I asked Captain Fosterif Sergeant Jackson told him he had to use counter measures on the
suspect afterwards. Captain Foster stated, “Yes. Everybody that used counter measures on him
told me after the fact.

1 reminded Captain Foster that he had already given the instruction to “go dead” and there were a
few officers out there that heard him make that command. Captain Foster stated, “Right.” I stated
to Captain Foster that the body camera did not capture him telling K-9 Officer Ben Smith to “go

Page 310149



dead.” Captain Foster stated, “Right” I sated to Captain Foster that could've been for anyone.
Captain Foster stated, “But | was facing, my focus, just ike I'm looking at you and I'm talking to
you, and I say go dead. I'm rot speaking, referring to her. Butifshe decides to tur her body cam
off, thats the decision that she make. But I'm referring to you. Isay, go dead.”

1 asked Captain Fosterif Sergeant Jackson was wearing his body camera. Captain Foster stated,
“1 didn't se him wear no body camera.”

asked Captain Foster if he thought he made the right decision by making that announcement.
Caplin Foster stated, “In hindsight, looking at it now, that that guy resisted afer th fact, okay,
1, like explained to Chief Rozier, maybe | prematurely said go dead. I take that. But it wasn't
Jike tried to orchestrate anything or 1 got everybody in on the same page to tell them to go dead
Twas referring to Ben Smith, the K-9 handler.”

1 asked Captain Fosterifhe told Ben Smith, "Go dead". Captain Foster stated, “I was looking
directly at him when 1said, "Go dead.” I did't call his name out, I did't point at him, but I'm
looking righta him when I sid, "Go dead."

asked Captain Fosterif he completed a supplement report. Captain Foster stated, “No, I did't.”

Attorney Briggs stated to Captain Foster, the body-worn cameras, they dont capture eye contact.
Captain Foster stated, “No, they don't.” Attorney Briggs stated to Captain Foster you cart catch
oye contact on a person who's wearing it because its not on your eyes, but the moment that you
were talking to Ben Smith, you were facing him. Captain Foster stated, “Uh-huh.”

Attorney Briggs stated to Captain Foster, we listened to his statement he indicated that he
| ‘understood that you were talking to him. Captain Foster stated, “Right.” Attorney Briggs stated

fo Captain Foster, he understood that what you were meaning is, ll right, is over, lets go.
Captain Foster stated, “Right” Atiomey Briggs sated to Captain Foster, you never saw the guy
resisting arrest. Captain Foster stated, “No, I did't. Attomey Briggs staed to Captain Foster you
just heard about it later, and everybody turned ina report, and you looked over that. Captain
Foster stated, “Right.

Attorney Briges stated to Captain Foster, when you walked away, the subject appeared to be:
under control and not resisting. Captain Foster sated, “Correct.” Attorney Briggs stated to
Captain Foster, he was just on the ground, and there were numerous other officers there. Captain
Foster stated, “Right, Well, they were approaching as | walk, yeah.”

Attorney Briggs asked Captain Foster, afer he told B. Smith to go dead and they walked away,
he didnt go around and make surc everybody else tuned off their camera or anything like that.
Captain Foster stated, “No,I didnt.” Attomey Briggs stated to Captain Foster because that wasnt
Your intention. Captain Foster stated, “No.”

Attorney Briges asked Captain Foster if he was involved in the physical arrest. Captain Foster
Stated, “No.” Attorney Briges stated to Captain Foster, you never touched the guy or put your
ands on him. Captain Foster sated, “No, I didn't” Attomey Briggs stated to Captain Foster,
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when you walked away, you said there were a bunch ofofficers around the guy. Captain Foster
stated, “They was approaching.” Attomey Briggs stated to Captain Foster, you knew they were
gonna finish the arrest. Captain Foster stated, “Correct.” Attomey Briggs stated to Captain
Foster, for you, the incident was completed. Captain Foster stated, “Correct. Right”

Attomey Briggs stated to Captain Foster, you had come up with the dog, you'd watched it
‘happen, and the incident was completed for you and for the K-9 guy, so you left. Captain Foster
stated, “Correct.” Atiomey Briggs asked Captain Fosterifeveryone who used counter measure
completed a report for him. Captain Foster stated, “Yes.” Attorney Briggs asked Captain Foster
fhe knew that he was on camera when he said, "Go dead". Captain Foster stated, “Yes.”
Attomey Briggs asked Captain Foster if he knew he was on multiple cameras when you said that.
Captain Foster stated, “Yes.”

Attomey Briggs stated to Captain Foster, you knew they could hear you saying that, you didn't
ry to say it in some secret way. Captain Foster stated, “Correct.” Attorney Briggs asked Captain
Foster if he recalled how much time had lapsed between when he and the K-9 officer found the
‘guy and when he walked away. Captain Foster stated, “Yeah, it was, it was, it was brief.

Tasked Captain Fosterif "go dead"is a partof the body-worn camera policy. Captain Foster
stated, “No, i's not.” | asked Captain Fosterifhe received the policy. Captain Foster stated,
“Yes, 1id.” I asked Captain Foster if he signed for it. Captain Foster stated, “Sure did.” I asked
Captain Foster did he understand it. Captain Foster stated, “Yes.”

1 stated to Captain Foster if he understands that telling an officer, whether it's his K-9 or any
officer, to tumoff their camera or go dead, it's possible the incident may not be over. It may be
over in your eyes but nottheir eyes, because had someone's camera been running, we would

[ have caught the suspect resisting, because several officers in their statements said that they
heard, "Stop resisting,” or the suspect wasn't resisting. This would've been captured on the body-
worn camera had "Go dead" not been said, although, he was saying he only addressed one
person. Captain Foster stated, “Uh-huh.” I stated to Captain Foster other people heard it. 1 asked
Captain Foster who was the highest-ranking supervisor at that scene. Captain Foster stated, “That
was me.” asked Captain Foster how long has he been a Captain. Captain Foster stated, “Since
February, 2019.”

‘The interview concluded at 4:15 pn.

SERGEANT BRIAN JACKSON

On November 25, 2019, I conducted a sworn recorded interview with Sergeant Brian Jackson.
The interview was conducted at the Riviera Beach Police Department, Internal Affairs Office;
Room - P-208, (600 West Blue Heron Boulevard, Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida.)

Thefollowing sets forth a summary of the interview. Although the summary is not a verbatim
Iranseript, it is substantially identical to the content ofthe interview, Compact discsof the
digitally recorded interview are included within the investigative file.
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Prior to the interview, 1 informed Sergeant Jackson he was being interviewed as a subject in
reference to the arrest of Mr. Anthony Goldwire on June 21, 2019. Sergeant Jackson was given
his Garrity Rights and Officers BillofRights 112. Sergeant Jackson sated he signed, read and
understood them. Sergeant Jackson elected not to have PBA. Attorney present on his behalf.

Prior to the interview I asked Sergeant Jackson if he was given the opportunity to review the
investigative files, body-uworn camera video captured, and also any interviews. Sergeant Jackson
stated, “Yes.”

asked Sergeant Jackson ihe is familiar with that arrest Mr. Anthony Goldie that occurred on
June 21%, 2019, at 1516 W. 36 Street. Sergeant Jackson stated, “Yes.”

1 asked Sergeant Jackson ifhe was scheduled to work that day. Sergeant Jackson stated, “Yes. I
asked Sergeant Jackson what capacity was he working that day. Sergeant Jackson stated, “I was
Supervisor over the Tactical Team.”

asked Sergeant Jackson to explain what happened when he initially came in contact with the
subject, Mr. Goldwire, Sergeant Jackson stated, “Yes. On the day of, had worked almost a full
Shift, It was almost go home tine. It was like probably 30 minutes to the end of my shift when I
was heading home. Twas parked on the side of the road in a church parking lot. In the parking
Tot, 1 parked there, so I can, you know, do my final paperwork for the day, my supervisory
paperwork. 1t would have took me right about 30 minutes and put me right atthe time to go
home ifIwould have finished that paperwork.

| So took off my, my outof carry and my ballistic carrier, which had my body camera and
everything on if, and I put in the passenger seat and | was preparing to do my supervisory
paperwork for the endofthe day. Allof asudden, while I'm geting ready to do my paperwork, I
sec this car on Avenue O, in the 3700 block, going southbound. It was going well over 40 miles
anhour ina 25-hour residential zone. So, you know, I'm trying to put the citizens first and not
being greedy to go home and turn a blind eye to it, decided to get behind this car in fear that it
was up to something.”

asked Sergeant Jackson once he made the decision to get behind the car, did he forget to put
back on hs ballistic vest and camera. Sergeant Jackson stated, “Yes, I did. Like Isay, the car
was traveling well over 40 miles an hou ina 2 residential zone. So how fast the car went past
me, if would have did anything else but immediately go afer the car, I knew I would have lost
it. So that's what 1 did. | went, | immediately went behind the car. Tt blew like two Stop sigs.
When I finally catch up to the car, activate my lights and sirens, the car pulls over. At that point,
Twas about 0 reach over and get my ballistic vest so I could put it on, you know, and carry out
the traffic stop with my body camera and everything, but then the driver started doing something
not common fora driver to-do on a trafic stop. He started trying to exit the vehicle, like he
wanted to go in the house. And that would have put me at a point ofdisadvantage ifI reach back
in my car across to the passenger seat to get my vest {0 put it back on. So I encounter, [
challenged the driverof the car o get back in his car several times and that's when the incident
really start taking a turn. At that point, thedriver eventually got back in his car. I thought he was
gonna, about to maneuver lis sclso he can back into his driveway. But instead of backing into
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his driveway, he made likea sort ofa three-point turn in the middleof the roadway and he
headed back towards my police vehicle. At that point, thoughtI was aboutto get it by his
car”

1 asked Sergeant Jackson if he was outside the car or was he stil sitting in the Car. Sergeant
Jackson stated, “I was outside ofthe car then. Twas outside of the car. I was in close proximity
‘ofthe car because when I say he was taking a tum, how he was like reluctant to go back to his
car,| thought he was gonna back into his yard. Andifhe backs into his yard, he would have
been ata, at such an advantageif he wanted to takeoffrunning or anything crazy. That's why 1
was kindofstepping away from my vehicle o get, keep that angle on him. But, at thatpoint, he
made the three-point turn and came back towards my vehicle. And thinking I was gonna get hit
by a car, | had two options to use some kind of force on him, but I wastryingto get out the way
at that point. So l tried to get real smart with my back up against my car. And he hit the driver
Side doorofmy car causing my right hand to get smashed between the door and the door jam.
“The meaty partofmy hand, not just the fingers, but the meaty par, slammed as the car hit the
door”

1 asked Sergeant Jackson if his hand was in between the door. Sergeant Jackson stated, “Yeah.
Um.” I stated to Sergeant Jackson I thought he said he was in the backofthe vehicle making
himself small. Sergeant Jackson stated, “No. As he was making this mancuver, I was kind of, I'l
say probably five steps away from the vehicle, tying to keep an angle on him just in case he did
‘Something erratic. But as | saw him about to come back towards me, that's when I put my back

[ up. 1 probably say against the driver side back door. I put my back up against my driver side
back door. And he was comingso close, you know, had both of my hands up, you know, ike
somebody told me freeze. And I'm trying to get real small up against the car so he can have

Toom to go by. But my driver's door was open, all the way open, and he hit my drivers door with
| His front left bumper. And whe the door, when he hit the door, the door swung and hit my hand

that was up, and he hit my knee with the car as he passed by me. That's how close he was to me.
And, like, 1 just feel sharp pains in my hand right then and there and he took off. He
immediately led the area after tha. Ireally thought he tried to kill me because, you know, when
somebody usually run from the police or tryto flee, he could have fled eastbound and went
Straight down 32% Street, He could have drove around my car to the passenger side and fled the
area. He chose o drive into my driver's door right where I was, you know, standing outside the
car, in an attempt to hit me. So long story short, he takes off back westbound towards Aveitue O.
immediatelyjump in my vehicle by this time, trying to radio for backup units, my hand hurting.
I'm trying lo drive with this hurt hand. Also, my door to the police vehicle wouldn't close at that
point. Trying to put my ballistics back on,i was out of my mind, you know, just based on the
totality.”

1 asked Sergeant Jackson ifhe ever got hs ballistic vest back on. Sergeant Jackson stated, “Not
at that time. No. So we circling the area. | put a big perimeter on the area. The units respond to
the area. We finally locate his vehicle abandoned on 37 Street, I believe. We think we got a
good lockdownofthe arca. We eventually hear that some units spotted him, like a street over, 36.
Street area. He started running between houses. Nobody seen, like, they was able to catch up
with him, so I moved in. And he was cornered behind a house witha fence around it and that's
where he was apprehended.”
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1 asked Sergeant Jackson what happened onee he was in the backyardof the residence. Sergeant
Jackson sated, “Well, me knowing what he had done, I'm waiting on, ‘cause K-9 was out there
for assistance and everything like that. So I was kind of standing back and letting K-9, you
Know, do what they do. But once they got to the house with the gate, the gate that he was
comered behind, it seemed like the K-95 couldn't get over the gate to where he was. There was a
officer standing on the, perimeterofthe gate. Like, they couldn't jump the gate. AndI know the
homeowner still kind of mad at me ‘cause I ended up jumping on his parked car just to get over
that gate. AndI believeI was the first one to him. As I was coming up to him, you know, I was
ordering him to do whatever he needed to do to comply at that time. And as more officers
‘gathered around him and during that whole ordeal, he sarted trying to go into his pockets. And
when he was going into his pockets, I believe that it was aweapon. And, at that point, I punched
him in his head like several times, trying to distract him from getting this weapon to give officers
a chance to get his arms from his pocket and to restrain him.”

I asked Sergeant Jackson ifhe found any weapon on him. Sergeant Jackson stated, “No. 1 got
the, after he was restrained and everything, 1 went to that pocket trying 10, you know, see what he
was trying {0 geta hold of, just to make sure that if it was a weapon to secure it. And it turned
out to bea cell phone. And as a result of that, put that cell phone in evidence.”

I asked Sergeant Jackson ifhe resisted at any point. Sergeant Jackson stated, “Yes.” | asked
Sergeant Jackson if the suspect started resisting after he realized it was a cell phone. Sergeant
Jackson stated, “Did he resist aftrI realized it was a cell phone. 1 can't really recall that. 1just
know that through the whole ordeal he was tensing up, trying to go in his pocket. It ust scemed
like it was forever. Like, like, uh, come on, officers, get a, get a grip, a hold of this guy. 1 know
it can't be that difficult. It felt like a lifetime. So can't really recall, you know, after or before,
but [know he was resisting the whole time he was out of handcuffs.”

asked Sergeant Jackson if he was the only supervisor or officer that punched him. Sergeant
Jackson stated, “Oh, I can't recall. 1 know I punched him.” I asked Sergeant Jackson if it was
more than once. Sergeant Jackson stated, “Yes.”I asked Sergeant Jackson1 it was more than
twice. Sergeant Jackson stated, “Yes.”

1asked Sergeant Jackson if that is why he had to be cleared medically. Sergeant Jackson stated,
“He, you know, not trying to make it sound bad or good, but I saw his pictures and he did have
some damage. 1 don't think I hit that hard. He could have fell while he was running before we
got to him. don't know. But just based on the fact that I know I hit him, he had to get
medically cleared.”

I asked Sergeant Jackson during the ordeal, did he hear Captain Foster say the phrase, "Go dead."
‘Sergeant Jackson stated, “I was yelling loud saying, "Stop resisting,” you know, "Put your hands
behind your back,” whatever the verbals I was using. I can't really say yes or no. Butas I'm
yelling so loud,if he said it, can't recall.” a sked Sergeant Jacksonifhe heard him say that,
‘what would that have meant. Sergeant Jackson stated, “"Go dead.” Well, I hope he wasn't
talking about the suspect on the ground. Was he? don't know. I don't know.”
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asked Sergeant Jackson to tell me what happened once he was actually in handcuffs. Sergeant
Jackson stated, “Once he was in handcuffs, that was the endofends. All the officers backed off
‘of him. I can't remember who transported him to the hospital, butI eventually met him at the
hospital. And I'm, you know, I really wanted some clarification cause I felt that he just ried to
kill me. Like,Ibelieve Iasked him, "Man," why, why you try to hit me with your car, run me
over," or something like that. I don't know what I, exactly I asked him. But I'm trying to ask
him for his explanation, not only for, you know, investigative purposes, but trying to see why
youtried to kill me. And he was nonchalant about it, just worried about his cell phone and like I
didn't have no reason to stop him.”

asked Sergeant Jackson did he walk the suspect out or did other officers. Sergeant Jackson
stated, “It had to be other officers.” I asked Sergeant Jackson to tell me again how his hand was
injured again.” Sergeant Jackson stated, “It was smashed in the door. Istil got the scarring from
it. It was caught right in the door jam. And it caught like the meaty part of my hand. It just, the
force from the car hitting it slammed it in the door.”

asked Sergeant Jacksonifhe completed a supplement report. Sergeant Jackson stated, “Yes.” I
asked Sergeant Jackson if that concluded his involvement in the incident. Sergeant Jackson
stated, “Yes. Rather than, other than the routine paperwork. Yeah.”

“The interview will be concluded at 4:24 p.m.
[
| WILLIAM PARHAM, HOME OWNER

On December 13, 2019, I conducted a sworn recorded interview with Mr. William Parham. The
interview was conducted at the Riviera Beach Police Department, Internal Affairs Office; Room

| ~P-208, (600 West Blue Heron Boulevard, Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida.)

The following sets forth a summary of the interview. Although the summary is not a verbatin
iranseript, itis substantially identical fo the contentofthe interview. Compact discsof the
digitally recorded interview are included within the investigative file.

Prior to the interviewI informed Mr. Parham I attempted to make contact with him on several
occasions and thanked him for finally making contact with me. I also informed Mr. Parham he
was being interviewed in reference to an incident that occurred in the backyardofhis residence
on June 21, 2019. Mr. Parham stated, “Oh, yeah. I do remember.”

1 asked Mr. Parham to tell me what remembered that night. Mr. Parham stated, “Well, L had just
pulled in and I was just sitting there listening to a song in my truck, and I seen the police cars
come from both directions across the street and over by that house over there, and they all got
out. They got out with the dogs, so I got out ofmy truck, and Istarted seeing what they were
doing, They went across the street that old abandoned house right there and they were, like
looking over there. And then, all of the sudden, I heard a bunch of ruckus in the back yard. |
guess someofthe cops Went that way, you know, to the west and came around.

1 don't know if the guy ran into my yard or was already there. thought I saw somebody when I
was sitting in the truck. That's when I started looking and the police pulled up. My gate was
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locked so when that, when I heard the ruckus in the backyard, I got, I walked in through the front
door and out the back, and they had the guy, they had his hands behind his back righta the back
door. WhenI opened the door, as matter of fact, the door hit the guy. That's how close he was
tothe door. I stepped out (unintelligible). Its like, they had swarmed him and they was putting
the cuffs on him and there was one cop that I told him, like,I told him (unintelligible) and [
didn’t like whatIwas seeing.

So then the guy on the side, he had his elbow up over his neck and 1 just told ‘em, you know, that
yalll need to getthisout of my yard. I don't like what I'm seeing. That was my, that was my
‘exact words and they told me to go back in the house and afer that, I didn't see the taser deploy,
but, evidently it was ‘cause my dog got hit by the thing. 1 went in the house. Come out front
They brought the guy though. Put him in the car, and they left. About 30 minutes later, maybe
an hour later, an officer came back, and said he missing one of his probes, and where was my
dog? And 1 said, "The dogs in the house." He said, "Can you bring him out and we'll check him
to seeifthe probe's still in him.” And sure, enough the probe was in his side. 1 was trying to
figure why it was in my dog. When I came out the door, my dog was, like, in the midstof the
crowd like he was going after the guy. You understand what I'm saying. And, it was, kind of,
weird to me that he stopped his attack just ight in his tracks. didn't even know he got tased.
The officer asked me could look around for the other probe. He took the one out of the dog. He
told me to snatch it, it come right out. And I gave that to him. And about three days later, |
found a copper wire laying by that tree from when probe going in. I guess it might've been in the
guy's clothing, don’t know.

But that's pretty much what I saw and thought that was, and I was upset just seeing that
(unintelligible) white cop. That's all I can (unintelligible). But they jumped my fence, like I

: said, they was (unintelligible) nobody leave it open and let my dog out. And Id just bought this
| truck. One cop slid over the truck, like jumped, slid over the hoodofthe truck. said, "Hey,

man, what are you doing? 1 just bought this truck. Get off my truck." "I didn't get on your
truck.
‘And the other one, I had my old truck sitting right there, and hejumped over the gate, and ran
across the hood, and ran back there too. You know what I'm saying. Like, like, the what hell is
going on? You know, that, it was crazy. But, that was pretty much the incident. It wasn't, you
know, too long, it was pretty quick. But I, like I said, I don't knowif the guy was already in the
yard, or what, they just chased him, and he jumped over the fence. And that's about pretty much
all can tell you." Iasked Mr. Parham ifhe said everything that he membered. Mr. Parham
stated, “Yeah. That's pretty much it.”

The interview concluded at 11:22 am.

ANTHONY GOLDWIRE, SUSPECT

On December 16,2019, I conducted a sworn recorded interview with Mr. Anthony Goldwire.
Theinterviewwas conducted at 1516 West 36" Street, Riviera Beach, Florida.

Page 38 0f49



The following sels forth a summaryof the interview. Although the summary is nota verbatin
iranseript, itis substantially identical fo the content ofthe interview. Compact discs ofthe
digitally recorded interview are included within the investigative file.

Prior to the interview informed Mr. Goldwire he was being interviewed in reference to an
incident that occurred on June 21%, 2019, involvinghimself and severalofRiviera Beach Police
Officers.

Tasked Mr. Goldwire if he remembered that day. Mr. Goldwire stated, “Uh-huh.”Lasked Mr.
Goldwire to tell me what happened. Mr. Goldwire stated, “I remember going, coming from, well,
being, well, running to Walmart real quick to get something, waiting for my friends at the house
cause we were going o a party that night. So, I went to Walmart to get something before they
came to pick me up. 1 was hopping in their car. On my way back, coming down Silver Beach, I
made the right turn on O Avenue. I seen a police officer parked inside that church parking lot.
seen him before he seen me before I turned on O Avene.

So, when I seen him, he got behind me, but he was (unintelligible) got back to the stop sign. So, I
‘assume, like, I kinda know he was gonna get behind me, whatever. He, once I turned onto my
street on 32%, to the second stop sign, | made my left, my signal lights. Once he seen me make
{he lef, honestly I thought was trying to get away from him. He turned on his lights. just kept
‘going to my house. 1 hopped out with my ID in my hand. 1, ‘cause | went, you know,
(unintelligible) 1 didn't want to miss going to a party. So, I'm like, "Okay, this is my house.
What you pull me over for? I know I didnt do nothing wrong. I seen you before you seen me,
so knew I couldn't do nothing wrong.” He's just like, "Get back in yourcar before I tase you,"
but he did't have no Taser in his hand. He had his gun pointed at me at the time. So, I'm like,
"What did I do?" Is like he got more aggressive as he kept saying, like, "Get back in your
fucking car. Get back --" Like, he got more aggressive.

So, now I'm just scared. I'm like, "This is my house.” I don't know ifhe didn't believe me. I had
my ID in my hand like this. I'm like, "This is my house. This is my house, what did you pull me
over for?" He couldn't tell me. He's like, "Just get back in your car before I tase you.” He had his
‘gun pointed at me at the time, so 1 just blanked. I was gonna think about running to my house,
knocking on the door, screaming something to get my family out. My brother sill was, my
brother was in the parking lot before I left to go to Walmart, so I knew he had to still be up.
‘When 1 got back, no one was out there.

So, just got in the car and I just lef. didn’t, I didn't know I was, just left. I was scared. I was.
freaking out. 1 just left. Once I backed, got back in the car, I backed in, and I'm trying to get
away. I'm not initially trying to do anything stupid. I guess whenI went on the sideofhim, he, I
‘guess tapped the back ofthe taillight trying to get away. I didn’, that's when he just got behind
me, and it escalated to the next. 1 (unintelligible) pulling over next street over just to get out on
the next street over. That's when they got, I parked (unintelligible). just, | heard more sirens.
Im just freaked out now.

So, next thing you know, I'm on someone's side of the house, like, calling my friends so they
come and get me. So, I'm telling them don't come to my (unintelligible), calling my mom, telling,
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my mom, you know, telling her what's going on. So now, he calling me, my other friend's
calling me, My mom, my brother, they calling me. Now they were, now they know what's going
on. I'm still on the sideof someone's house. I don't know where I'm at, at this point. It's every bit
of, 11:00, 12 in the morning now. I don't know where I'm at. hear asiren. I hear dogs. I'm just,
my heartbeat as , as | hear what's going on I'm lke, its reality.

So, I'm just scared. 1, asI sec the, Icall my friend to come, to come to where I'm at, whatever.
The police see my friend, seen my friend come, whatever. Once they seen my friend stop, 1 seen
the police. I surrender. Once I surrendered, I didn’t, once I seen them running to me,I was like,
"Okay. Okay." I stopped. I surrendered. Once I got down,Ididn't remember getting put in
handeuffs. I didn't remember walking, getting picked up, walked to the car, nothing.

Once I surrendered, my friend, my sister called me because she know what was going on.
Everyone calling me. My sister called me. "What's going on? What's going on?" She Face-Timed
me. And the police told me, he heard it, my phone ring, its an iPhone. He was like, "Don't pick
that phone up" as | surrendered, "Dont pick the phone up." 1 still answered it because my sister's
calling me to see what's going on. She was like, "Ate you okay? You good? You good? You
200d?" That's when he threw my phone down, stepped on it, cracked it, and slid it over
somewhere.

“That's the last thing I remember. My sister say she heard me in the back on the phone saying,
| Jike, screaming for help, "Ah, ah, ah," the people saying, like, "Stop resisting." But a this time, I

didn't know what was going on. And that was it. That was, like, the blackout. My, next thing I
remember, waking up in Saint Mary's, handcuffed to the bed. I remember them puting me up,
picking me up, walking me in the car, driver saying, I just wake, remember waking up, were

bruises on my face. The last thing I remember was me surrendering and my, and me picking up
the, me picking up the phone call. I think like this every day (unintelligible) just remember
waking up at Saint Mary's.

My face (unintelligible) no matter what I did, I don't deserve to have my ass beat. I never had no
criminal history. I never been in trouble. I was scared. He hopped out with his gun pointed at me.
Tdidn't. And to ust wake up at Saint Mary's like this and the nursing asking them, "What did
yall do to him?" They bul shitting around, “We don't know. We don't know. He was running.
from us." The lady asking them, "No, I need to know what happened to him. He, its not, she was
like, she wasn't (unintelligible) maybe they tased you. She trying to figure out. They giving her
he bullshit around. She was like, "No, I need to know what happened to him. Like, I gotta ilea
report” They not know nothing. Tm dazed. 1 don‘, I'm just in pain.

And one of your police officer, he flashing his lights in my eyes. I'm like, "What s you doing?"
He, they giggling about it. He was like, "(Unintelligible) squeeze your litle cheeks. He just
‘messed with me, just bothering me. Like, he was like, I should squeeze your cheeks.” I asked
him, say, "Where is my phone at?" "I don't know. We don't know. We don't know where your
phone at."

1 remember him stepping on my phone, (unintelligible) it, and my sister remember everything.
My sister said she was gonna record the call and, like, everything, but she said she couldn’.
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“There was not enough time. Once he snatched it, the phone got disconnected. But she heard me,
like, the screaming. She heard me screaming. But still, he didn't know where my phone was. He's
like a lot ofgames or claiming like, I don't know. No matter what I did,I don't feel like I
should've (unintelligible) -- end up in that predicament, I don't know what happened from the
time I surrendered to the time, I believe they black, they hit me thats how they blacked me out:
didn't know what they was doing.

When, it was at least nine or 10 officers, dogs. when I, the house I surrendered in, it was, they
had a dog in their backyard. I still was back there with their dog. So, when the K-9 came, their
dog was barking at the canine. The police, Riviera Beach tased the people's dog who I park, who
backyard I was in. They tased their dog right before they, right before, like, I'm so, it was just
crazy when they tased their dog and then they, like, focused on me. It was, like, nine officers.

And then after that, 1 just don't remember, just waking up in Saint Mary's. I don't remember
‘getting put back in police car, reading my rights, nothing, being handcuffed, people picking me
up, ‘cause I knew there was more than one person, so I knew I had to be picked up by one or
‘more personoff the ground.I don't remember nothing. I just remember waking up in Saint
Mary's like this with pain in my face, my face swollen, knees scraped up, bruises everywhere,
and just, and that's all | remember. I don‘, and people asking me what happened. | can't tell
them. I don‘, I don't know. I don't know the full details aftr I surrender. I knew I wasn't running;
I knew I wasn't on the run. 1 just wanted it to stop. I don't know what happenedafter that. And

| that's it”

I asked Mr. Goldwireif he has a driver's license. Mr. Goldwi re stated, “Uh, yes.” I asked Mr.
Goldwireifhe had a driver's license at that time. Mr. Goldwire stated, “Yes.” I asked Mr.
Goldwireidfhe knew when he get stoppedby an officer, hehad to remain there. Mr. Goldwire
stated, “Yeah. | know now what I would do. 1 know not to run or nothing like that now, but at
the same time, police Killing people every day and I guess a lot of razy stuff. So, at that time, |
was scared. 1 didnt know. And then you tell me you gonna tase me, but you got your gun
pointed, I knowa gun when I sec a gun. He had a gun pointed at me, and the angle he had it in,
you should know. Your police officers, there's only one ofme, you're two times, three times
bigger than me, whoever. I'm just a littl, (unintelligible) guy. I can't do nothing.

Thad my ID in my hand in front ofmy house, but, you know, what did I do, How can you
(unintelligible). I'm trying to go out tonight. I didn't know this was gonna escalate to that. So,
that's why I hopped out with my ID in my hand. I was like, "Oh, Lord. What did I do?" ‘cause I
knew I did nothing wrong. And then when I read the report, he said I missed a stop sign. No, I
didn't, ‘causeI seen you before you seen me, so I know | got right before I turned onto O Avenue
right there. So, I know noneof that stuff.

“Then he say he pulled me "cause he estimated me doing 25 and you can't estimate. You didn't 1
would have see the gun. You just, you just, like,a lot of stuff is just made up to cover yall
behind. Its, like, what's the real reason? You say you estimate that I ran, that I was doing this
amount in this speed limit. You know? You can't estimate. How can you say that?”
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explained to Mr. Goldwire that 1 was going to go back through everything from the start of the
incident. I confirmed with Mr. Goldwire that he was asked to stop for a trafic stop and he got
outofhis vehicle. Mr. Goldwire stated, “Uh-huh. The first thing. Yeah.”

Tasked Mr. Goldwireif theofficer old him to get out of his vehicle, orif he voluntarily got out
ofhis vehicle with his license. Mr. Goldwire stated, “I got out of the vehicle with my license.” I
asked Mr. Goldieif the officer asked him to step back in his vehicle. Mr. Goldwire stated,
“No, he -- no, I was going fo my house. As I stat to say, "What are you pulling me over for?
“This is my house," he was like, he say, "Get back in your vehicle.” But | wasn't unintelligible).
was going to my, | was walking close to my doorstep 10 get my peoples out. But as | walked to
quick, as I'm going to my doorstep, he got more aggressive. "Get back in your fucking vehicle
before I tase you." So now, I feel like ifI take one more step, I don't know what might come out
of what is in his hand, eithera tasc or a gunshot. So, just got back in my car, and I just left.
justleft. T don't know.”

Lasked Mr. Goldwireifhe got back in his vehicle right away when theofficerdirected him to do
So. Mr. Goldire stated, “No.” I asked Mr. Goldwire when he finally got back in his vehicle if he
proceeded to leave. Mr. Goldwire stated, “Yes.” I stated to Mr. Goldwire as he was proceeding
10 leave, he struck the police vehicle. I asked Mr. Goldwire if the officer was outside. Mr.
Goldwire sated, “Trying to get away. Not trying, Im not gonna try to run a police officer, like,
I'm tryingto go down. IfI hear a police officer, I'm not trying to go to prison.” I asked Mr.
Goldwire when he attempted to leave, was the officer outside ofthe car. Mr. Goldwire stated,
“Yes, he still was outside the car.” | asked Mr. Goldwireifhe knew he struck the vehicle when
he was passing. Mr. Goldwire stated, “Did I, no. No,I didn't know, okay. When he, when I was
leaving, he was like, "Oh." He got outof the way as if was about to hit him. So, he was like,
"Oh." So, I'm thinking, | know I did't hit him, soT think, like, okay, Im going to, I know I did't
hit him. © thought he just did that ‘cause he didn't know was I, I'm going to really, like, leave.

| Once I got back in my car, (unintelligible) stay there. But once he seen me pull off,
| (unintelligible). But I~ (unintelligible).”

T asked Mr. Goldwire when he pulled off, did he keep going in an attempt to make it home. Mr.

Goldwire stated, “No, | was already in frontof my, I was just going to leave from, whatever the
area.” I asked Mr. Goldwire why. Mr. Goldwire stated, “Cause that's when I was trying to go to
my house, hedid't want me to go to my house. He's like.” I stated to Mr. Goldwire I thought he
said he was already at home. Mr. Goldwire stated, “No, when he pulled me over, when he, when
Tm on O Avenue and 32%. When you tur left or, I'm turning lef, he hit his lights ‘cause he
thought I was trying to get off I'm think, I'm guessing. As I hit my lights to go left, my house,
like, four houses down from O Avenue. I stopped at my, I just kept going to my house. I got out
at my house, in front of my house with my ID. Isaid, "I stay here. Whatd you pull me over for?"
"Get back in your car," this and that. I stay here. "Get back in your fucking car." At that point,
when he ask (unintelligible) "Get back in your fucking car before I tase you," I got back into my
car and just left. T couldn't even go get my call or scream or nothing. I just felt, don't know. I
was just panicking, 1was just scared. 1was, Idon't know. I've never been to that situation before,
So, and then, Idon't know. I guess1 did, he told me to get back in the car. We could've vented it,
but its like, you're a police officer. You're trained. The way he had the gun pointed at me, you
made it seem like 1 had something on me. I didn't have nothing in my car. I wasn‘, [know 1
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didn't have nothing in my car. | wasn't worried about that. just wanted to get this over with,
‘what you stop me for, soI can continue my night for the night. 1know Idid nothing wrong. But
he hada gun. I seen a gun pointed at me in frontof my house. I'm trying to stay, like, I've been
pulled over before where it's been worse and I had nicer police officers. But for that incident,
like, for that, its like, you had a gun pointed at, I, like, first quarter. Like, you just, frst quarter,
you, I don't know.”

1 stated to Mr. Goldwire, after he got back in the car if he knew he had you didn't know it, but
youstruck the police vehicle and leave. Tasked Mr. Goldwire where he went. Mr. Goldwire
Stated, “I didn't know it. I went,I turned right, and| went up 33, whatever. There was people
outside. They were like, "No, no, no, no, 10, no, don't stop here, whatever. Don't stop here."
“They was having a party. They was like, "No, don't stop here. Don't stop here." I guess they
didn't want me bringing all that over there. So, (unintelligible), whatever. So, I went, and then I
just got outof the car and just left it.I don't know. I just.”1 asked Mr. Goldwireifhe exited the
car and left it. Mr. Goldwire stated, “Yeah,Idid. Went into the first — Iwentto - I hopped the
fence and went to the first house. It was like (unintelligible) brothers (unintelligible). I wanted to
be somewhere where I can be and call, let people know what'sgoingon. I couldn't do that while |
still”Istated to Mr. Goldwire you said you hopped a you hopped a fence. Mr. Goldwire stated,
“Hopped a fence and 1 was on, I don't know what its, like, a big house, like a daycare there. I
don't know whereI was. I don't know. Was just somebody's backyard. Idon't know. Somebody's

( backyard.”

| I asked Mr. Goldwire when he hopped the fence was he behind a residence. Mr. Goldwire stated,
“Yes, I was. Yeah.” | confirmed with Mr. Goldwire that he was attempting to call. Mr. Goldwire
stated, “My (unintelligible) brothers (unintelligible) sister. I called my brother was outside when
they stay with me.Icalled my grandma. I called, yeah, just, like, everyone, just wanted to let
them know what's going on ‘cause my brother seen me leaving. He was outside with his
homeboy, with his friend before I left, when I went to Walmart. So, him and his friend seen me.
So, when 1 got back home after that everything happened, my brother was like, yeah, our friend
was glad he was just out here. Like, they was outside, chilling. 1 went, ran to Walmart by the
time I got back within, I went to Walmart for some boxers, for a pairofboxers. By the time I got
back, they weren't there, so it was like, I ran there real quick, came back, just trying to get ready
for the club, yeah.”

1 stated to Mr. Goldwire, just to reiterate, he said that he heard, um, police sirens, the dog and
then you noticed the officers coming inhisdirection. Mr. Goldwire stated, “I heard everything.
That is when I called my brother, like, "What did you do?" Like, he was like, "What happened?”
He was like, "I sce your vehicle, like, roped off.” Like, he was like, "What you do?" So, now
my brother is telling me that. Se, I'm like, "What?" He was like, "every street(unintelligible)
roped off" So now, like, I'm getting more scared. Like, what did 1 do? Like I don't know. I don't
Know. Like, man like I Killed so, I don't know. At that point, when he was like, "What did you
do," like, I'm like, "Nothing. I just, like, he pulled me over. I was in my, it just a traffic stop gone:
wrong. Its not ~* Idon't know. I just want it to be over. I over with. Is like, now, from that five
minutesofmistakes like caused me a background, its, like, just too much stuff, like,I think
about every day.”
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stated to Mr. Goldwire, once the officers were where he was he said that he was surendering. I
asked Mr. Goldwireifhe was still on the phone. Mr. Goldwire stated, “Still on the phone? Yes,
no. At that point, |wasn't on the phone. I wasnt on the phone. My sister called me right back
before, she called me righ, she called me back. I had to pick up, so I wasn't on the phone. I
hadn't been picking up the phone. They told me.”I asked Mr. Goldwire ifhe was on the ground.
Mr. Goldwire stated, “Yeah, he told me don't pick it up. Yep. He told me don't pick it up, and |
still” asked Mr. Goldwireifthe phone was in his pocket. Mr. Goldwire stated, “The phone, the
‘phone was in my hand. But he just heard it ringing. Hewas like, "Don't pick it up." Like, he
didn't want me picking it up. It wasn't in my pocket, I didn't have to reach for nothing. It wasn't,
it just, already in my hand. | was already talking to people. But when I sen them coming, I
wasn't on the phone ‘cause I remember me having to pick up the phone.”

1confirmed with Mr. Goldwire it was definitely dark around that time. Mr. Goldwire stated,
“Dark, late night. And [ remember me, my sister calling me. That would've made him said,
‘cause he heard the phone ringing. He was like, "Don't pick that phone up." But she was Face
liming me, so she wanted to sce what was going on. I guess he seen that it wasFaceTime. He
knew what was going on, and he stepped on my phone to, yeah. And my sister, like, she heard
me screaming, screaming. So after he stepped on the phone, I don't know what they did. I was
screaming for help like, she said like they was beating me. Like,I had to be. I woke up like that,
and I don't remember noneofit. I just remember him telling me, "Don't pick up the phone,” me

| surrendering, and that was it.”

: stated to Mr. Goldwire, he said earlier he heard them saying "Stop resisting.” Mr. Goldwire
stated, “That, she said that's what she said. When I got out, she was like, yeah. But when, and
then on my police report, its resisting without violence. Like, no, I'm not, I know me. I'm not no
trouble kid, and it was like (unintelligible) by two K-95of yall's. Then like, what am I gonna
resist, I'm wanting this tobe over. I'm not fighting back or nothing. I'm not about to run again.
Tm not, lke, making it bigger than what it is. don’, like I said, don't remember nothing,
except from when the phone situation to after that, I don't remember. I just remember waking up
at Saint Mary's and one handcus on one side, one handeufTs on the other side, and just fecl my
Tace tight. 1 just feel, 1 don't know. Thats when I was like, okay, something happen,I know this
real, something happened. Like, I don't remember even, I don't remember even walking to Saint
Mary or them getting me to Saint Mary. I just remember waking up witha lot ofight, in the
room like this just, on a bed. Yeah, I don't remember walking in the building or nothing.”

1 confirmed with Mr. Goldwire his last memory was when the officer was telling him not to
answer the phone. Mr. Goldwire stated, “Not pick up your phone. Not to answer and that was it.
“Cause I don't like | said, when my sister was telling me, she had to tell me what happened on
the phone call ‘cause I don't remember it. But she told me, like, once I got out, and I think she
told me that when I was in there. I talked to her when I was in. I called her before, and she was
telling me, she like, "Its crazy." She like, "Yeah, and, how about, you know, when that
happened, 1 was still on the phone.” She was like, "AndI heard you in the background." So, its
like my sister, like, she know what was going on. But that's all | remember. But after that, I don't
remember nothing else.”
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1asked Mr. Goldwire was he residing in Riviera Beach at the time of the incident. Mr. Goldwire
stated, “Uh-huh.” asked Mr. Goldwire ifhe lives in Lake Worth now. Mr. Goldwire stated,
“No, they have, I was staying with my cousin. They probably still have my old address from
before. So yeah, okay. 1 ive with my cousin, but yeah.” I sated to Mr. Goldwire that the
information that was given and the contact number we had for him didn’t work. [asked Mr.
Goldwire to the best of his ability, is that all he remembered. Mr. Goldwiwire stated, “Uh-huh.”

‘The interview concluded at 1:44 p.m.

FACTS DRAWN FROM THE INVESTIGATION:

1. On January 21, 2019, Sergeant Brian Jackson attempted to conduct a traffic stop on a
suspect, later identified as Anthony Goldwire.

2. The suspect exited his vehicle and was lawfully ordered by Sergeant Jackson to return to
his vehicle, to which he complied.

3. The suspect attempted to flee in his vehicle and struck Sergeant Jackson's marked police
vehicle.

4. Sergeant Jackson notified communications of the incident and pursued the suspect.
5. “The suspect abandoned his vehicle, led and attempted to hide behinda residence to

avoid apprehension.
| 6. Additional officers responded and a perimeter was immediately established.

The body worn camera time is not based on the actual timeof the incident. They reflect hours,
minutes & secondsofthe incident.

[ 7. Based on Officer Harvey's BWC footage in minutes, the following was revealed:

«Officer Harvey's body worn camera footage showed him arriving at the fence in
| the backyard at approximately 0:19:29 sec. The suspect can be seen laying on his

stomach.
« Atapproximately 0:19:36 sec, Sergeant Jackson arrived on scene.
«+ Atapproximately 0:19:40, Captain Foster can be heard repeatedly saying, “go

dead”
« Atapproximately 0:19:42, Officer Harvey complied and tured off his body wom

camera.
8. Based on Officer's Louden’s BWC footage in minutes, the following was revealed:

«Officer Louden’s body worn camera footage showed at approximately
0:11:285cc., the suspect was face down on the ground.

« Atapproximately 0:11:29, Sergeant Jackson is scen jumping from a parked
vehicle and running towards where the suspect was laying down.

«Officer Louden stated he heard Captain Foster's command to “go dead” and
complied.

9. Based on Officer's Rodriguez's BWC footage in minutes, the following was revealed:
+ At approximately 0:00: 00, Officer Rodriguez was on scene when the suspect was

apprehended.
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«Officer Rodriguez’ body worn camera showed the suspect in handcuffs and
Sergeant Jackson leaning over the suspect telling him to get up while helping him
tositup.

« Atapproximately 0:00:49 sec. his BWC fell off, which was consistent with his
swom statement

«OfficerRodriguezdid not tum back on his body worn camera.
10. Based on Officer B. Smith’s BWC footage in minutes, the following was revealed:

«Officer Smith's body worn camera footage showed him approaching the fence at
approximately 0:05:23. Office Smith can be heard ordering the suspect to get on
the ground.

«The suspect complied and placed his hands behind his back.
© Atapproximately 0:05:40, Sergeant Jackson ran towards the suspect.
© At approximately 0:05:41 through 0:05:46, Captain Foster can be heard

repeatedly saying, “go dead.”
« Atapproximately 0:05:47, Officer Smith turnedoffhis body worn camera

11. Based on Officer DeSantis’s BWC footage in minutes, the following was revealed:
«Officer DeSantis’ body worn camera showed him approaching where the suspect

was apprehended in the back yard at approximately 0:02:17.
«At approximately 0:02:43, it showed officers helping the suspect up.
« Atapproximately 0:02:52, Officer DeSantis tumedoffhis body worn camera.
«During his sworn recorded interview, Officer DeSantis acknowledged that he

turned offhis body worn camera and no one told him to turn it off.
12. Based on Captain Foster's BWC footage in minutes, the following was revealed:

«Captain Foster's body worn camera, showed him approaching the fence in the
back yard at approximately 0:10:00.

« Atapproximately 0:10:07, the suspect can be seen being compliant, laying faced
down with his hands behind his back. (Exhibit A).

« Atapproximately 0:10:08, Sergeant Jackson is seen running towards the suspect.
| «At approximately 0:10:09 to 0:10:17, Captain Foster can be heard repeatedly

saying “go dead.”
13. Sergeant Jackson did not have any footage of the incident because he was not wearing his

body wom camera.
14. During his sworn recorded statement, Sergeant Jackson acknowledged he was not

‘wearing his body worn camera or his tactical vest.
15. During the sworn recorded statement, Sergeant Jackson acknowledged, he punched the

suspect more than twice to distract him.
16. Sergeant Jackson's use of countermeasures were not captured on the body worn camera.
17. During their sworn recorded interview, Officer(s) Harvey, Louden and B. Smith

acknowledged that they heard Captain Foster say “go dead.” They all acknowledged that
“go dead” means to turn the body worn camera off.

18. Officers Harvey, Louden and B. Smith stated that they turnedtheirbody worn camera off
because it was a directive that was given by a Captain Foster.
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19. Officer DeSantis stated he left the scene after he turned his body worn camera off,
however, he can be seen on Officer Jennifer Jones’ body worn camera dragging the
suspect towards a marked police vehicle.

20. Officer Morgan was present at the apprehensionofthe suspect in the backyard, however,
there was no body worn camera footage captured. Officer Morgan waswearinghis body
worn camera, however, it was not turned on.

21. Sergeant Jackson's marked police vehicle sustained minor damages from the impact of
the suspect's vehicle. (Exhibit B)

22, Sergeant Jackson was transported to St. Mary's Hospital for injuries he sustained to the
back of his hand. (Exhibit C)

23. Anthony Goldwire was transported to St. Mary's Hospital for injuries he sustained and
for medical clearance. (Exhibit D)

24. All officers, sergeant and captain that were interviewed acknowledged that they signed
Power DMS for the Department's General Order referencing the Policy and Procedures
for the Body Worn Cameras.

25. Officer Jennifer Jones completed the Probable Cause Affidavit for arrest.
26. Officers Nance, Harvey, Smith, Roberson, Spearow, Rodriguez, Hardrick, Louden,

Douglas and Sergeant Jackson all completed supplemental reports.
27. Captain Foster, Officers Morgan and DeSantis did not complete supplemental reports.
28. OfficersJ.Harvey, B. Smith, W. Louden, E. Rodriguez and Sergeant B. Jackson were

involved in the physical apprehension when the suspect was located at 1516 West 36"

Street.
29, Officers J. Jones, B. Spearow, O. Douglas, B. DeSantis, J. Hardrick, J. Nance and E.

Morgan did not assist in the physical arrest.
30. Mr. Goldwire was lawfully stopped on June 21, 2019, fora trafic related violation.
31. Mr. Goldwireexited his vehicle and approached Sergeant Jackson's marked patrol

vehicle.
32. Mr. Goldwire was ordered to return to his vehicle.
33. Mr. Goldwire returned to his vehicle and fled the initial incident location.
34. Mr. Goldwire abandoned his ear, fled the scene and hid behind a residence to avoid

apprehension.
35. Once apprehended, officers could be heard telling Mr. Goldwire to stop resisting once

they attempted to handeuffhim.

DETERMINATION AS TO COMPLAINT AND POLICY VIOLATIONS:

Based on the aforementioned facts and in keeping with the Riviera Beach Police Department's
Principlesof Integrity, Professionalism, Respect and Faimess, I make the following

determination: .

Based on the video captured by the body worn cameras, the suspect was order to get on the
ground to which he complied. Several officers attempted to placed him in handcuffs, while
telling him to stop resisting.
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During Sergeant Jackson's interview, he acknowledged that he struck Mr. Goldwire more than
twice by providing discretionary blows to distract him because he thought he was reaching for a
weapon. Sergeant Jackson later discovered that the suspected weapon was Mr. Goldwire’s
cellular phone.
Based on Mr. Goldwire’s facial injuries, Sergeant Jackson may have used Excessive Counter
Measures to gain compliance. However,dueto Captain Foster’ order, this was not captured on
anyofthe body worn cameras. Additionally, Sergeant Jackson did not have his body worn
‘camera on to capture what was occurring.
Therefore, I conclude that based on the facts and circumstances developed during the
administrative investigative process that SERGEANT BRIAN JACKSON violated the
following Policy and Procedure and/or Rules and Regulations.
GENERAL ORDER 20183 BODY WORN CAMERA
14-POLICY
Its the policy of the Riviera Beach Police Department to utilize a Body Wor Camera to
document Law Enforcement interactions with the public by providing recorded evidence of
actions, conditions, and statements. The Department has a legal right to capture and record
footage during all oficial interactions.
L7__ ASSIGNMENT, ISSUANCE, AND OPERATION:

B. Operation and useof the BWC by officers is mandatory while working any
uniformed assignments to include but not limited to:

I. Regular and overtime On-Duty Patrol.

RIVIERA BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT
POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL;
RULES AND REGULATIONS
SECTION IV, PART IV ~ NEGLECT OF DUTY OFFENSES:

4.14 -NEGLECT OF DUTY: LOAFING, INATTENTION TO DUTIES/PROCEDURES:

Riviera Beach Police Department personnel shall be attentive to job duties and shall avoid any
appearance of loafing or neglecting work while on duty. Riviera Beach Police Department
personnel shall adhere to standard operating procedures, policies and directives, and shall
faithfully execute all the duties and responsibilitiesoftheir assigned position. (A violation is
subject {0 reprimand, suspension, and/or demotion,ordismissal)

SUSTAINED
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1, the undersigned, do hereby swear, under penaltyofperjury, that, to the bestofmy personal
Knowledge, information and belief, | have not knowingly or willfully deprives or allowed
another to deprive the subject of the investigationof any of the rights contained in Florida State
Statutes 112.532 and 112.533.

Respectfully Submitted,

(2fes/2a
iptain Zarfzy Vassell Date

Internal Affairs Section
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City of Riviera Beach, FloridaICD) 1481 W. 15th Stet, Suite 238
(7%) ‘Web: www sivierseach.com
ak) Office: 561-845-4000

Re2) ‘Email: Jevans@ivierabeach.org
&iiooss Titer: @Jonathan.

HAND-DELIVERY
CERTIFIED MAIL RETURN RECEIPT
W

September 7,2021

Me, EdgarFoster
600West Blue Heron Blvd
Riviera Beach, FL 33404.

RE: Noticeof Termination

Dear Mr. Foster:

“The intent oftis ete i inform you hat your employment withthe City ofRiviera Beach terminated
effcive immediately due to multiple policy violations. 1 have reviewed your swom sttement. After
Teviewing that statement, 1 find that you have violated the pubic’ trust in law enforcement, which has

| impugned the reputation ofth agency and you pecs.

Asa duly certified law enforcement officer you are held to the highest moral and ethical standards. You are

entrusted with protecting the health, safety and welfare of the public and more importantly, to follow and
enforce the law. You filed tocomply with General Order2018-3, 1.4 Body Worn Camera and General
Order 20183, 1.7 Assignment, Issuance, and Operation policies by not operating your body wom
camera in compliance with the Body Wom Camera Policy. By doing so, govemment and policing
transparency was compromised.

Beach.

Sincerely,

Jonathan E. Evans, MPA, MBA, ICMA-CM
City Manager, Riviera Beach

CC: N. Osgood, ChiefofPolice ;
E. McBride, Deputy City Manager ]
D. Wym, City Atomey 4
E, Young, Assistant Directorof Human Resources &
D. Mutamba, Assistant City Atomey A ok 4

ot Pats
ri Z

"The Best Waterfront City in Which to Live, Work And Play." wD Sol
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“The Best Waterfront City in Which to Live, Work and Play."
_—————_—_

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH ~ MEMORANDUM
-

TO: EDGAR FOSTER, GAPTAIN OF POLICE

FROM: NATHAN 0st fier OF POLICE

DATE: MARCH 17,2

RE: AMENDED NOTICE OF INTENT TO ADMINISTER DISCIPLINARY
ACTION LA. #19-06

On June 21, 2019, Sergeant Jackson attempted to conducta traffic stop on a suspect, who in his
attempt to flee, struck his market patrol vehicle.

/ The suspect later abandoned his vehicle and was apprehended behind a residence in the 1500

| ‘blockofwest 36" Street, Riviera Beach, Florida.

During your sworn recorded interview, you acknowledged you responded to the area and
established a perimeter,

Prior to the apprehensionofMr. Goldwire, you can be heard saying, “We want teeth on it dog.
We want teeth, fuck.”

During your sworn recorded interview, you acknowledged you informed Officer Harvey and
Officer Ben Smith to “go dead” because you felt the incident was over because the suspect was
compliant.

Based on the Body Worn Camera footage, initially, the suspect can be seen sitting on the ground,
with his hands in the ai. The suspect was then directed to the prone position, to which he
complied.

Based on Body Worn Camera footage, you directed the cameras to “Go dead” when Sergeant J
Jackson arrived on scene. The suspect can be seen laying faced down with his hands behind his
back, however, he was not in handeuTs, and therefore the apprehension was not complete.

ChrYe
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Amended Notice of Intent to Administer Disciplinary Action
Edgar Foster, Captain of Police
LA #1906

Itis the policyofthe Riviera Beach Police Department o utilize a Body Worn Camera to
document Law Enforcement interactions with the public by providing recorded evidence of
actions, conditions, and statements. "The Department has a legal right to capture and record
footage during all official interactions.

1.8- ACTIVATION / DEACTIVATION
B. Criteria for Deactivation
1. The BWC may only be deactivated once the interaction or incident is completed,

or when the officer can articulate a valid reason to stop recording.

RIVIERA BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT
POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL;
RULES AND REGULATIONS
SECTION IV, PART IV ~ NEGLECT OF DUTY OFFENSES:

4.13 COMPLETION OF REPORTS AND DOCUMENTS:
Riviera Beach Police Department personnel shall complete and submit all reports and documents
required in the executionoftheir duties prior to concluding a tour ofduty except as authorized
by a Supervisor.

| D. Any Supervisor/superior officer who permits an officer to leave attheend of
his/her shift without completing the face sheet of the report shall also be in
Violation and subject to reprimand, suspension, and/or demotion, or dismissal.

| LLNIGLECT OF DUTY. LOAFING, PATIENTIONToDUTIESPROCEDURES
Riviera Beach Police Department personnel shall be attentive to job duties and shall avoid any appearance
of loafing or neglecting work while on duty. Riviera Beach Police Department personnel shall adhere to
standard operating procedures, policies and directives, and shall faithfully executeall theduties and
responsibilities of their assigned position. (A violation s subject to reprimand, suspension, and/or
demotion, or dismissal)

RIVIERA BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT
POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL;
RULES AND REGULATIONS
SECTION VI, PART VII - PROFICIENCY

7.1 MAINTAIN JOB KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS:
Riviera Beach Police Department personnel are required to maintain job knowledge and skills
required for the performance ofofficial duties. Riviera Beach Police Department personnel shall
‘maintain and demonstrate proficiency in required interpersonal skills and in the care and use of
Department equipment and vehicles. Personnel shall maintain and demonstrate their knowledge
of the law and criminal procedure and shall maintain proficiency in the care and use of firearms,
demonstrating proficiency in accordance with established standards and qualification
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Amended Notice of Intent to Administer Disciplinary Action
Edgar Foster, Captain of Police
LA#19:06

You acknowledged “Go dead” means to turnoffthe cameras and it i your terminology for
turning the cameras off. You also acknowledged “Go dead” is notapartofthe Body Worn
Camera Policy.

Based on the Body Worn Camera footage, when Sergeant Jackson arrived on scene, he was
postured inanaggressive stance with his fists clenched, whilethe suspectwas on the ground in a
prone position. Atthat time, you directed officers to “Go dead.” You gave an illegal order that
conflicts with policy and procedure.

During the reviewofseveral Body Worn Cameras (BWC), you can be heard saying, “Go dead.”
The command was repeated approximately seven (7) times. You can be heard saying, “We want
teeth on it dog. We want teeth, fuck”

Several officers who were in the immediate vicinity, complied with your directive and tumed
their cameras off. These officers stated they believed it was a lawful order because it came from
a Captain.

Based on the Body Worn Camera footage, prior to Sergeant Jackson's arrival, the suspect did not
have injuries to his face. After the encounter with Sergeant Jackson, the suspect's face revealed
brutal injuries.

Captain Foster, the Body Worn Camera is utilized to capture interactions between Law.
Enforcement and the public by providing recorded evidenceofactions, conditions and
Statements. It may only be deactivated once the interaction or incident is completed.

| You did not articulatea valid reasons to stop recording and because of your command, there was
no footage to document whether or not excessive countermeasures were used by Sergeant
Jackson.

On October 5, 2018, you signed the Department's General Order, acknowledging receiptofthe.
policy governing the wear and usageof the Body Worn Camera.

‘You did not complete and submit all reports and documents required in the exceutionof your
duties prior to concluding your tourofduty.

You did not adhere to the Department's standard operating procedures, policies and directives,
‘which precluded you from faithfully executing the dutiesofyour assigned position.

Therefore, I conclude that CAPTAIN EDGAR FOSTER has violated the following Policy
and Procedures and or Rules and Regulations:

GENERAL ORDER 2018-3 ~ BODY WORN CAMERA
14-POLICY
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Amended Notice of Intent to Administer Disciplinary Action
Edgar Foster, Captain of Police
LA. #1906

requirements for sworn personnel. Riviera Beach Police Department personnel may be retested
or proficiency as provided in the Standard Operating Procedures, with each subsequent failure to
qualify constituting an additional offense. Failure to maintain job skills shall result in
counselling, instruction or training and may also result inasuspension. Repeated failure to
maintain necessary job skills and requirements after counselling and instruction shall result in
increasing the severityofdisciplinary actions. (A violation is subject to reprimand, suspension,
and/or demotion, or dismissal.)

F.S.5. 838.022 OFFICIAL MISCONDUCT

SUSTAINED

Based on the foregoing, 1 am recommending to the City Manager the following:

© Thirty working (30) days suspension for these violations.

“This information is provided in conformance with the labor contract between the CityofRivera
Beach in the Palm Beach County Police Benevolent Association (PBA). Furthermore, you have
the right to appeal concerning this action via the PBA union contract process, Articles 21 and 22,

ce: Michael Madden, Assistant ChiefofPolice
O°Ne Dupre, Directorof Human Resources
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